offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of these securities, in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such

may an offer to buy be accepted, prior to the time the Official Statement is delivered in final form. Under no circumstances shall this Preliminary Official Statement constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an
jurisdiction.

This Preliminary Official Statement and the information contained herein are subject to completion or amendment. Except pursuant to the Official Notice of Sale contained herein, these securities may not be sold, nor

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED OCTOBER 31, 2011

NEW ISSUE RATING: Moody's Investors Service: “Aa2”
BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY (See “Rating” Herein)

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, assuming continuing compliance by the County with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excludable
from gross income for federal income tax purposes under existing statutes, regulations and judicial decisions. Interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax
preference in computing the alternative minimum taxable income of individuals or corporations. Interest on the Bonds will, however, be included in the
computation of certain taxes including alternative minimum tax for corporations. See “LEGAL MATTERS - Federal Income Tax Generally” for a brief
description of alternative minimum tax treatment and certain other federal income tax consequences to certain recipients of interest on the Bonds. The
Bonds and the interest thereon will also be exempt from all State, county, municipal and school district and other taxes or assessments imposed within the
State of South Carolina, except estate, transfer and certain franchise taxes. The Bonds have been designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for
purposes of Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

OFFICIAL STATEMENT
Relating to the Issuance of
$5,000,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2011
(BANK QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT) OF FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

The $5,000,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2011 (the “Bonds”), will be
general obligation bonds of Florence County, South Carolina (the “County”), and as such the full faith, credit, resources and
taxing power of the County will be irrevocably pledged for the payment thereof. See “THE BONDS - Security” herein.

The Bonds are issuable in fully registered form and when issued will be registered to Cede & Co., as nominee of
The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC"), to which principal and interest payments on the Bonds
will be made. Individual purchases of beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds will be made in book-entry form only, in
the principal amounts of $5,000 or any whole multiple thereof. So long as Cede & Co. as nominee of DTC is the registered
owner of the Bonds, references herein to the holders of the Bonds or registered owners of the Bonds shall mean Cede & Co.
and shall not mean the beneficial owners of the Bonds. So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the Bonds, the
principal and interest on the Bonds are payable to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, which will in turn remit such principal
and interest to the DTC Participants (as defined herein) for subsequent disbursement to the beneficial owners of the Bonds.
See “THE BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System.” will serve as Registrar and Paying
Agent for the Bonds.

The Bonds will be dated the date of delivery thereof which is expected to be November 22, 2011, and will mature
on March 1 in each of the years and in the principal amounts and bear interest at the rates shown below. Interest on the
Bonds is first payable on March 1, 2012, and semiannually thereafter on each March 1 and September 1 until the Bonds are
paid in full. The Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to their state maturities as set forth herein.

March 1  Principal  Interest  Reoffering March1 Principal Interest Reoffering
Year Amount Rate Price Year Amount Rate Price
2012 $280,000 2020 $355,000
2013 290,000 2021 365,000
2014 295,000 2022 375,000
2015 305,000 2023 395,000
2016 310,000 2024 335,000
2017 320,000 2025 345,000
2018 330,000 2026 360,000

2019 340,000

The interest rates are the result of a successful proposal from a syndicate headed by
The reoffering information has been provided by such company submitting the winning proposal.

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued and subject to the approving opinion as to legality of Haynsworth
Sinkler Boyd, P.A., Bond Counsel, Florence, South Carolina. It is expected that the Bonds in definitive form will be
available for delivery on or about November 22, 2011.

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a summary of the issue. Investors
should read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.
The County deems the Preliminary Official Statement to be final as of its date for purposes of S.E.C. Rule 15¢2-12 except
for information which may be omitted therefrom pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12.

This Official Statement is dated , 2011.



No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by Florence County, South
Carolina (the “County”) to give any information or to make any representations with respect to the Bonds
other than those contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or
representation may not be relied upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing. This Official
Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of any offer to buy nor shall there be any sale
of the Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer,
solicitation or sale. The information set forth herein has been provided by the County and other sources
which are believed to be reliable. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change
without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under
any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the County since
the date hereof.

This Preliminary Official Statement has been deemed final by the County for purposes of
paragraph (b)(1) of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Rule”), but is
subject to revision, amendment and completion in a final official statement as provided in the Rule.



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Florence County Council

K. G. “Rusty” Smith, Jr., Chairman
Waymon Mumford, Vice Chairman
Russell W. Culberson
Mitchell Kirby
Johnny D. Rodgers, Jr.

H. Morris Anderson
James T. Schofield
Alphonso Bradley
Roger M. Poston

County Administration

Richard A. Starks, County Administrator
Kevin V. Yokim, Finance Director
Connie Y. Haselden, Clerk to Council

County Attorney

D. Malloy McEachin, Jr.
Florence, South Carolina

Bond Counsel

Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A.
Florence, South Carolina

Financial Advisor

Davenport & Company LLC
Charlotte, North Carolina



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

INTRODUGCTION. ...ttt sttt et st et et et e st e seeRe e b e et e sbe st e st et et enseseatesresnenteneas 1
LI L= U PR PRR 1

T ToL U SRS STPRSSON 1
PUIPOSE OF the BONGS ... 1

LI L= =] 1o PSSR 1

Tax Status of Interest 0N the BONAS .........ccooiiiiiiii e 1
Professionals Involved in the OFFEriNg ... 2

L0 L= o2e g (=] T AN [0 L o] ST SST 2
FINANCIAT AVISOT ...ttt et ettt ettt s e bt be e s e sbeese e besbeeseesbeeneeneeaneas 2

F AN 110 0] g [0 o ISR 2
Information Concerning Terms Of The Offering ... 3
(CT=T 1T | TP PSO USSRV 3

THE BONDS ...ttt bbbt bt bbbt e st e bt e bt e bt b e b et et et e st et e e b e et e s benne b en 4
DIBSCIIPTION ...ttt bbbtk bbbt R R R bttt n e 4
BOOK-ENLIY-ONIY SYSBM.. ..o st be st e st essee e ste s sreesreesneesneesneean 4
Discontinuance of BOOK-ENtry-Only SYSTEM .........coiiiiiiiiii e 7
Redemption OF the BONGS..........coiiiiiiie e 7
] 1= L= g o= PSR 8
PUIDOSE ittt ettt s h et b e e Rt bt Rt e e b e e aREe e be e e R ee e R be e e raeenneeennes 8
SBOUNTLY etttk bt bt s bbbt bbb e Rt h e b e bbb bRt b et b bt 9
Additional Security for the BONAS ........cccoiiiiiiiice e 9
IMHISCEITANEBOUS ...t b et b ettt bt e e s e e bbb nn et 9

THE COUNTY ottt bttt b bt bbb b e e st e s e bt bt e bt ettt e b et et e e bt e b bene et 10
GENETAl DESCIIPTION ...ttt bbbttt bbb n e 10

L0 0] 0NV g 4T o S SS 10
Services Provided BY the COUNLY ........ccoieiiiiiiiiiniie et 11
Services Provided By Other Governmental ENtities. ..o 11
FINANCIAL AND TAX INFORMATION ..ottt sttt ene s 12
Five Year Summary of General Fund OpPerations ............ccovvvveieieiie e 12
FINANCIAL STALEMENTS ......eicviiiecic e sttt sre et re e e e be e e sreenee 13

Budget Procedure and Accounting POLICIES. ..ot 13
Summary of General FUNd BUAGEL ........ccooiiiiiice ettt st sre s 14
County OPerating REVENUES ........coiiiiiiiiiieieiee sttt bbbt sbe s 15

LOCAI OPLION SAIES TAX....ueiuitiitiiteieieiee sttt bbbt en e 15

Capital ProjECt SAIES TAX ...iiiiiiieieeiieiiisieeeerteeste e s e e sreeste s te e beesteesteesteesraeeseeesteesreesneesnnesneesneens 16

Capital Projects Sales Tax COHECHIONS .........ccveviiiiiiiiiii e s 17

Local Hospitality And ACCOMMOUALIONS FEES .......c.oeiiiiiiiiiiieiieieeeees e 17
Permitted INVESTMENTS. .. ..o oottt et sttt st e tesre e e e be s e saeenes 18

Fringe Benefits and REtIFEMENT ........cc.oii it 19
Post-Retirement Health Insurance BENEfitS.........ccovviviiiii i 19
LIADTIITY INSUFBINCE ...ttt 20
CERTAIN FISCAL MATTERS ...ttt na et nne s 21
Property Taxation and ASSESSIMENT .........cuiiiiriirieriei ettt ese s 21

Homestead Exemption--Property Tax ReHET..........ccoiiiiiiiic e 21



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(continued)

Page

PaymMENtS iN LIBU OF TAXES.....eeieieitieiee ittt sttt et seesne e seeseeenes 22
Exempt Manufacturing PrOPEITY .........ccveiie it st ae e e e reenne e 23

Y T o= LTS (o] YOS 23
ASSESSEU VAIUE ...ttt ettt et e e s re et et be e te e e nreenee 23

2010 Market Value/Assessment Summary of the COUNtY ..o 24

TaxX COIECLION PrOCEAUIE ......oviiieieiieiisc ettt bbb 24

Tax Collections iN the COUNLY ......c.oviiiiiiiiiee et 24

TN LAIQESE TaAXPAYEIS. .. eeeiee ittt ettt ettt ettt sttt b bt et e e b e et e e sbe e e st e e abe e ebe e sbeesaeesaeesabesanennbeas 25

DEBT STRUGCTURE ..ottt ettt sttt seeteeseatestesae e e e eneeneetesnestentenseneeneas 26
Legal Debt Limit Of the COUNLY ..o e 26
(@010 =T a0 1T To N I.1=T o USSP 27

Other COMIMITMENTS.......c.veuiiiiisceie ettt b et sttt et e s e beeneabessenbeeas 28
REVENUE BONGS ...ttt bbbttt e 29
OVErIaPPING DEDL.......oiiieiee bbbt 30
Anticipated Capital NBEUS ........oceeeie ettt st sre e ste s seeseeenes 30
ECONOMIC CHARACTERISTICS ...ttt 31
Description of Florence County, SOUth CaroliNg..........ccccvviiiriieieneieieesse e 31

Top EMPIOYErs iN the COUNLY .....ooeiiiiee ettt e neeas 32

RETAI SAIES ...ttt sttt bbbt ne e e enes 32

Per Capita Personal INCOME ........cviiiiiie ettt et ettt et sr e reenee 33

(o= o 0T o] (o) Y70 0 T=T o USRS 33

Lo gl o (ot PSPPSR 33
POPUIALION FIQUIES ...ttt sttt sttt e s be et e besbeesb et e e ne et e steenae e e nreenes 33
Building Permits and ConStruCtion ACHIVITY .........ccoreierierieiiisi e 34
Facilities SErving the COUNTY .........cciiii et sre e s re e e e s ee e reere e e 34
LEGAL MATTERS ... oottt sttt ettt b et et e s e ebeeneanentenre e 37
LITIGATION. ...t bbb bbb e r e 37

(T -1 o1 a1 o] oSSR 37

United States BankruptCy COUE ........oouviiiiiiiiie ettt 37

Federal Income TaxX GENEIAllY..........coviiiiiiiccce e ene 38
Collateral Federal Tax CONSIAEIAtIONS. ........ccviverierreiesieieee e e ie e see e ee e sraeneens 39
[Original 1SSUE PrEMIUM ....ccuiiiiiiiecie ettt ettt ettt et st a e te e e sbestaesbesreesbeste e e e seenreanes 39

Y I I Y =T 0] o1 o] SO SP 40
COoNLINUING DISCIOSUIE ...ttt bbb 40

(O (1] T T =T ) =[] SRS 40
(073 Tod 111 o] o ISP SR PSPPI 41
RATING L.ttt bbb h st bbb bbb et e st e s £ e bt bt bt ket e st et e e bt ettt st b e 42
UNDERWRITING ... .ottt et s et e et e e et e e st e e st e e s te e e aabe e e beeestte e s teeateeesneeeanes 42
(O =1 I 1 = O Ny I 0 ] S 43

Appendix A — Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010.
Appendix B — Form of Bond Counsel Opinion.

Appendix C — Form of Disclosure Dissemination Agreement.

Appendix D — Form of Official Bid Form.



OFFICIAL NOTICE OF SALE
$5,000,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2011,
(BANK QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT) OF FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Sealed proposals, addressed to the undersigned, will be received by the Florence County Council,
(“County Council™), the governing body of Florence County, South Carolina (the “County”), until 11:00
o’clock a.m. (local time) on Thursday, November 10, 2011 (the “Sale Date”), at which time said proposals
will be publicly opened in the Chambers of County Council, Room 803, City-County Complex, 180 N. Irby
Street, Florence, South Carolina 29501, for the purchase of $5,000,000 General Obligation Refunding and
Improvement Bonds, Series 2011, of Florence County, South Carolina (the “Bonds”). The Bonds are
designated “qualified tax-exempt obligations” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The Bonds shall be payable as to principal as follows:

Principal Principal
Year Amount Year Amount
2012 $280,000 2020 $355,000
2013 290,000 2021 365,000
2014 295,000 2022 375,000
2015 305,000 2023 395,000
2016 310,000 2024 335,000
2017 320,000 2025 345,000
2018 330,000 2026 360,000

2019 340,000

The Bonds will be dated the date of delivery thereof which is expected to be on or about November
22, 2011, and will bear interest from the date thereof, payable on each March 1 and September 1, beginning
on March 1, 2012, until they mature. Both principal and interest will be payable in any coin or currency of
the United States of America, which at the time of payment, is legal tender for the payment of public and
private debts at the Corporate Trust Office of the Registrar and Paying Agent of the Bonds.

Registrar and Paying Agent: A financial institution will be selected by the County to serve as
Registrar and Paying Agent. However, the County may determine to allow the successful bidder for the
Bonds to name the Registrar and Paying Agent subject to the County’s approval of the institution so
nominated. So long as the Bonds remain outstanding in book-entry form with DTC, all payments of
principal and interest with respect to the Bonds shall be through the facilities of DTC.

Redemption: The Bonds maturing on or before March 1, 2021, are not subject to redemption prior
to maturity. The Bonds maturing on or after March 1, 2022, are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at
the option of the County, on or after March 1, 2021, in whole or in part at any time, at a redemption price
equal to 100 percent of the principal amount therof, plus interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

Bid Requirements: Bidders shall specify the rate or rates of interest per annum which such Bonds
are to bear, to be expressed in multiples of 1/20th or 1/8th of 1% with no greater difference than 2%
between the highest and lowest rates of interest named by a bidder. Bidders are not limited as to the number
of rates of interest named, but the rate of interest on each separate maturity must be the same single rate for
the Bonds of that maturity from their date to such maturity date. A bid for less than all the Bonds, or at a
price less than par, will not be considered. Any premium offered must be paid as part of the purchase price
of the Bonds at the delivery thereof.

Award of Bonds: The Bonds will be awarded to the bidder or bidders offering to purchase the



Bonds at the lowest net interest cost (NIC) to the County from the date of delivery of the Bonds. The
County reserves the right to reject any and all bids or to waive irregularities in any bid. Bids will be
accepted or rejected no later than 4:00 p.m. (local time) on the day of the sale.

Adjustment of Principal Maturities of Bonds If after final computation of the proposals, the County
determines that it is necessary to adjust debt service requirements of the Bonds in one or more years, it
reserves the right to decrease or increase the principal amount of the Bonds of any maturity (all calculations
to be rounded to the nearest $5,000) by not exceeding 10%. Such adjustment(s), if any, shall be made
within twenty-four (24) hours of the award of the Bonds. In order to calculate the yield on the Bonds for
federal tax law purposes and as a condition precedent to the award of the Bonds, bidders must disclose to
the County in connection with their respective bids the price (or yield to maturity) at which each maturity of
the Bonds will be reoffered to the public.

In the event of any adjustment of the maturity schedule for the Bonds as described herein, no
rebidding or recalculation of the proposals submitted will be required or permitted. The Bonds of each
maturity, as adjusted, will bear interest at the same rate and must have the same reoffering yield as are
specified by the successful bidder for the Bonds of that maturity. Nevertheless, the award of the Bonds will
be made to the bidder whose proposal produces the lowest net interest cost solely on the basis of the Bonds
offered, without taking into account any adjustment in the amount of the Bonds pursuant to this paragraph.

Bid Submission—PARITY: All bids, except as provided in the following paragraph, must be
submitted to the Parity Electronic Bid Submission System (“PARITY”). No other form of bid, whether oral
or written, or provider of electronic bidding services will be accepted. Such bids are to be publicly disclosed
and read at such time and place on said day. The time as maintained by PARITY shall constitute the official
time with respect to all bids submitted. No proposal shall be considered which is not actually received by
the County at the place, date and time appointed through PARITY, and the County shall not be responsible
for any delay, failure, misdirection or error in the transmission of bids.

Bid Submission—Direct Placement Bidders: Financial institutions desiring to submit a bid to
purchase the Bonds for the purpose of investment (“Direct Placement Bidders”) may submit bids via
facsimile at telephone number 843-665-4515. Direct Placement Bidders must bid a single fixed rate of
interest for all Bonds at a price not less than par. In the event a Direct Placement Bidder is awarded the
Bonds, the Bonds will be issued as a single Bond, without CUSIP identification. A Direct Placement
Bidder, if awarded the Bonds, must execute a letter addressed to the County and Bond Counsel
acknowledging, among other things, that (1) the purchaser had the opportunity to review a preliminary
official statement relating to the Bonds and to the County; (2) the purchaser had an opportunity to make
appropriate inquires of and receive answers from officials, employees, agents and attorneys of the County;
(3) the purchaser has knowledge and experience in financial and business affairs and that it is capable of
evaluating the merits and risks of the purchase of the Bond; (4) the purchaser is acquiring the Bond as a
vehicle for making a commercial loan and without a present view to the distribution thereof (subject,
nevertheless, to any requirement of law that the disposition of its property at all times be under its control)
within the meaning of the Federal securities laws; (5) the purchaser is acquiring the Bond solely for its own
account and no other undisclosed person now has any direct or indirect ownership or interest therein; and (6)
the purchaser understands that the scope of engagement of Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., as Bond
Counsel to the County with respect to the Bond has been limited to matters as set forth in their opinion
based on their view of such legal proceedings as they deem necessary to approve the validity of the Bond
and the tax-exempt status of interest thereon (the “Letter of Representations”). The purchaser will also be
required to covenant that it will not voluntarily dispose of all or any portion of the Bond unless it procures
from each assignee thereof representations and covenants in form and content the same as those made by the
purchaser.



If any provisions of this Official Notice of Sale conflict with information provided by PARITY as
the approved provider of electronic bidding services, this Official Notice of Sale shall control. Further
information about PARITY may be obtained from PARITY, 1359 Broadway, 2nd Floor, New York, NY
10018, telephone (212) 849-5024.

Municipal Bond Insurance. If a bidder for the Bonds desires to have the Bonds insured, the bidder
shall specify in its bid whether bond insurance will be purchased and the premium of such bond insurance
must be paid at or prior to closing by the successful bidder.

Security: The Bonds shall constitute binding general obligations of the County and the full faith,
credit, resources and taxing power of the County are irrevocably pledged for the payment of the Bonds.
There shall be levied and collected annually in the same manner as all other county taxes are levied and
collected, a tax, without limit, on all taxable property in the County sufficient to pay the principal of and
interest on the Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary
therefor.

Purpose: The Bonds are being issued for the purposes of (a) refunding the County’s Series 2002
General Obligation Bonds, (b) acquisition and installation of and improvements related to new electrical
generators for the County’s facilities in the City-County Complex and the County Planning Building, as
well as the potential acquisition of real property (the “Improvements”), and (c) paying certain costs of
issuance of the Bonds.

Official Statement: The Preliminary Official Statement dated October 31, 2011 has been deemed
final by the County for purposes of paragraph (b)(1) of Rule 15c¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Rule”) but is subject to revision, amendment and completion in a final Official Statement
as provided in the Rule. The Preliminary Official Statement may be accessed via the Internet at www.i-
dealprospectus.com.

The County will furnish at its cost a sufficient number of copies of the final Official Statement to
allow the successful bidder for the Bonds to comply with the Rule within seven (7) working days of the
acceptance of a bid for the purchase of the Bonds.

Continuing Disclosure: In order to assist bidders in complying with SEC Rule 15c2-12 (the
“Rule”), the County will undertake, pursuant to the Bond Ordinance and a Disclosure Dissemination
Agreement, to provide certain annual information reports and notices of certain events. A description of this
undertaking is set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement and will also be set forth in the final Official
Statement. The delivery by the County of a fully executed Disclosure Dissemination Agreement by the
County dated the date of delivery of the Bonds, is a condition precedent to the delivery of the Bonds as
described in the Notice of Sale. Failure by the County to deliver such Disclosure Dissemination Agreement
will relieve the successful bidder of its contractual obligation arising from the acceptance of its bid. The
Preliminary Official Statement has been deemed final by the County for purposes of paragraph (b)(1) of the
Rule but is subject to revision, amendment and completion in the final Official Statement as provided in the
Rule.

In accordance with Section 1-11-85 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, the
County has covenanted in the Bond Ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Bonds to file with a central
repository for availability in the secondary bond market when requested an annual independent audit, within
thirty (30) days of the County’s receipt of the audit; and event-specific information, within thirty (30) days
of an event adversely affecting more than five percent (5%) of the County’s revenue or tax base. The only
remedy for failure by the County to comply with this covenant shall be an action for specific performance.
Moreover, the County has specifically reserved the right to amend the covenant to reflect any change in



Section 1-11-85 without the consent of any bondholder.

Closing Certificates: The County shall furnish upon delivery of the Bonds the final approving
opinion of Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., Bond Counsel, Florence, South Carolina, together with closing
proofs including (a) a certificate that there is no litigation threatened or pending to restrain the issuance or
sale of said Bonds, (b) a certificate establishing that the Bonds are not “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning
of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations as in effect
on the occasion of the delivery of the Bonds, and (c) certification by an appropriate official to the effect that
the Official Statement, as of its date and as of the date of delivery of the Bonds does not contain an untrue
statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact which should be included therein for
the purpose for which the Official Statement is intended to be used, or which is necessary to make the
statements contained therein, in the light of the circumstances in which they were made, not misleading.

Certificates as to Issue Price and Yield: The successful bidder for the Bonds must provide a
certificate to the County not later than two business days following the sale date, and confirmed by a
certificate delivered at closing, stating the initial reoffering price of the Bonds to the public (excluding bond
houses and brokers) and the price at which a substantial amount of the Bonds were sold to the public, in
form satisfactory to Bond Counsel. As a condition precedent to the delivery of the Bonds and in order to
assist the County in compliance with applicable federal tax law, bidders must certify to the County the
“yield” on the Bonds, calculated in accordance with Section 1.148-4 of the United States Treasury
Regulations.

Delivery: The Bonds will be delivered on or about November 22, 2011 through the facilities of
DTC at the expense of the County, or at such other place as may be agreed upon with the purchasers at the
expense of the purchaser. The balance of the purchase price then due must be paid in Federal funds or other
immediately available funds. The cost of preparing the Bonds will be borne by the County.

CUSIP Numbers: It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the Bonds,
but neither the failure to print such numbers on any Bond nor any error with respect thereto shall constitute
cause for failure or refusal by the purchaser thereof to accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds in
accordance with the terms of its proposal. All expenses in relation to the printing of CUSIP identification
numbers on the Bonds shall be paid for by the County; provided, however, that the CUSIP Service Bureau
charge for the assignment of said numbers shall be the responsibility of and shall be paid for by the
successful bidder.

Additional Information: Persons seeking information should communicate with Kevin V. Yokim,
County Finance Director, Florence County, 180 N. Irby Street, MSC-H, Florence, South Carolina 29501,
telephone (843) 665-3013, Walter Goldsmith, Financial Advisor, Davenport & Company, LLC, 401 N.
Tryon Street, Charlotte, North Carolina 28202, telephone (704) 375-0550 or Benjamin T. Zeigler, Bond
Counsel, Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., 1831 West Evans Street, Florence, South Carolina 29501,
telephone (843) 673-5304.



This Notice is given to evidence the County’s intent to receive bids for and award the Bonds on the
date stated above. Such sale may be postponed prior to the time bids are to be received and as published on
Thomson Municipal Market Monitor, Bloomberg, or other electronic information service. If canceled, the
sale may be thereafter rescheduled within 60 days of the date of the publication of this Official Notice of
Sale, and notice of such rescheduled date of sale will be posted at least 48 hours prior to the time for receipt
of bids on Thomson Municipal Market Monitor, Bloomberg, i-dealprospectus.com or other electronic
information service.

County Administrator
Florence County, South Carolina



INTRODUCTION

This Introduction briefly describes the contents of this Official Statement and is expressly qualified
by reference to the entire contents hereof, including appendices, as well as of the documents summarized or
described herein.

The Issuer

The $5,000,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2011 (the “Bonds”)
are being issued by Florence County, South Carolina (the “County”), a body politic and corporate and a
political subdivision of the State of South Carolina.

Security

For the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, the full faith, credit, resources and taxing
power of the County are irrevocably pledged. See “THE BONDS - Security” herein.

Purpose of the Bonds

The Bonds are being issued for the purposes of (a) refunding the County’s Series 2002 General
Obligation Bonds, (b) defraying a portion of the costs of acquisition and installation of and improvements
related to new electrical generators for the County’s facilities in the City-County Complex and the County
Planning Building, as well as the potential acquisition of real property (the “Improvements”), and (c) paying
certain costs of issuance of the Bonds.

The Bonds

The Bonds will be general obligation bonds of the County; will be issuable in fully registered form
and, when issued, will be registered to Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New
York, New York (“DTC”); will be dated as of November 22, 2011, the date of delivery; and will bear
interest from their dated date at the rates shown on the front cover hereof, payable initially on March 1,
2012, and semiannually thereafter on March 1 and November 1 of each year until they mature. The Bonds
will mature serially in successive annual installments on March 1 in each of the years and in the principal
amounts set forth on the front cover hereof. The Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to their
stated maturities as outlined in “THE BONDS — Redemption of the Bonds”.

Tax Status of Interest on the Bonds

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, subject to the conditions and limitations stated therein, interest on
the Bonds will be excludable from gross income for Federal income tax purposes and will not constitute an
item of tax preference for purposes of the alternative minimum tax. The Bonds are designated as “qualified
tax-exempt obligations” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended. Under the present laws of the State of South Carolina, the Bonds and the interest thereon will
be exempt from all State, county, municipal, school district, and all other taxes and assessments, direct or
indirect, general and special, whether imposed for the purpose of general revenue or otherwise, except
inheritance, estate and transfer taxes, but the interest thereon may be includable for certain franchise fees or
taxes. See “CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS - Federal Income Tax Generally” and “CERTAIN LEGAL
MATTERS - Collateral Federal Tax Considerations” herein.



Professionals Involved in the Offering

Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., Florence, South Carolina, is acting as Bond Counsel and
Davenport & Company, LLC, Charlotte, North Carolina is serving as Financial Advisor.
will serve as the Registrar/Paying Agent for the Bonds.

Independent Auditors

The Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, included as Appendix A hereto,
have been audited by Baird and Company, LLC, Certified Public Accountants, Augusta, Georgia, as stated
in their report appearing in Appendix A.

Financial Advisor

Davenport & Company, LLC (“Davenport”) is employed as Financial Advisor to the County in
connection with the issuance of the 2011 Bonds. The Financial Advisor’s fee for services rendered with
respect to the sale of the 2011 Bonds is contingent upon the issuance and delivery of the 2011 Bonds.
Davenport will not submit a bid for the 2011 Bonds, either independently or as a member of a syndicate
organized to submit a bid for the 2011 Bonds. Davenport, in its capacity as Financial Advisor, does not
assume any responsibility for the information, covenants and representations contained in any of the legal
documents with respect to the federal income tax status of the 2011 Bonds, or the possible impact of any
present, pending or future actions taken by any legislative or judicial bodies. Davenport has provided the
following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The Financial Advisor has reviewed the
information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibilities to the County
and, as applicable, to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of
this transaction, but the Financial Advisor does not guarantee the accuracy of completion of such
information.

Authorization

Section 14 of Article X of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina (the “Constitution”)
provides that the counties of the State may issue bonded indebtedness in an amount not exceeding eight
percent (8%) of the assessed value of all taxable property therein, and provides further that no bonded
indebtedness incurred on or prior to November 30, 1977, shall be charged against such eight percent (8%)
debt limitation. Paragraph (6) of Section 14 of Article X of the Constitution further provides that general
obligation debt authorized by a majority of the qualified electors of the issuer may be issued without
consideration of the eight percent (8%) limit otherwise imposed by Section 14 of Article X. The assessed
value of all taxable property located within the County for purposes of calculating the County’s debt limit,
excluding property subject to a fee in lieu of taxes, as certified by the County Auditor for the year 2010,
which is the last completed assessment thereof, is the sum of $436,573,078, including merchants’ inventory,
and thus the eight percent (8%) debt limit of the County is not less than $34,925,846. At present, the
County has outstanding $17,989,390 aggregate principal amount of general obligation debt and other
indebtedness chargeable against the eight percent (8%) limit. That portion of the Bonds used to refund the
outstanding principal of the County’s Series 2002 General Obligation Bonds will not be further chargeable
against the eight percent (8%) limit. Thus, the Council may issue the Bonds without the authorization
required by Section 14(6) of the Constitution.

By virtue of Title 4, Chapter 15, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, and
supplemented by Title 11, Chapter 27, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (collectively, the
“County Bond Act”), the County is empowered to issue general obligation bonds for any “authorized
purpose” as defined in the County Bond Act. A portion of the Bonds are being issued to defray the cost of
certain capital improvements of the County, which constitute authorized purposes within the meaning of the
County Bond Act. By virtue of Title 11, Chapter 15, Article 5, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as



amended, and supplemented by Title 11, Chapter 27, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended
(collectively, the “Refunding Act”), the County is empowered to issue general obligation refunding bonds
for the purpose of refunding outstanding general obligation bonds of the County. A portion of the Bonds are
being issued to refund the County’s presently outstanding Series 2002 General Obligation Bonds.

An ordinance authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds for the purpose of defraying the
cost of certain capital improvements to facilities of the County and refunding the County’s Series 2002
General Obligation Bonds (the “Bond Ordinance™) was adopted on October 20, 2011.

Information Concerning Terms Of The Offering

The Bonds are being issued in book-entry-only form. It is expected that the Bonds will be delivered
to Cede & Co., at the offices of DTC, on or about November 22, 2011, and will be available for credit to the
accounts of the participants and, through them, the Beneficial Owners on such date. Information on
limitations on transfer of ownership is set forth in “THE BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System” and “THE
BONDS - Discontinuance of Book-Entry-Only System.”

General

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject to
change. Copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement will be deposited with the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, 1900 Duke Street, Suite 600, Alexandria, Virginia 22314. Copies
of the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement, the ordinance of the County Council
authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and related documents and information are available by contacting
Kevin Yokim, County Finance Director, Florence County, 180 N. Irby Street, MSC-H, Florence, South
Carolina 29501, telephone (843) 665-3013; Walter Goldsmith, Davenport & Company, LLC 401 N. Tryon
Street, Charlotte, North Carolina 28202, telephone (704) 375-0550; or Benjamin T. Zeigler, Haynsworth
Sinkler Boyd, P.A., Bond Counsel, Post Office Box 6617, Florence, South Carolina 29501, telephone (843)
673-5304.



THE BONDS
Description
The Bonds constitute an issue of $5,000,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement

Bonds, Series 2011, of Florence County, South Carolina (the “County”). The Bonds mature on March 1 in
the years and in the principal amounts as follows:

Principal Principal
Year Amount Year Amount
2012 $280,000 2020  $355,000
2013 290,000 2021 365,000
2014 295,000 2022 375,000
2015 305,000 2023 395,000
2016 310,000 2024 335,000
2017 320,000 2025 345,000
2018 330,000 2026 360,000

2019 340,000

The Bonds will be issued in fully registered book-entry-only form; will be dated as of November
22, 2011, the date of delivery; and will bear interest from the date thereof, payable initially on March 1,
2012, and semiannually thereafter on March 1 and November 1 of each year until they mature; and will
mature serially on March 1 in each of the years and in the principal amounts as shown above. The Bonds
shall be issued under the DTC Book-Entry-Only System in the denominations of $5,000 or integral
multiples thereof, registered in the name of Cede & Co. as the registered owner and nominee of The
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, which will act as securities depository for the Bonds.
shall serve as Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds for so long as the
same are held under a Book-Entry-Only System (“Registrar/Paying Agent”).

Book-Entry-Only System

Beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds will be available only in book-entry form. Beneficial
Owners (as defined below) will not receive physical certificates representing their interests in the Bonds
purchased. So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the Bonds, references in this Official
Statement to the Owners of the Bonds shall mean DTC or its nominee and shall not mean the Beneficial
Owners. The Bond Ordinance contains provisions applicable to periods when DTC or its nominee is not the
registered owner.

THE FOLLOWING DESCRIPTION OF DTC, OF PROCEDURES AND RECORD KEEPING
ON BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN THE BONDS, PAYMENT OF INTEREST AND
OTHER PAYMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS TO DTC PARTICIPANTS OR TO
BENEFICIAL OWNERS, CONFIRMATION AND TRANSFER OF BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP
INTERESTS IN THE BONDS AND OF OTHER TRANSACTIONS BY AND BETWEEN DTC, DTC
PARTICIPANTS AND BENEFICIAL OWNERS IS BASED ON INFORMATION FURNISHED BY
DTC.

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository
for the Bonds (the “Bonds™). The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered bonds registered in the name of
Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. One fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for the Bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of such issue, as set forth on the front cover of this Official Statement, and will be
deposited with DTC. SO LONG AS CEDE & CO. IS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS, AS
DTC’S PARTNERSHIP NOMINEE, REFERENCE HEREIN TO THE HOLDERS OR REGISTERED
OWNERS OF THE BONDS SHALL MEAN CEDE & CO. AND SHALL NOT MEAN THE
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BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE BONDS.

DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New
York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member
of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform
Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S.
and non-U.S. equity, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100
countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants™) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-
trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities,
through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.
This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both
U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain
other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation
(*“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed
Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of
its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-
U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations that clear through or
maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect
Participants”). DTC has a Standard & Poor’s rating of: AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants
are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at
www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants,
which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser
of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.
Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners
are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as
periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participants through which the Beneficial
Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by
entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds, except in
the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested
by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name
of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no
knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the
Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial
Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings
on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct
Participants to Indirect Participants and by Direct Participants, and Indirect Participants to Beneficial
Owners of the Bonds will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain
steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as
redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the security documents. For example,
Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has
agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish
to provide their names and addresses to the Registrar/Paying Agent and request that copies of the notices be
provided directly to them.



Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such
issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its usual
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the School District as soon as possible after the record date.
The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose
accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede &
Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is
to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information
from the County of the Registrar/Paying Agent on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings
shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing
instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in
bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC,
Registrar/Paying Agent or the County, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in
effect from time to time. Payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an
authorized representative of DTC) are the responsibility of the County and the Registrar/Paying Agent,
disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of
such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of the Direct and Indirect Participants.
The County can give no assurance that Direct and Indirect Participants will promptly transfer payments to
Beneficial Owners.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by
giving reasonable notice to the County or the Registrar/Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the
event that a successor depository is not obtained, bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered to
the Beneficial Owners as described in the Bond Ordinance (as defined herein in “Authorization”). The
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, upon registration of certificates held in the Beneficial Owners’ names, will
become the registered owners of the Bonds.

The County may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC
(or a successor securities depository). In that event, bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained
from sources that the County believes to be reliable, but the County takes no responsibility for the accuracy
thereof.

The County has no responsibility or obligation to the Participants or the Beneficial Owners with
respect to (1) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any Participant, or the maintenance of any
records; (2) the payment by DTC or any Participant of any amount due to any Beneficial Owner in respect
of the Bonds, or the sending of any transaction statements; (3) the delivery or timeliness of delivery by DTC
or any Participant of any notice to any Beneficial Owner which is required or permitted under the Bond
Ordinance to be given to Owners; (4) the selection of the Beneficial Owners to receive payments upon any
partial redemption of the Bonds; or (5) any consent given or other action taken by DTC or its nominee as the
registered owner of the Bonds, including any action taken pursuant to an omnibus proxy.

BECAUSE DTC IS TREATED AS THE OWNER OF THE BONDS FOR SUBSTANTIALLY
ALL PURPOSES UNDER THE BOND RESOLUTION, BENEFICIAL OWNERS MAY HAVE A
RESTRICTED ABILITY TO INFLUENCE IN A TIMELY FASHION REMEDIAL ACTION OR THE
GIVING OR WITHHOLDING OF REQUESTED CONSENTS OR OTHER DIRECTIONS. IN
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ADDITION, BECAUSE THE IDENTITY OF BENEFICIAL OWNERS IS UNKNOWN TO THE
COUNTY, TO DTC OR TO THE REGISTRAR/PAYING AGENT, IT MAY BE DIFFICULT TO
TRANSMIT INFORMATION OF POTENTIAL INTEREST TO BENEFICIAL OWNERS IN AN
EFFECTIVE AND TIMELY MANNER.

Discontinuance of Book-Entry-Only System

In the event that the Bonds are no longer in book-entry-only form, the following provisions shall
apply with respect to the Bonds: The County will appoint another securities depository for the Bonds or the
Bonds held by DTC will be cancelled and the County will execute and deliver the Bonds in fully certificated
form to the DTC Participants shown on the records of DTC. If no other securities depository is named,
principal and interest on the Bonds shall be payable to the Registered Owner at maturity upon presentation
and surrender thereof to the Registrar/Paying Agent at its principal corporate trust office. If no other
securities depository is named, interest on the Bonds will be paid by check or draft of the Registrar/Paying
Agent, mailed to the person in whose name the Bond is registered as of the close of business on the fifteenth
day of each month immediately preceding such payment, and principal shall be payable to the Registered
Owner at maturity upon presentation and surrender thereof to the Registrar/Paying Agent at its principal
corporate trust office. The County would then maintain through the Registrar/Paying Agent books of
registry for the purpose of registering ownership and transfer of the Bonds. The Bonds would be
transferable by the registered owner in person or by his duly authorized attorney upon surrender of the
Bonds to be transferred together with a written instrument of transfer duly executed by the registered owner
or his duly authorized attorney. The Registrar/Paying Agent will, upon receipt thereof, authenticate and
deliver a new Bond or Bonds in like principal amount as the Bond so presented. The County and the
Registrar/Paying Agent will deem and treat the person in whose name each Bond is registered as the
absolute owner thereof for all purposes.

Redemption of the Bonds

The Bonds maturing on or before March 1, 2021, are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. The
Bonds maturing on or after March 1, 2022, are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the
County, on or after March 1, 2021, in whole or in part at any time, at a redemption price equal to 100 percent of
the principal amount thereof, plus interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

In the event less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed, the Bonds shall be redeemed in such
order of maturities as shall be determined by the County.

In the event that the County shall, in accordance with the provisions of the Bond Ordinance, elect to
redeem Bonds, it shall give notice to the Registrar and Paying Agent of each optional redemption. Each
such notice shall specify the date fixed for redemption and the Bonds which are to be redeemed.

When any Bonds are to be redeemed, the Registrar shall give notice of the redemption of the Bonds
in the name of the County specifying (i) the Bonds and maturities to be redeemed,; (ii) the redemption date;
(iii) the redemption price; (iv) the numbers and other distinguishing marks of the Bonds to be redeemed
unless all of the Bonds Outstanding are to be redeemed; (v) the place or places where amounts due upon
such redemption will be payable; and (vi) in the case of Bonds to be redeemed in part only, the respective
portions of the principal thereof to be redeemed. Such notice shall further state that on such date there shall
become due and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed the redemption price thereof, together with
interest accrued to the redemption date, and that, from and after such date, interest thereon shall cease to
accrue. The Registrar shall mail by registered mail a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, not less than 30
days before the redemption date to the registered Holders of all Bonds or portions of Bonds which are to be
redeemed at their addresses which appear upon the registration books, but failure to so mail any such notice
to any of such Holders shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of Bonds held by
Holders to whom written notice has been mailed. The obligation of the Registrar to give the notice required
by the Ordinance shall not be conditioned upon the prior payment to the Registrar of money or the delivery
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to the Registrar of Authorized Investments sufficient to pay the principal of the Bonds to which such notice
relates or the interest thereon to the redemption date.

On and after the redemption date (unless the County shall default in the payment of the principal
and accrued interest) all Bonds so called for redemption will cease to bear interest and will no longer be
considered as Outstanding.

Defeasance

If all of the Bonds and all interest thereon shall have been paid and discharged, then the obligations
of the County under the Bond Ordinance and all other rights granted thereby shall cease and determine. The
Bonds shall be deemed to have been paid and discharged under any of the following circumstances, viz.:

Q) If the Registrar/Paying Agent shall hold, at the stated maturities of the Bonds, in trust and
irrevocably appropriated thereto, sufficient moneys for the payment of the Principal Installment and interest
thereof; or

(i) If default in the payment of the principal of the Bonds or the interest thereon shall have
occurred on any Bond Payment Date, and thereafter tender of payment shall have been made, and at such
time as the Registrar/Paying Agent shall hold in trust and irrevocably appropriated thereto sufficient moneys
for the payment thereof to the date of the tender of such payment; or

(iii) If the County shall elect to provide for the payment of the Bonds prior to their stated
maturities and shall have deposited with the Paying Agent in an irrevocable trust moneys which shall be
sufficient, or Government Obligations, the principal of and interest on which when due will provide
moneys, which together with moneys, if any, deposited with said Paying Agent at the same time, shall be
sufficient to pay when due the Principal Installment and interest due and to become due on the Bonds on and
prior to their maturity dates. “Government obligations” as used in the preceding sentence means and
includes direct general obligations of the United States of America or agencies thereof or obligations, the
payment of principal or interest on which is fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of
America.

Purpose
The Bonds are being issued for the purposes of (a) refunding the County’s Series 2002 General
Obligation Bonds, (b) defraying a portion of the costs of the Improvements, and (c) paying certain costs of
issuance of the Bonds. The allocation of the Bonds to such purposes is estimated as follows:
Refunding of Series 2002 General Obligation Bonds $

Capital Improvements

Costs of Issuance

Total $5,000,000



Security

For the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, the full faith, credit, resources and taxing
power of the County will be irrevocably pledged, and there will be levied annually by the Auditor of the
County and collected by the Treasurer of the County, in the same manner as County taxes are levied and
collected, a tax, without limit, on all taxable property in the County sufficient to pay the principal of and
interest on such portion of the Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be
necessary therefor.

Additional Security for the Bonds

Avrticle X, Section 14, Paragraph (5) of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, as
amended, provides:

If at any time any political subdivision shall fail to effect the
punctual payment of the principal and interest of its general
obligation debt, the State Treasurer shall withhold from such
political subdivision sufficient moneys from any state
appropriation to which such political subdivision may be entitled
and apply so much as shall be necessary to the payment of the
principal and interest on the indebtedness of the political
subdivision then due.

As is the case with the enforcement of the pledge of the full faith, credit, resources, and taxing
powers of the County, mandamus may be available to require the State Treasurer to fulfill the duty imposed
by the provision of Article X referred to above.

The following table shows the amount of State General Fund appropriations subject to being so
withheld which were received by the County for the fiscal years shown below:

Fiscal Year Amount

Ended June 30 Received
2011@ $5,200,000
2010 5,770,740
2009 6,912,138
2008 7,248,149
2007 6,517,430

@ Budgeted.
Miscellaneous

Neither the Bonds nor any of the documents relating to their issuance contain any covenants or
periodic reporting requirements that could result in a default. Payment of principal of and interest on the
Bonds may be enforced against the County, and the pledge of the full faith, credit, resources, and taxing
power is enforceable by mandamus. The Bonds contain no provision for amendment of any of the terms
thereof.



THE COUNTY

General Description

The County was established in 1888 and is located in the northeast section of South Carolina, which
is also known as the Pee Dee region. The County has an area of 806 square miles and is bordered on the
east by the Great Pee Dee River, on the south by Clarendon and Williamsburg Counties, on the southwest
by Sumter County, on the west by Darlington and Lee Counties, and on the north by Darlington, Marlboro,
and Dillon Counties. The County’s population in 2010 population was 135,158. The City of Florence, the
largest municipality in the County and the county seat, had a 2010 population of 37,056.

Form of Government

The County operates under the Council-Administrator form of government in accordance with Title
4, Chapter 9 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (known as the Home Rule Act). A
nine member County Council is elected from single member districts for staggered four year terms. The
Chairman is appointed by the Council at its first meeting in January of each year. Vacancies of members of
the Council are filled through special elections, or by appointment by the Governor, depending on the
balance of the term of office. The County Council is responsible for adopting an annual budget for all
county departments and ordering the levy of ad valorem taxes necessary to carry out County functions and
to pay County indebtedness.

The present members of the Florence County Council, their respective occupations and years of
service, are as follows:

Name Occupation Years of Service
K. G. “Rusty” Smith, Chairman Farm Implement Dealer 24 Years
Waymon Mumford, Vice Chairman  Private Security 16 Years
Russell W. Culberson Self-Employed 18 Years
Mitchell Kirby Self-Employed 18 Years
Johnnie D. Rodgers, Jr. Self-employed 10 Years
James T. Schofield Owner — Hardware Supply Company 6 Years

H. Morris Anderson, Sec/Chaplain Retired Veterinarian 6 Years
Alphonso Bradley School Administrator 4 Years
Roger M. Poston® Retired 4 Months

@ Elected in a special election on May 17, 2011 to fill the unexpired term of J. Ken Ard, who resigned his seat upon being
elected Lieutenant Governor of South Carolina.

In addition to the County Council, a number of other county officials are elected, including the
County Treasurer, County Auditor, Clerk of Court, Probate Judge, Sheriff, Coroner, and Solicitor.

The County Council employs a County Administrator who acts as the chief administrative officer of
the County and is responsible for the administration of all departments of the County government which the
County Council controls. The County Administrator serves at the pleasure of the County Council. The
powers and duties of the Administrator include: (1) to execute policies, directives and legislative actions of
the County Council; (2) to direct and coordinate the operational agencies and administrative activities of the
County; (3) to prepare annual operating and capital improvement budgets for submission to County Council;
(4) to supervise the expenditure of appropriated funds; (5) to prepare reports for County Council regarding
financial and administrative activities of the County; (6) to administer the County’s personnel policies; and
(7) to be responsible for employment and discharge of personnel in those departments of the County in
which employment authority over personnel is vested in County government.
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The County Administrator is Richard A. Starks. Mr. Starks was appointed to his position in
September, 2005. Prior to coming to Florence County, Mr. Starks served as the County Administrator for
Colleton County, South Carolina for a period of five (5) years. Mr. Starks is recognized by the International
City/County Management Association as a Credentialed Manager, as well as being a Certified Government
Financial Manager. Mr. Starks earned his Masters of Public Administration from Troy State University and
is an alumnus of the South Carolina Budget and Control Board Executive Institute. Mr. Starks has
announced his retirement effective December 2, 2011. Beginning in April, 2011, a search committee of
Council advertised the position of County Administrator, received applications, and interviewed candidates.
On October 13, 2011, Council offered the position to Thomas B. Robinson, who was previously the County
Administrator for Rockingham County, North Carolina. Mr. Robinson has accepted the position, although
no contract has been negotiated.

The County Finance Director is Kevin V. Yokim, who has been employed in that position since
April 22, 1996. Mr. Yokim is a native of Connecticut, and was a certified public accountant in both
Greenville, South Carolina and Florence prior to becoming County Finance Director.

Services Provided By the County

The County operates and maintains various programs which are funded from County revenues, as
reflected in its annual budgets for Fiscal Year 2010-11 and 2011-12, summaries of which are shown below
under “Summary of General Fund Budget.” These programs include:

@ General Government
(b) Public Safety

(© Public Works

(d) Health

() Welfare

® Culture & Recreation
(@) Education

During Fiscal Year 2010-11, the County has employed approximately 768 employees, consisting of
719 full-time employees and 49 part-time employees. During Fiscal Year 2009-10, the County had 771
employees, consisting of 722 full-time employees and 49 part-time employees.

Services Provided By Other Governmental Entities

The nine municipalities within the County also provide some of the services listed above and
additional services, including water and sewer services, not provided by the County.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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FINANCIAL AND TAX INFORMATION

Five Year Summary of General Fund Operations

The following table sets forth a summary of the County’s General Fund operations as of June 30 of

each of the years shown:

Revenues

Taxes®

Licenses, Permits and Fees
Charges for Services
Intergovernmental Revenues
Fines and Forfeits
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
General Government

Public Safety

Public Works

Health

Welfare

Culture and recreation
Education

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of capital lease
Operating transfer in
Operating transfer out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
& Other Uses

Fund Balance - July 1

Fund Balance - June 30

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
$12,039,217  $28,565,666 $31,111,747  $30,446,052  $29,742,204
4,766,632 1,875,734 1,748,527 1,973,556 1,832,795
3,635,353 3,870,461 4,119,248 4,107,030 3,763,725
7,536,294 7,890,855 8,788,308 8,536,469 7,064,611
2,812,062 4565619 4,491,437 5,023,064 5,130,255
1,392,909 1,187,856  1.463.778 1,144,729 628,714
$32,182,467  $47,956,191 $51,723045  $51,230,000  $48,162,304
$15,700,650  $16,901,105 $18,245116  $20,436,320  $24,590,755
12,354 15365944 15876001 16,427,641 17,001,431
3,942,128 1,378,720 1,266,520 1,555,669 1,808,937
4,526,642 4962215 5,306,509 5,411,166 5,329,598
517,884 503,269 495,905 480,658 456,021
2,693,075 4933198 4,812,137 4,859,932 5,286,989
4,950 4,950 4,950 4,950 4,901
$27,397,683  $44,049,404 $46,007,138  $49,176,336  $54,478,632
$4,784,784  $3,906,787  $5,715,907 2,054,564  (6,316,328)
749,110 970,661 - - -
2,301,511 4,771,925 1,855,032 896,009 3,426,099
(8,300,344)  (4,398.934) (3,943,084)  (3.814,969)  (2.402,456)
($5,249,723)  $1,343,652 ($2,088,052)  ($2,918,960)  $1,023,643
($464,939)  $5250,439  $3,627,855  ($864,396)  ($5,292,685)
$9.743,828  $9.278,889 $14520.328  $18,157,183  $17,292.787
$9.278,889  $14,529.328 $18,157,183  $17,292.787  $12,000,102¢

@ Increase in tax revenues from 2006 to 2007 due to multiple special revenue funds (Law Enforcement, Library Operations, Emergency
Management and Senior Center) being consolidated into the general fund.

@ Includes Local Option Sales Tax.

® Reduction in Fund Balance due primarily to purchase of real property for future facility expansion and amounts utilized for economic
incentives for businesses locating in the County. $1,740,00 of fund balance expenditures was budgeted for General Fund.
The County’s general fund balance as of June 30, 2011 is estimated to be $12,200,000, approximately $11,100,000 of which is

undesignated and unencumbered.

Source: Audited financial statements of the County.
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Financial Statements

The financial statements of the County for the years ended June 30, 2006 through 2010 have been
audited by Baird & Company, LLP, Certified Public Accountants. A copy of the general purpose financial
statements of the County for the year ended June 30, 2010 is attached to this Official Statement as Appendix
A. Copies of complete audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2010 and prior years are
available for inspection in the office of Kevin V. Yokim, Finance Director, 180 N. Irby Street, Florence,
South  Carolina 29501, telephone (843) 665-3013 and on the County’s website at
www.florenceco.org/offices/finance.

Budget Procedure and Accounting Policies

The South Carolina State Constitution requires each county to prepare and maintain annual budgets
which provide for sufficient income to meet its estimated expenses for each year. If a county’s expenses
exceed income in any year, the governing body of the county is required in the following year to levy taxes
in an amount which, when added to all other sources of income will be sufficient to pay such deficiency and
the estimated expenses for such year.

Pursuant to Section 4-9-10 et seq., Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976 as amended (the “Home
Rule Act”) provides that the fiscal year for county governments begins on July 1 of each year and ends on
June 30 of the following year. The County Council is required to adopt annually, prior to the beginning of
each fiscal year, operating and capital budgets for the operation of county government. The budgets must
identify the sources of anticipated revenue, including taxes necessary to meet the financial requirements of
the budgets adopted.

Each year, all agencies of the County submit requests for appropriations to the County Finance
Director so that a proposed budget may be formulated. The budget is prepared by fund, function and
activity and includes information on the past year, current year estimates and requested appropriations for
the next fiscal year. The proposed budget is presented to County Council for review and revision. A public
hearing, after due notice has been provided, is held to allow public input as to the proposed budget.
Pursuant to the provision of the Home Rule Act, County Council must then take formal action by an
ordinance in adopting its annual budget. All ordinances are required to be read at three public meetings of
County Council on three separate days with an interval of not less than seven days between the second and
third reading. In order to modify the original ordinance adopting the budget, formal action must again be
taken by ordinance with due notice provided.

The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which
is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set
of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures, as
appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds for the purpose of
conducting specific activities in accordance with laws, regulations or other restrictions.

The County’s accounting methods and procedures conform to generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to governmental entities. The financial statements include all funds, account groups,
agencies, boards, commissions and authorities of the County and its component unit.

Pursuant to Section 6-1-320, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976 as amended, the County’s
annual millage rate for operations may increase only at a rate equal to the sum of (a) the increase in the
consumer price index, plus (b) the rate of population growth of the County. This limitation may be
overridden by a vote of two-thirds of the governing body of the County, but only for the following purposes
and only in a year in which such condition exists:
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(1)
(@)

(3)
(4)

Q)

a deficiency of the preceding year;

any catastrophic event outside the control of the County Council such as a natural
disaster, severe weather event, act of God, or act of terrorism, fire, war, or riot;
compliance with a court order or decree;

taxpayer closure due to circumstances outside the control of the County Council
that decreases by ten percent or more the amount of revenue payable to the taxing
jurisdiction in the preceding year; or

compliance with a regulation promulgated or statute enacted by the federal or state
government after the ratification date of this section for which an appropriation or a
method for obtaining an appropriation is not provided by the federal or state
government.

Summary of General Fund Budget

The County General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2011-12 provides for expenditures of
$48,229,641 as compared to $48,982,950 expended for 2010-11 (unaudited), $54,478,632 expended for
2009-10, and $49,176,336 expended for 2008-09.

Set forth below are summaries of the unaudited general fund revenues and expenditures for the
County’s General Fund for Fiscal Year 2010-11 and the County’s General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year

2011-12.
2010-11® 2011-12
SOURCES OF FUNDS AMOUNT AMOUNT
Taxes $32,433,378 $33,016,586
Licenses and Permits 1,848,745 1,343,676
Fines and Fees 3,450,226 3,531,342
Intergovernmental 5,938,846 5,380,549
Revenue from service charges & fees 5,469,111 5,493,889
Miscellaneous transfers in/out (net) (1,619,689) (536,401)
Total Revenues $47,520,617 $48,229,641
EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS
General Government $21,034,386 $19,227,071
Public Safety 16,768,413 17,431,601
Public works® 0 0
Health 5,399,560 5,859,753
Welfare 430,833 439,075
Culture and Recreation 5,344,955 5,267,626
Education 4,803 4,515
Total Expenditures $48,982,950 $48,229,641

® Unaudited.

@ public works accounted for in separate special revenue fund.
Source: County Finance Director.
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County Operating Revenues

The audited financial statements of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, indicate that
59.43% of general fund revenues came from taxpayers of the County; 16.66% came from intergovernmental
revenues; and 17.82% came from fees, fines, charges and services charged by the County. The audited
financial statements of the County for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010 indicate that 61.75% of general
fund revenues came from taxpayers of the County; 14.67% came from intergovernmental revenues; and
18.47% came from fees, fines, charges and services charged by the County.

Revenues from Ad Valorem Taxes. The largest source of County operating revenues comes from ad
valorem taxes (excluding amounts received from the Local Option Sales Tax) paid by taxpayers within the
County. A discussion of general tax information, tax rates and millage levied upon taxpayers of the County
for County purposes is presented below. All the revenues from ad valorem taxes and fees in lieu of taxes
(see “Payments in Lieu of Taxes” herein) are either general fund revenues and may therefore be used by the
County on an unrestricted basis or are collected for the purposes of paying debt service on general
obligation bonds of the County, or with respect to fees in lieu of taxes, special source revenue bonds of the
County. During the past five fiscal years for which information is available, the County received the
following amounts as general fund revenues from ad valorem taxes and fees in lieu of taxes:

Fiscal Year Local Fee-in-Lieu
June 30 Revenues of Taxes
2010-11® $20,061,714 $2,020,000
2009-10 17,277,769 2,017,241
2008-09 17,542,244 2,002,927
2007-08 17,700,585 1,721,742
2006-07 15,750,585 1,578,149
2005-06 6,021,633 1,103,703

@ Budgeted.
Local Option Sales Tax

A one percent sales tax (the “Local Option Sales Tax’) was imposed in the County beginning May
1, 1994. The sales tax is authorized pursuant to Sections 4-10-10 et seq, Code of Laws of South Carolina,
1976, as amended, and a referendum by which the imposition of the tax in the County was approved. The
Local Option Sales Tax may be terminated upon approval thereof by referendum; a referendum shall be
called upon the filing of a petition signed by at least 15% of the qualified electors of the County.

Revenues collected from the Local Option Sales Tax are by law divided into a “Property Tax Credit
Fund” and a “County/Municipal Revenue Fund.” Presently, 100% of all collections are allocated to the
Property Tax Credit Fund. The Property Tax Credit Fund is distributed to the county government (67%)
and all municipalities within the county (33% total). The municipalities’ 33% share is allocated based upon
the population of each municipality as compared to the total municipal population within the county. All
amounts allocated from the Property Tax Credit Fund must be applied to a reduction in ad valorem property
tax millage; the reduction applicable to a given parcel or item of taxable property is based upon the assessed
value of such property compared to the assessed value of all property within the taxing jurisdiction.

Revenues not distributed to the Property Tax Credit Fund, if any, must be deposited in the
County/Municipal Revenue Fund. Fifty percent of such revenue is distributed based upon the location of the
sale, and the remaining fifty percent is distributed based upon population. County/Municipal Revenue Fund
moneys may be deposited to the general fund of a county or municipality, or applied to provide additional
millage rollback. As to those counties in which annual Local Option Sales Tax collections exceed five
million dollars or more, the State Treasurer is charged with withholding a portion of such collections, not to
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exceed five percent, for distribution to other counties which have adopted the Local Option Sales Tax but
have not collected an amount at least equal to a defined annual minimum amount. The annual minimum
amount is equal to two million dollars in the first year of collections within a county, and increases annually
based upon a statutory formula.

The following table shows total Local Option Sales Tax Collections for the years shown:

Reserved for

Total Applied to Rollback In
Year Receipts Rollback Future Years

2010-11 $12,187,658 $11,281,040 $906,618
2009-10 11,839,934 12,729,095 (889,161)
2008-09 12,558,014 13,835,271 (1,277,257)
2007-08 13,208,835 13,836,772 (627,937)
2006-07 13,097,498 13,032,620 64,848

Source: County Finance Director.

Capital Project Sales Tax

At a referendum held on November 7, 2006, the voters of Florence County approved a one cent
Capital Project Sales Tax (the “CPST”) pursuant to pursuant to Sections 4-10-300 et seq., Code of Laws of
South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “CPST Act”) for the following road improvement projects (the
“Projects”) within the County:

@ Widening of Pine Needles Road from South Ebenezer Road to Southborough Road;
2 Widening of US Highway 378 from US Highway 52 to SC Highway 41;

(3) Widening of US Highway 76 from Interstate 95 to Timmonsville;

4 Widening of TV Road from Wilson Road to Interstate 95;

(5) Widening of SC Highway 51 from Claussen Road to US Highway 378; and

(6) Completion of the US Highway 301 Bypass from US Highway 76 to US Highway 52.

The CPST is projected to generate approximately $148,000,000 in revenue for the Projects, which
amount will be used to match a $250,000,000 grant from the South Carolina State Infrastructure Bank for
the Projects.

The CPST is imposed at the rate of 1% percent on retail sales in the County. The CPST was
imposed beginning on May 1, 2007. The term of imposition of the CPST is the earlier of seven years or the
date by which the CPST produces $148,000,000 for the Projects.

The CPST is administered and collected by the South Carolina Department of Revenue in the same
manner as other sales and use taxes. The revenues of the tax are remitted to the South Carolina Department
of Revenue and placed on deposit with the State Treasurer and credited to a fund separate and distinct from
the General Fund of the State. After deducting the amount of any refunds made and costs to the South
Carolina Department of Revenue of administering the tax (not to exceed one percent of the revenues), the
State Treasurer will distribute the revenues quarterly to the County Treasurer and the revenues must be used
only for the purposes stated in the imposition ordinance. Net revenue derived from the collection of CPST is
remitted quarterly in January, April, July, and October, by the State Treasurer’s Office to the County
Treasurer. Net revenues received by the County Treasurer are deposited into a separate Capital Projects
Sales Tax fund and applied solely to costs of the Projects. Any funds remaining in the Capital Projects Sales
Tax fund after the completion of the Projects must be expended as directed by the County Council, but only
on the type of expenditures permitted by the CPST Act.
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Capital Projects Sales Tax Collections

The table below sets forth the amount of net Capital Projects Sales Tax revenues remitted to the
County Treasurer during the past five fiscal years.

Fiscal Year Capital Projects
Ended June 30 Sales Tax Received
2011® $20,579,622
2010 19,390,358
2009 19,972,452
2008 19,734,297

@ Unaudited.
Source: Florence County Finance Director

Local Hospitality And Accommodations Fees

The County also imposes a local hospitality fee (the “Hospitality Fee”) on all amounts paid for
prepared food and beverages purchase in the County pursuant to Article 7 of Chapter 1 of Title 6 of the
Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976 (the “Hospitality Fee Act”). The Hospitality Fee is imposed by the
County at a rate of 2% in unincorporated areas on the County and an effective rate of 1% within seven of
County’s nine municipalities, with 1% in those seven municipalities either collected by or remitted to the
municipality in question. The County’s other two municipalities (Florence and Pamplico) have their own
hospitality fee which predates and preempts that of the County.

Imposition of the Hospitality Fee began October 1, 2008. The table below sets forth the amount of
net Hospitality Fee revenues remitted to the County Treasurer during the past three fiscal years.

Fiscal Year Hospitality
Ended June 30 Fees Received
2011® $1,303,579.81
2010 1,192,914.23
2009@ 801,408.78

@ Unaudited.
@ Nine months of collections from October 1, 2008.
Source: Florence County Finance Director

In addition to the Hospitality Fee, the County imposes a local accommodations fee (the
“Accommaodations Fee”) pursuant to Article 5 of Chapter 1 of Title 6 of the Code of Laws of South
Carolina, 1976 (the “Accommodations Fee Act”). The Accommodations Fee is imposed by the County at
the rate of 3% in all parts of the County on amounts paid for accommodations furnished to transients in the
County.
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The table below sets forth the amount of net Accommaodations Fee revenues remitted to the County
Treasurer during the past five fiscal years.

Fiscal Year Accommodations
Ended June 30 Fees Received
2011® $1,356,318
2010 1,349,580
2009 1,334,885
2008 1,321,383
2007 1,170,226

@ Unaudited.
Source: Florence County Finance Director

The receipts of both the Hospitality Fee and the Accommodations Fee must be used for “tourism-related”
expenditures, which include:

(1) tourism-related buildings including, but not limited to, civic centers, coliseums, and aquariums;
(2) tourism-related cultural, recreational, or historic facilities;

(3) beach access, renourishment, or other tourism-related lands and water access;

(4) highways, roads, streets, and bridges providing access to tourist destinations;

(5) advertisements and promotions related to tourism development; or

(6) water and sewer infrastructure to serve tourism-related demand.

In addition, because the County has exceeded $900,000 in annual collections of accommodations
taxes imposed by the State of South Carolina, both the Hospitality Fee and the Accommodations Fee may be
used for operation and maintenance of those items provided in (1) through (6) above, including police, fire
protection, emergency medical services, and emergency-preparedness operations directly attendant to those
facilities.

Council has approved, but has not yet issued, a $3,900,000 Hospitality Fee Revenue Bond of the
County (the “Hospitality Fee Bond”). The Hospitality Fee Bond will be secured by and payable from
revenues of the Hospitality Fee, and its proceeds will be used to pay a portion of the cost of a new, 27,000
square foot County Museum building. It is anticipated that the Hospitality Fee Bond will be issued in
November, 2011.

Permitted Investments

Pursuant to Section 6-5-10 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, the County
Treasurer invests money subject to the control and jurisdiction in investments specified under Section 6-5-
10 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended or the South Carolina Pooled Investment
Fund. Section 6-5-10 provides the following investments: (1) obligations of the United States and its
agencies; (2) general obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of its political units; (3) savings and
loan associations to the extent that the same are insured by an agency of the federal government; (4)
certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements which are collaterally secured by securities of the type
described in subsections (1), (2) or (3) of this paragraph; and (5) certain no load open-end or closed-end
management type investment companies or trusts which are, in essence, an indirect investment in
investments of the kind described in (1) and (2) above or repurchase agreements collateralized by such
investments. The South Carolina Pooled Investment Fund is managed by the South Carolina State
Treasurer.
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Fringe Benefits and Retirement

A majority of all employees of the County are members of the South Carolina Retirement System
(SCRYS) or the Police Officers Retirement System (PORS) which are cost-sharing, multi-employer, defined
benefit pension plans administered by the South Carolina Retirement Systems, a division of the South
Carolina State Budget and Control Board. Both systems offer retirement and disability benefits, cost of
living adjustments on an ad hoc basis, life insurance and survivor benefits. Both employees and employers
are required to contribute to the plan. Employees covered under both the SCRS and the PORS are required
to contribute at a rate of 6.5% of salary. Employers are required to contribute at a rate of 9.24% to the
SCRS and 10.65% to the PORS. In addition, participating employers contribute 3.57% of payroll to provide
retiree health and dental insurance; 0.15% of payroll for SCRS and 0.20% for PORS for group life insurance
benefits; and 0.20% of payroll for PORS accidental death benefits.

The payrolls for the covered employees by the SCRS and the PORS for the year ended June 30,
2010 were $18,299,992 and $8,352,106, respectively. The County’s SCRS and PORS contributions for the
years ended June 30, 2010 and June 30, 2009 are as follows:

SCRS
Employee
Contributions
Employer
Contributions

PORS
Employee
Contributions
Employer
Contributions

June 30, 2010
$1,723,477

$1,189,499

$922,908

$542,887

SCRS
Employee
Contributions
Employer
Contributions

PORS
Employee
Contributions
Employer
Contributions

June 30, 2009
$1,670,271

$1,152,531

$926,422

$544,954

The County’s employer contributions for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2008 were $1,321,567
and $1,578,817 for SCRS and $841,001 and $863,067 for PORS, respectively.

Post-Retirement Health Insurance Benefits

The County provides post-retirement healthcare insurance premium assistance in accordance with
the guidelines in the annual budget ordinance to all employees who retire from the County with fifteen or
more years of service, regardless of age, if hired prior to July 1, 2011. Employees hired after June 30, 2011
must retire with at least twenty years of service, regardless of age in order to qualify. Currently, 85 retirees
meet these eligibility requirements. The County pays a portion of the medical and hospitalization insurance
for retirees. The cost of retirees’ healthcare benefits is recognized as an expenditure as claims are paid. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, those costs totaled $224,959. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010,
those costs totaled $264,158.

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the County provides
healthcare benefits to eligible former employees and eligible dependents. Certain requirements are outlined
by the federal government for this coverage. The premium is paid in full by the insured and benefits are
offered for eighteen months after the employee’s termination date.
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Liability Insurance

Subject to specific immunity set forth in the South Carolina Tort Claims Act, local governments
including the County are liable for damages not to exceed $300,000 per incident/person and $600,000 per
occurrence/aggregate. No punitive or exemplary damages are permitted under the Act. Insurance
protection to units of local government is provided from either the South Carolina Insurance Reserve Fund
established by the State Budget and Control Board, private carriers, self insurance or pooled self insurance
funds. The County currently maintains liability insurance coverage with the South Carolina Counties
Property and Liability Trust. In the opinion of the County Administrator, the amount of liability coverage
maintained by the County is sufficient to provide protection against any loss arising under the Act.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

20



CERTAIN FISCAL MATTERS

Property Taxation and Assessment

Article

X, Section 1 of the Constitution requires equal and uniform assessments of property

throughout the State for the following classes of property and at the following ratios of fair market value of

such property:
1)
)

©)
(4)

Q)

(6)
(")

(8)
(9)

Real and personal property owned by or leased to manufacturers, utilities and mining
operations and used in the conduct of such business - 10.5% of fair market value;

Real and personal property owned by or leased to companies primarily engaged in
transportation for hire of persons or property and used in the conduct of such business -
9.5% of fair market value;

Legal residence and not more than five contiguous acres - 4% of fair market value (if the
property owner makes proper application and qualifies);

Agricultural real property used for such purposes owned by individuals and certain
corporations - 4% of use value (if the property owner makes proper application and
qualifies);

Agricultural property and timberlands belonging to corporations having more than 10
shareholders - 6% of use value (if property owner makes proper application and
qualifies);

All other real property - 6% of fair market value;

Business inventories - 6% of fair market value (as of 1988, there is available an exemption
from taxation of property in this category, hence this item is no longer significant, except
that the assessed value of business inventory as of tax year 1987 is taken into account in
determining total assessed value for purposes of the bonded debt limit)

Motor vehicles — 6.0%; and

All other personal property - 10.5% of fair market value.

Homestead Exemption--Property Tax Relief

South Carolina provides, among other exemptions, for homesteads, a general exemption from all ad
valorem property taxes and applies to the first $50,000 of value of the dwelling place of persons who are

over 65 years of

age, totally and permanently disabled or legally blind (the “Homestead Exemption”). In the

case of the Homestead Exemption, the State pays each taxing entity the amount to which it is entitled by

April 15 of each
reimbursing app
with the County:

year from the State’s general fund. The following table shows amounts received by way of
ropriations from the State for Homestead Exemption for all purposes by all taxing entities

Tax Homestead

Year Exemption
2010 $2,200,959

2009 2,137,136
2008 1,881,627
2007 1,840,775
2006 4,197,106
2005 3,825,644

Source: County Treasurer

21



Payments in Lieu of Taxes

Several of the largest taxpayers in Florence County pay a “payment in lieu” of taxes with respect to
new manufacturing projects, and each year new payment in lieu arrangements are made with other new
manufacturing investments. The State of South Carolina has adopted an array of property tax inducements
and incentives to promote investment in the State. Qualifying investments of $2.5 million ($1 million in
some counties and for certain “brownfield” sites) or more may be negotiated for payments in lieu of taxes
for a period of 20 years based on assessment ratios of as little as 6% and using millage rates that are either
fixed for 20 years or adjusted every fifth year. In some cases, owners of projects may also design a payment
schedule so long as the present value of the payments under the schedule are equal to the present value of
the payments that would have been made without the schedule. The State also provides a more generous
inducement for projects creating at least 200 new jobs and providing new invested capital of not less than
$200 million and a total investment of not less than $400 million. For these projects payments may be
negotiated based on assessment ratios of as low as 4% and for a term of 30 years.

The State provides alternative provisions respecting the distribution of payments in lieu of taxes to
entities having taxing jurisdiction at the location of the investment: (i) revenues received in respect of
property that is not included in a multicounty industrial park (“MCIP”) are allocated annually in proportion
to the amounts that would have been received by the taxing entities if the payments were taxes, based on the
relative millage rates of overlapping taxing entities in a given year; (ii) revenues received from property that
is in an MCIP, however, is distributed in accordance with the agreement creating the park; the amount of the
distribution to each taxing entity is, for all practical purposes, controlled by the County. Property may be
included in an MCIP under terms of agreements between two or more counties with individual sites being
determined primarily by the county in which they are located. Payments in lieu of taxes may be diverted
from taxing entities to fund projects which support economic development activities, including projects that
are used solely by a single enterprise, either directly or through the issuance of special source revenue bonds
secured by payments in lieu of taxes. A county government may also divert payments in lieu of taxes
derived from an MCIP to its own corporate purposes or those of other taxing entities in that county.

Projects on which payments in lieu of taxes are made are considered taxable property at the level of
the negotiated payment for purposes of calculating bonded indebtedness limits and for purposes of
computing the index of taxpaying ability pursuant to the South Carolina Education Financing Act. If the
property is situated in an MCIP, the calculation of assessed value for debt limit purposes is based upon the
relative share of payments received by all taxing entities which overlap the MCIP. Accordingly, a recipient
of payments from an MCIP is able to include only a fraction of the assessed value of property therein in
calculating its debt limit.

If a county, municipality or special purpose district pledges to the repayment of special source
revenue bonds any portion of the revenues received by it from a payment in lieu of taxes, it may not include
in the calculation of its general obligation debt limit the value of the property that is the basis of the pledged
portion of revenues. If such political subdivision, prior to pledging revenues to secure a special source
revenue bond, has included an amount representing the value of a parcel or item of property that is the
subject of a payment in lieu of taxes in the assessed value of taxable property located in the political
subdivision and has issued general obligation debt within a debt limit calculated on the basis of such
assessed value, then it may not pledge revenues based on the item or parcel of property, to the extent that the
amount representing its value is necessary to permit the outstanding general obligation debt to not exceed
the debt limit of the political subdivision.

As an alternative to the issuance of special source revenue bonds, the owners of qualifying projects
may receive a credit against payments in lieu of taxes due from the project to pay certain project costs. If a
county, municipality or special purpose district agrees to allow a credit against the payments in lieu of taxes
it would otherwise receive, it is subject to the limitations on calculation of its debt limit as described in the
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preceding paragraph.

Exempt Manufacturing Property

Avrticle X, Section 3 of the Constitution provides that all new manufacturing establishments located
in any county after July 1, 1977, and all additions (in excess of $50,000) to existing manufacturing
establishments are exempt from ad valorem taxation for five years for county taxes only. No exemption is
granted from school or municipal taxes, although municipal governing bodies may grant a similar
exemption to manufacturing establishments. The table below shows the level of tax-exempt manufacturing
property located within the County for the tax years shown below.

Tax Exempt
Year Assessed Value
2011@ $11,500,000
2010@ 11,362,204
2009 11,247,510
2008 9,301,650
2007 8,498,440
2006 9,871,210

@ Projected.
@ Unaudited
Source: County Auditor.

Millage History

The millage assessed for County general fund operations and debt service in each of the last five
fiscal years is set forth below:

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12

Operations 67.9 67.9 67.9 67.9 68.9
Debt Service 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 8.0
Total 76.9 76.9 76.9 76.9 76.9

Source: County Auditor.
Assessed Value

Set forth below is the assessed value of taxable real and personal property of the County for the last
five fiscal years for which data is available.

Fiscal Year Tax Real Personal Total
Ended June 30 Year Property Property Assessed Value
2010 2009 $307,684,623 $123,645,363 $431,329,986
2009 2008 299,687,483 126,360,229 426,047,712
2008 2007 289,731,772 128,615,228 418,347,000
2007 2006 280,790,362 132,733,870 413,524,232
2006 2005 273,404,173 133,343,735 406,747,908

@ Reassessment.

Excludes the assessed value of motor carrier reimbursements, reimbursements of manufacturer’s depreciation, assessment of property
otherwise subject to negotiated fees in lieu of taxes, property situated in a multi-county industrial park and Merchants’ Inventory. Also
excludes manufacturing property exempt from county taxes.

Source: County Auditor.
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2010 Market Value/Assessment Summary of the County

Assessment
Class of Property Market Value Ratio Assessed Value
1. Real Property and Mobile Homes $3,802,951,420 4.00% $152,118,043
2,380,981,039 6.00% 142,859,234
2. Motor Vehicles 766,957,637 6.00% 49,352,720
3. Public Utilities 261,075,134 10.50% 27,412,890
4. Manufacturing Property - Real 122,565,194 10.50% 12,707,346
Manufacturing Property — Personal 192,100,573 10.50% 20,170,561
5. Marine Equipment 25,169,392 10.50% 1,510,164
6. Airplanes 6,063,250 4.00% 242,530
7. Railroads 22,876,299 9.50% 2,173,249
8. Business Personal Property 59,619,428 10.50% 6,260,041
9. Merchant’s Fixtures and Equipment 157,363,875 10.50% 16,523,208
TOTAL $7,797,723,241 $431,329,986

Excludes the assessed value of Merchant’s Inventory in the amount of $5,243,092; motor carrier reimbursements pursuant to §12-37-
2810 et seq. of the South Carolina Code in the amount of $2,012,716; reimbursements of manufacturer’s depreciation pursuant to §12-
37-935(b) of the South Carolina Code in the amount of $2,760,720; assessment of property otherwise subject to negotiated fees in lieu of
taxes in the amount of $34,332,043; and property situated in a multi-county industrial park in the amount of $738,563. Also excludes
manufacturing property exempt from county taxes.

Source: County Auditor.

Tax Collection Procedure

Real and personal taxes in the County are due on or before January 15 of each year with the
exception of taxes on motor vehicles. All personal property taxes on motor vehicles are due on or before the
last day of the month in which the license tag for each such motor vehicle expires. If property taxes, other
than taxes on motor vehicles, are not paid before January 16, a penalty of 3% is added; if not paid before
February 2, an additional penalty of 7% is added; if not paid before March 17, an additional penalty of 5% is
added and taxes go into execution. Taxes on motor vehicles are subject to similar penalties measured from
due date thereof. Unpaid taxes, both real and personal, constitute a first lien against the property. The
County Treasurer is responsible for the collection of delinquent taxes and is empowered to seize and sell so
much of the defaulting taxpayer's estate - real and personal or both - as may be sufficient to satisfy the taxes.
Act 388 allows taxpayers to pay property taxes in periodic installments, with the last installment due as of
January 15 of each year.

Tax Collections in the County

The following table shows the amount of taxes levied in the County (adjusted to include additions,
abatements, and nulla bonae), and taxes collected as of June 30 of the year following the year in which the
levy was made, for fiscal years 2007 through 2010. Delinquent taxes include taxes levied in prior years but
collected in the year shown.

Fiscal Taxes Subject Current Current % Delinquent Total Total %

Year to Collection Collections Collected Taxes Collected Collections Collected
2009-10 27,810,812 26,961,498 96.95% 464,808 27,426,306 98.62%
2008-09 26,821,494 25,263,988 94.19 577,313 25,841,301 96.35
2007-08 25,854,174 25,121,390 97.17 365,415 25,486,805 98.58
2006-07 25,850,962 25,246,830 97.66 405,624 25,652,454 99.23

@ Unaudited. Collected in Fiscal Year 2010-11.
Includes homestead exemptions, fee-in-lieu payments and manufacturers exemption.
Source: County Treasurer
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Ten Largest Taxpayers

The 10 largest taxpayers in the County, the 2010 assessed value of the taxable property of each
located within the County and the estimated amount of 2010-11 Fiscal Year taxes paid to all taxpaying
entities in the County are shown in the following table:

Total Taxes and

Assessed Fee in Lieu Fee in Lieu of

Taxpayer Valuation Taxes Paid® of Taxes® Taxes Paid®
1. Progress Energy $10,845,885 $3,199,536 0 $3,199,536
2. QHG of South Carolina 9,011,851 2,658,496 0 2,658,496
3. Nan Ya Plastics 7,375,481 2,139,627 $1,048,436 3,188,063
4.  Smurfit/Stone Container 4,016,473 1,263,984 0 1,263,984
5.  McLeod Health 3,150,349 1,082,775 0 1,082,775
6. Bell South 3,655,010 1,078,228 0 1,078,228
7. PREIT/Rubin 2,875,376 848,236 0 848,236
8. SCE&G 2,375,295 700,712 0 700,712
9.  Nucor 2,299,424 678,330 0 678,330
10.  DuPont/Teijin® 1,944,560 611,953 0 611,953

@' Unaudited.

@ Plant closed in 2010.
Source: County Auditor.
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DEBT STRUCTURE

Legal Debt Limit of the County

The County is authorized by law to incur general obligation indebtedness and may also contract for
the acquisition of capital assets through lease-purchase agreements subject to annual appropriation
termination clauses. The County has issued general obligation bonded indebtedness as described below, and
has entered into one lease purchase agreement for equipment which is subject to annual appropriation.
Payment on debt service of the County's obligations is handled by the Florence County Treasurer.

Pursuant to Article X, 814 of the Constitution, the County has a limit on the amount of general
obligation debt it may incur equal to 8% of the assessed valuation of property within its jurisdiction. Any
indebtedness approved in a referendum or any refunding of either is excluded from the limit.

In addition, 88 14 and 12 of Article X of the Constitution provide that bonded indebtedness may be
incurred by counties for sewage disposal or treatment, fire protection, street lighting, garbage collection and
disposal, water service, or any other service or facility benefiting only a particular geographical section of a
county, provided a special assessment, tax, or service charge, in an amount designed to provide debt service
on bonded indebtedness incurred for such purposes, shall be imposed upon the area or persons receiving the
benefit therefrom; and general obligation debt so incurred shall not be considered in computing the bonded
indebtedness of counties under the 8% debt limitation. The County presently has outstanding such general
obligation bonds as follows:

@ The outstanding $200,000 of the original principal amount $500,000 General
Obligation Bond, Series 2000 (Johnsonville Rural Fire District), of the County which matures on
March 1 of each year through 2015;

(b) The outstanding $115,000 of the original principal amount of $210,000 General
Obligation Bond, Series 2003 (Hannah-Salem-Friendfield Fire Protection District), of the County
which matures on October 15 of each year through 2013;

(© The outstanding $327,038.45 of the original principal amount of $950,000 General
Obligation Bond Series 2004 (Howe Springs Fire District), of the County which matures on
February 5 of each year through 2014;

(d) The outstanding $500,999 of the original principal amount of $600,000 General
Obligation Bond, Series 2008 (Windy Hill Fire District), of the County which matures on April 1 of
each year through 2023;

() The outstanding $1,236,940.44 of the original principal amount $1,500,000
General Obligation Bonds (Howe Springs Fire District), Series 2009, of the County which matures
on April 1 of each year through 2019;

0] The outstanding $820,255 of the original principal amount $900,000 General

Obligation Bonds (Windy Hill/Olanta Rural Volunteer Fire District), Series 2010, of the County
which matures on April 1 of each year through 2020.
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The County’s debt limitation is computed below:

Assessed Value for fiscal year 2010 $431,329,986
Plus Assessed Value -- Merchants' Inventory 5,243,092

Net Assessed Value for Computation of Legal debt margin 436,573,078

X 8%
Constitutional Debt Limit $34,925,846
Outstanding Debt Subject to Limit $17,989,390
Legal Debt Available without a Referendum $16,936,456

Not included in the above-calculation is debt limit based upon the value of fee-in-lieu of tax
payments to be received by the County for industrial projects discussed on page 22 in the amount of
$34,332,043. Such debt limit fluctuates each year based upon the payments received in that year and the
overall millage in effect for that year.

Outstanding Debt

In addition to the $3,200,232.89 in general obligation indebtedness payable from taxes levied within
special tax districts discussed on page 26, as of June 30, 2011, which is not chargeable against the County’s
general obligation debt limit, the outstanding bonded and general obligation indebtedness of Florence
County (including all outstanding maturities of the County’s Series 2002 General Obligation Bonds) is
$14,115,000 and includes the following issues:

@) The outstanding $3,765,000 of the original principal amount $10,000,000 General
Obligation Bond, Series 2002®, of the County which mature on March 1 in each of the years as

follows:
$235,000 in the year 2012; 315,000 in the year 2018;
250,000 in the year 2013; 330,000 in the year 2019;
260,000 in the year 2014; 350,000 in the year 2020;
275,000 in the year 2015; 370,000 in the year 2021;
285,000 in the year 2016; 385,000 in the year 2022; and
300,000 in the year 2017; 410,000 in the year 2023.

® To be refunded with a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds.

(b) The outstanding $3,250,000 of the original principal amount $4,200,000 General
Obligation Advanced Refunding Bonds, Series 2005, of the County which mature on April 1 in
each of the years as follows:

$305,000 in the year 2012; 360,000 in the year 2016;
320,000 in the year 2013; 375,000 in the year 2017;
335,000 in the year 2014; 390,000 in the year 2018;
345,000 in the year 2015; 400,000 in the year 2019; and

420,000 in the year 2020.
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() The outstanding $7,100,000 of the original principal amount $7,600,000 General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2006, of the County which mature on February 1 in each of the years as

follows:
$515,000 in the year 2012; 1,020,000 in the year 2016;
535,000 in the year 2013; 1,060,000 in the year 2017,
760,000 in the year 2014; 1,185,000 in the year 2018; and
790,000 in the year 2015; 1,235,000 in the year 2019.

$3,874,390 of the $18,429,677 outstanding principal amount of the County’s 2010 Lease Financing
is also chargeable against the County general obligation debt limit. See “CERTAIN FISCAL MATTERS,
Other Commitments™ herein.

The following table shows the projected annual debt service requirements (principal and interest) on
the outstanding general obligation bonds of the County (excluding the 2002 Bonds, which will be refunded
by the Bonds) and other obligations, the outstanding principal of which is chargeable against the County’s
general obligation debt limit, and on the Bonds, excluding general obligation bonds payable from taxes
levied in special tax districts described on page 26:

Series B Portion

Calendar 2005 2006 of 2010 Lease The
Year Bonds Bonds Financing Bonds Total
2012 $420,920 $772,829 $511,977
2013 424,783 773,141 527,301
2014 427,911 973,860 542,303
2015 425,586 974,798 551,974
2016 427,808 1,170,860 566,358
2017 429,251 1,171,860 580,397
2018 429,810 1,254,766 594,080
2019 424,600 1,258,774
2020 428,400
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

Total $3,839,069 $8,350,888 $3,874,390
Other Commitments

The County was the obligor under certificates of participation issued by the Florence County Public
Facilities Corporation (the “PFC”) in the original principal amount of $42,545,000 on October 1, 1990 (the
“1990 COPS”), to provide funds for the construction of a law enforcement/detention center, a civic center,
and acquiring certain equipment. On December 1, 1992, the PFC issued Certificates of Participation in the
original principal amount of $45,880,000 (the “1992 COPS”) refunding the 1990 COPS; on March 3, 2003
the PFC issued Certificates of Participation in the original, principal amount of $29,515,000 (the “2003
COPS”) refunding the 1992 COPS; and on November 23, 2010, the PFC entered into a Lease-Purchase
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Financing with Branch Banking and Trust Company in the original principal amount of $21,158,666 (the
#2010 Lease Financing”) refunding the 2003 COPS financing and paying the cost of capital improvements
of the County. The County is the obligor with respect to the 2010 Lease Financing, but its obligation to
make payment with respect thereto is subject to annual appropriation.

As of June 30, 2011, the outstanding principal amount of the 2010 Lease Financing of the County,
which matures on May 1 of each year is as follows:

$2,440,730 in the year 2012;
2,503,432 in the year 2013;
2,569,704 in the year 2014;

2,629,457 in the year 2015;
2,692,707 in the year 2016;
2,764,364 in the year 2017; and
2,829,283 in the year 2018.

The amounts outstanding under the 2010 Lease Financing bear interest at a fixed rate of 2.49%.

Because the portion of the principal amount of the 2010 Lease Financing that was used to refund
the 2003 COPS is not chargeable against the County’s general obligation debt limit, and that portion used to
finance capital improvements is so chargeable, payments under the 2010 Lease Financing are divided into
Series A Payments (applicable to that portion of the outstanding principal of the 2010 Lease Financing that
is not chargeable against the County’s general obligation debt limit) and Series B Payments (applicable to
that portion that is so chargeable).

SERIES A PAYMENTS SERIES B PAYMENTS

Date Principal Interest Total Series A Date Principal Interest Total Series B
05/01/2012 1,928,753 362,426.65 2,291,179.65  05/01/2012 511,977 96,472.31 608,449.31
05/01/2013 1,976,131 314,400.70 2,290,531.70  05/01/2013 527,301 83,724.08 611,025.08
05/01/2014 2,027,401 265,195.03 2,292,596.03  05/01/2014 542,303  70,594.29 612,897.29
05/01/2015 2,077,483 214,712.75 2,292,195.75  05/01/2015 551,974  57,090.94 609,064.94
05/01/2016 2,126,349 162,983.42 2,289,332.42  05/01/2016 566,358  43,346.79 609,704.79
05/01/2017 2,183,967 110,037.33 2,294,004.33  05/01/2017 580,397  29,244.48 609,641.48
05/01/2018 2,235,203 55,656.55 2,290,859.55 05/01/2018 594,080 14,792.59 608,872.59

Total 7$14,555,287 $1,485,412.43' $16,040,699.43 $3,874,390 $395,265.48  $4,269,655.48

See “DEBT STRUCTURE, Outstanding Debt” herein.

Revenue Bonds

The County has no outstanding revenue bonds.
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Overlapping Debt

The following table shows local subdivisions which overlap the County and which have outstanding
general obligation debt as of June 30, 2011.

2010 Outstanding
Assessed Value G.O. Debt
Municipalities
City of Florence $159,086,173 $5,345,0000
Town of Quinby 2,517,787 0
Town of Pamplico 2,489,540 58,879
City of Lake City 12,899,799 1,355,903
Town of Olanta 1,510,294 0
Town of Coward 1,013,127 0
Town of Scranton 1,184,384 0
Town of Timmonsville 3,590,081 215,230
City of Johnsonville 4,334,591 0
School Districts
District 1 $354,031,934 $10,710,000
District 2 13,481,049 483,522
District 3 42,325,104 2,736,107
District 4 14,227,179 5,684,149
District 5 12,495,056 2,830,294
Special Purpose Districts
South Lynches Fire District $25,343,219 0

NOTE: The assessed value figures above do not include property for which fee-in-lieu of taxes is paid.
Source:  Florence County Finance Director and municipalities.

Anticipated Capital Needs

The only additional capital needs presently identified by the County for the next five years are
various projects with an estimated total cost of $12,900,000, including a new EMS substation in the
Pamplico area at a cost of $500,000, a new community building in Lake City at a cost of $700,000, and a
new County Museum building in Florence at a total cost of $11,700,000. The County’s contribution to the
County Museum building will be $3,900,000, which amount will be funded by a Hospitality Fee Revenue
Bond which is expected to be issued prior to January 1, 2012. See “FINANCIAL AND TAX
INFORMATION, Local Hospitality and Accommodations Fees” herein.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ECONOMIC CHARACTERISTICS

Description of Florence County, South Carolina

Florence County was established in 1888 and is located in the northeast section of South Carolina,
which is also known as the Pee Dee region. The County has an area of 806 square miles, a 2010 population
of 135,158, and is bordered on the east by the Great Pee Dee River, on the south by Clarendon and
Williamsburg Counties, on the southwest by Sumter County, on the west by Darlington and Lee Counties,
and on the North by Darlington, Marlboro, and Dillon Counties. The City of Florence, the largest
municipality in the County and the county seat, had a 2010 population of 37,056.

The local economy of the County enjoys a well-balanced industrial, agricultural and manufacturing
base. The County’s growth has been underpinned by the expansion of the two hospital systems, McLeod
Regional Medical Center and the Carolinas Hospital System, and the growth of the two major higher
education institutions, Francis Marion University (FMU) and Florence-Darlington Technical College
(“FDTC”). Phase | of the Southeastern Institute of Manufacturing and Technology (“SiMT”) was
completed in Fall, 2008. The SiMT project is located on a 146 acre tract and consists of three phases and
will total more than 400,000 square feet of customized training, laboratory, research, manufacturing,
convention, and administrative space when all phases are completed. Phase I, the Advanced Manufacturing
Center, consists of a $34 million facility which includes an 800 seat auditorium for training and equipment
demonstrations, along with a three dimensional lab where industries can simulate an assembly-line process.
Francis Marion University dedicated the Dr. Frank B. Lee, Jr. Nursing Center in August, 2006, as well as
received initial accreditation for its baccalaureate nursing program from the National League of Nursing.
The new $7.6 million, 36,000 square foot facility houses the nursing program which has increased by fifty
percent (50%) to 48 nursing majors.

In the past four years, the County has seen significant growth in locating new industries, as well as
the expansion of several existing businesses. In June, 2007, McCall Farms opened a new $3.9 million
freezer operation which allowed for the transition from a canning facility to marketing frozen food products.
The expansion will allow for an additional 40 jobs. In July, 2007, QVC, Inc. opened a new 1.4 million
square foot distribution center which employs over 500 people. In September, 2007, Automatic Data
Processing, Inc. (ADP) announced the expansion of its Florence facility. The expansion allowed for an
additional 100 employees. In June, 2008, H. J. Heinz announced the expansion of its frozen meal
production to include a 225,00 square-foot facility in Pee Dee Touchstone Energy’s Commerce City at a
investment of $105 million. On November 18, 2009, Monster.com, an online job recruitment and careers
resource, celebrated the grand opening of its 75,000 square-foot facility located in Pee Dee Touchstone
Energy’s Commerce City and currently employs approximately 150 full-time employees. The
announcement, made in June 2008, stated plans to invest $28 million and create 750 jobs over a five (5) year
period. In October, 2010, MIT (Materials Innovation Technologies) of Lake City announced an award of a
$3 million grant from the Department of Energy for the advancement of vehicle technologies. MIT-RCF
opened in April, 2010 and is a leading advanced materials company. The recent grant will expedite the use
of clean energy technologies and create jobs. In December, 2010, ICE Recycling LLC, a recycler of plastics
and polymers announced a $4.3 million expansion which is expected to generate approximately 50 new
jobs. Groundbreaking for Johnson Controls’ battery recycling facility (announced June, 2008) was held in
January, 2011. The company plans to develop 36 acres of its 270 acre site located off of US Highway 76 for
the facility and parking, which is estimated to create 250 direct jobs and 1,000 indirect jobs with a total
estimated investment of $150 million. On September 16, 2011, Otis Elevator Company officially
announced its Florence operation would be the center of excellence for its North and South American
operations. The company is expected to invest $40 million and bring 360 jobs with an average wage of $25
per hour. The facility is expected to begin operation in the second quarter of 2012.

Since 2008, global economic conditions have led to closures and curtailment of certain business
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operations in the County. Most notably, in July 2009, DuPont Teijin announced the closure of it facility,

which employed 173 people. This closure was completed in December 2010.

In 2010, Roche, parent

company of Roche Carolina, Inc., announced a global restructuring initiative that resulted in the relocation
of the research and development department of the Florence facility to California. The manufacturing

department will remain in Florence.

Top Employers in the County

Set forth below are ten of the top public and private sector employers located in the County, their
type of business and approximate number of employees. There can be no assurance that any employer listed
below will continue to be located in the County. No independent investigation has been made of, and no
representation can be made as to, the stability or financial condition of the employers listed below, except as

noted:

Employer
McLeod Regional Medical Center

Florence School District One

J. P. Morgan Chase

Carolinas Hospital System

Assurant

Nan Ya Plastics Corporation America

TRICARE (Blue Cross Blue Shield)
PGBA

Wal-Mart

Florence County

QVC, Inc.

Source: Florence County Economic Development Office.

Retail Sales

Product/Service
Health Care
Education

Mortgage Services
Health Care
Financial Advisors
Polyester Staple Fiber &
Filament
Insurance Services

Discount Retailer
Government
Distribution

Approximate Number

of Employees
4,700

2,093
1,400
1,325
881
880

850
800

782
580

Retail sales in the amount of $2,494,130,091 as certified by the South Carolina Department of
Revenue have been collected for the first six months of 2011. The following table shows the level of gross

retail sales for businesses located in the County for the last five calendar years.

Calendar
Year
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006

Total
Retail Sales
$4,543,400,319
4,221,380,448
4,703,883,987
4,759,689,665
4,549,338,572

Source: South Carolina Department of Revenue, Administrative Division.
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Per Capita Personal Income

The following table shows the per capita personal income in the County, residence adjusted, for the
years shown:

Year County South Carolina  United States
2010 nfa 33,163 40,584
2009 34,178 32,338 39,626
2008 34,248 32,947 40,673
2007 32,948 32,107 39,458
2006 31,557 30,925 34,698
2005 29,335 29,226 35,424

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce; Bureau of Economic Analysis.
Unemployment
The unemployment rate for the County for August, 2011 was 11.1%. The average unemployment

rate in the County, the State and the United States for each of the last five years for which data is available is
shown in the following table.

Year Florence County South Carolina  United States
2010 11.3% 11.2% 9.6%
2009 11.2 11.3 9.3
2008 7.0 6.8 5.8
2007 6.0 5.6 4.6
2006 7.2 6.4 4.6

Source: U.S. Department of Labor; Bureau of Labor Statistics.
Labor Force

The labor force participation rates of resident of the County (by place of residence) for the last five
years for which information is available is as follows:

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Civilian Labor Force 62,040 62,392 62,907 64,294 63,901
Employment 56,684 57,065 58,514 58,623 57,580
Unemployment 7,217 7,229 4,393 3,769 4,460
% of Labor Force Unemployed 11.3% 11.2% 7.0% 6.0% 7.2%

Source: U. S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.
Population Figures
The following table shows population information for the County for the years indicated.

Year Population
20100 137,088
2000 125,761
1990 114,344
1980 110,163

@ Estimate as of September, 2011
Source: Board of Economic Advisors and Office of Economic Research of the State Budget and Control Board; Population Division, U.S.
Census Bureau.

33



Building Permits and Construction Activity

The following table shows the approximate number of building permits (including permits issued
for alterations) issued by the County and the approximate cost of construction represented by those permits
in each of the last five years.

Residential Total Commercial Total
Year Permits® Valuation Permits® Valuation
2010 621 $29,729,785 305 $111,345,414
2009 884 37,601,025 288 45,544,400
2008 754 59,013,554 263 105,895,907
2007 1029 90,402,312 331 121,981,699
2006 902 93,583,661 244 96,648,057

@ Excludes mobile home permits; permits issued for multi-family units are counted as one. Includes additions and alterations.
Source: Florence County Planning

Facilities Serving the County

Education

There are 36 schools in the County’s five school districts: 20 elementary, 8 middle, 7 high schools
and 1 career center. Based on the 2010-11 135-day average daily membership, there are currently

approximately 21,985 students enrolled county-wide.

Higher Education

The Florence-Darlington Technical Education Center was established in 1963 to serve Florence,
Darlington, Dillon and Marion counties. In 1974, the Florence-Darlington Technical Education Center
received accreditation from the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools and changed its name to
Florence-Darlington Technical College. Its original campus of less than 10 acres has expanded to nearly
100 acres with a modern complex of eight major buildings totaling nearly 300,000 square feet. Florence-
Darlington Technical College is one of 16 technical colleges that make up the South Carolina Technical
Education System, which is under the coordination of the South Carolina Board for Technical and
Comprehensive Education. Florence-Darlington Technical College is a two-year technical school with a
Fall 2011 enrollment of 5,965 students.

Special programs and services offered include the Advanced Welding and Cutting Center, the
Caterpillar Dealer Academy and a CISCO systems training laboratory. The recently completed SiMT offers
businesses the cutting-edge, strategic training and manufacturing technology solutions to maximize
workforce productivity in the Southeast.

Francis Marion University (“FMU”), located in Florence County, is a four-year, comprehensive
university founded in 1970. FMU estimates a Fall 2011 enrollment of 4,032 students and offers a broad
range of undergraduate degrees and a select number of graduate programs. FMU cooperates with other
colleges and universities to offer courses leading to degrees at those institutions. A four-year program of the
Reserve Officer Training Corps (ROTC) is available. Phase Il of University Villas opened in the Fall of
2007 providing housing for an additional 190 students. The Center for the Child, a combination day care
and learning lab facility, opened in August, 2008.

The Francis Marion University Performing Arts Center located in downtown Florence opened the
end of August, 2011. The 61,000-square-foot center seats 900 in the main hall and 100 in the black box
theater next to the main hall, and includes classrooms, faculty offices, dressing rooms, other performance
preparation spaces, and the center’s operations center, and will include a variety of performances including
musical events and touring Broadway-style shows. Additionally, the building will house offices for the
Florence Symphony, the Masterworks Choir and the Drs. Bruce and Lee Foundation.
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Health Care

Florence County serves as the regional medical center for the northeastern half of South Carolina.
McLeod Regional Medical Center is the largest employer in the County. McLeod Regional Medical Center
has, in the past few years, constructed a women’s hospital pavilion as well as a four-story medical office
building and has completed construction on an additional five-story medical office building. Hosting 347
licensed beds, McLeod is the teaching hospital and referral center for a 12-county area, supporting a Family
Medicine Residency Program with 27 physicians, a pharmacist and a psychologist. McLeod is a medical
leader in several areas, with Centers of Excellence including the Cancer Center for Treatment and Research;
the Children’s Hospital; the Heart Institute; McLeod Behavioral Health Services; the Neonatal Intensive
Care Unit; the Pediatric Intensive Care Unit; the Neuro Science Center; the Outpatient Center; and the
Women’s Pavilion.

McLeod completed construction in 2008 on an expansion to the McLeod Pavilion Tower which
increased the five-story Pavilion Tower to twelve floors to house 140 general acute care beds and 16
operating suites. This growth resulted in a total licensed bed capacity for McLeod Regional Medical Center
of 441 general acute care beds and 35 psychiatric beds. The overall economic benefit is expected to
generate more than 600 new jobs and $12 million in earnings for the region. McLeod is currently in the
process of completing a building plan begun in 2009, which includes reconfiguring patient rooms, addition
of a heart and vascular institute, a cancer center, orthopedic and sports medicine facilities, two new ICU
towers, and construction of two new parking garages. MclLeod anticipates construction of these
improvements will be completed in 2012. In April 2011, McLeod announced affiliation with Loris
Healthcare System.

The consolidation of Bruce Hospital System and Florence General Hospital in 1995 created the
largest hospital in the Pee Dee region, Carolinas Hospital System, with 408 beds. Affiliates of Carolinas
Hospital System include a 24-bed acute care rehabilitation facility, a 44-bed subacute rehabilitation facility,
the Men’s Diagnostic Center, MRI Center, the Balance Disorder Center, and Bruce Hall, a center for the
treatment of drug and alcohol dependency. In the summer of 2006 Carolinas Hospital System completed a
$25 million expansion project which included a three-story addition with 48 new acute care beds, a new 12-
bed intensive care unit and an oncology unit. Hospital growth also included an 18-bed addition to the newly
remodeled Carolinas Rehabilitation Hospital and the opening of the Floyd Conference Center, a facility for
health education and community meetings.

Financial Institutions

According to the State Board of Financial Institutions, as of June 30, 2011, there were 43 branches
of major and local commercial banks in Florence County with total deposits of $1,828,000,000 as well as 1
savings and loan association with total deposits of $162,000,000. The continuing reorganization of the
banking system in the United States, with its attendant mergers and consolidations, is likely to affect the
total number of branch offices in the County.

Transportation

The County’s location within the region is complimented by a highway transportation network
consisting of interstate highways 1-20 and 1-95 and U.S. highways 52, 76, 301 and 378, as well as numerous
State highways. Motor freight carriers serve the County, with 20 nearby terminals. Bus service is provided
by Greyhound/Trailways. The Pee Dee Regional Transportation Authority (PDRTA) provides public
transportation within the city and to many rural locations within the County, including a “shuttle” service to
Myrtle Beach.

The Florence Regional Airport is located two miles east of downtown Florence. The runways are
paved and lighted, 150 feet wide and approximately 6,500 feet long. The airport offers air frame and power
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plant repairs, fuels, 24-hour weather service, flight instruction and charter flights. A multi-million dollar
expansion project for the airport has recently been completed.

Rail transportation in the County is provided by CSX Transportation and passenger service is
provided by Amtrak.

Libraries

The Florence County Library provides service through a main library, five branch libraries in the
surrounding municipalities, and a bookmobile. In June 2004, the Drs. Bruce and Lee Foundation Library
opened containing 81,000 square feet on two floors. The new state of the art library includes a 215-seat
meeting room and a conference room; 75 internet-accessible computers for the public; a state of the art
South Carolina History and Genealogy room; and a state of the art children’s library. Currently, the library
has approximately 254,000 volumes available for loan to the public.

Recreation

In 1997, County Council commissioned LS3P and Associates of Charleston, South Carolina to
develop a recreation master plan for Florence County. County Council accepted the recommendations in
1999 and committed $500,000 the following fiscal year for implementation of the plan. Since that initial
investment, Florence County Parks and Recreation (the “Recreation Department”) has experienced
significant growth, highlighted by the transfer of Lynches River Park from the South Carolina Department
of Parks, Recreation and Tourism to Florence County. The recent completion of the Savannah Grove
Baseball Complex along with Ebenezer Park provides the Recreation Department with approximately 860
total acres and more than 40 baseball fields throughout the County.
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LEGAL MATTERS
Litigation

There is no litigation presently pending or, to the knowledge of the County, threatened challenging
the validity of any general obligation indebtedness, including the Bonds, issued or proposed to be issued by
the County.

Legal Opinion

The County will furnish, without cost to the successful bidder, the opinion of Bond Counsel,
Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., Florence, South Carolina, the form of which is attached hereto as Appendix
B. A certificate to the effect that there is no litigation threatened or pending to restrain the issuance and sale
of the Bonds will be delivered at closing.

Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A. has assisted the County by compiling certain information supplied
by the County and others and included in this Official Statement, but has not undertaken to verify the
accuracy of such information. The opinion of Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A. will be limited solely to the
legality and enforceability of the Bonds, and no opinion will be given with respect to this Official Statement.

The legal opinion to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds expresses the
professional judgment of the attorneys rendering the opinion as to the legal issues explicitly addressed
therein. By rendering a legal opinion, the opinion giver does not become an insurer or guarantor of that
expression of professional judgment, of the transaction opined upon, or of the future performance of parties
to such transaction. Nor does the rendering of an opinion guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that
may arise out of the transaction.

United States Bankruptcy Code

The undertakings of the County should be considered with reference to Chapter 9 of the United
States Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. Section 901, et. seq., as amended (the “Bankruptcy Code™), and other
laws affecting creditors’ rights and public instrumentalities generally. Chapter 9 permits a municipality,
political subdivision, public agency, or other instrumentality of a state that is insolvent or unable to meet its
debts as such debts mature to file a petition in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the purpose of
effecting a plan to adjust its debts; directs such a petitioner to file with the court a list of its creditors;
provides that the filing of the petition under that Chapter operates as a stay of the commencement or
continuation of any judicial or other proceeding against the petitioner but does not limit or impair the power
of a state to control a municipality by legislation; directs a petitioner to file a plan for the adjustment of its
debts; permits the petitioner in its plan to modify the rights to payment of its creditors; and provides that the
plan must be accepted in writing by or on behalf of creditors of each class of claims holding at least two-
thirds in amount and more than one-half in number of the creditors which have accepted or rejected the plan.
The plan may be confirmed notwithstanding the negative vote of one or more classes of claims if the court
finds that the plan is in the best interest of creditors, is feasible, and is fair and equitable with respect to the
dissenting classes of creditors. A petitioner has the right to reinstate or otherwise modify indebtedness under
its plan varying from the original maturity schedule of such indebtedness notwithstanding any provision in
the documents under which the indebtedness arose relating to the insolvency or financial condition of the
debtor before the confirmation of the plan, the commencement of a case under the Bankruptcy Code, or the
appointment of or taking possession by a trustee in a case under the Bankruptcy Code or by a receiver or
other custodian prior to the commencement of a case under the Bankruptcy Code.
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Federal Income Tax Generally

On the date of issuance of the Bonds, Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., Florence, South Carolina
(“Bond Counsel™), will render an opinion that, assuming continuing compliance by the County with the
requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the applicable
regulations promulgated thereunder (the “Regulations”) and further subject to certain considerations
described in “Collateral Federal Tax Considerations” below, under existing statutes, regulations and judicial
decisions, interest on the Bonds is excludable from the gross income of the registered owners thereof for
federal income tax purposes. Interest on the Bonds will not be treated as an item of tax preference in
calculating the alternative minimum taxable income of individuals or corporations; however, interest on the
Bonds will be included in the calculation of adjusted current earnings in determining the alternative
minimum tax liability of corporations. The Code contains other provisions that could result in tax
consequences, upon which no opinion will be rendered by Bond Counsel, as a result of (i) ownership of the
Bonds or (ii) the inclusion in certain computations (including, without limitation those related to the
corporate alternative minimum tax) of interest that is excluded from gross income.

The County has designated the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” within the meaning of
Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code, and, in the case of certain financial institutions (within the meaning of
Section 265(b)(5) of the Code), a deduction is allowed for 80% of that portion of such financial institution’s
interest expense allocable to interest on the Bonds.

The opinion of Bond Counsel will be limited to matters relating to the authorization and validity of
the Bonds and the tax-exempt status of interest on the Bonds as described herein. Bond Counsel makes no
statement regarding the accuracy and completeness of this Official Statement.

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on current legal authority, covers certain matters not directly
addressed by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel’s judgment as to the proper treatment of the
Bonds for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel’s opinions are based upon existing law, which is
subject to change. Such opinions are further based on factual representations made to Bond Counsel as of
the date thereof. Bond Counsel assumes no duty to update or supplement its opinions to reflect any facts or
circumstances that may thereafter come to Bond Counsel’s attention or to reflect any changes in law that
may thereafter occur or become effective. Moreover, Bond Counsel’s opinions are not a guarantee of a
particular result, and are not binding on the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) or the courts; rather, such
opinions represent Bond Counsel’s professional judgment based on its review of existing law, and in
reliance on the representations and covenants that it deems relevant to such opinions.

The opinion of Bond Counsel described above is subject to the condition that the County comply
with all requirements of the Code and the Regulations, including, without limitation, certain restrictions on
the use, expenditure and investment of the gross proceeds of the Bonds and the obligation to rebate certain
earnings on investments of such gross proceeds to the United States Government, that must be satisfied
subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon be, or continue to be, excluded from
gross income for federal income tax purposes. The County has covenanted to comply with each such
requirement. Failure to comply with certain of such requirements may cause the inclusion of interest on the
Bonds in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The
opinion of Bond Counsel delivered on the date of issuance of the Bonds is conditioned on compliance by the
County with such requirements and Bond Counsel has not been retained to monitor compliance with the
requirements subsequent to the issuance of such Bonds.
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Collateral Federal Tax Considerations

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should be aware that ownership of tax-exempt obligations may
result in collateral federal income tax consequences to certain taxpayers, including, without limitation,
financial institutions, property and casualty insurance companies, life insurance companies, certain foreign
corporations, certain S corporations, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits
and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-
exempt obligations. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion concerning such collateral income tax
consequences and prospective purchasers of Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to the applicability
thereof.

Future legislation, if enacted into law, or clarification of the Code may cause interest on the Bonds
to be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation, or otherwise prevent owners from realizing
the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. The introduction or enactment of any such future
legislation or clarification of the Code may also affect the market price for, or marketability of, the Bonds.
For example, on September 12, 2011, President Obama proposed to Congress the enactment of legislation
entitled the "American Jobs Act of 2011" (the "Jobs Act™). If enacted as currently proposed, the Jobs Act
would result in federal income tax being imposed on a portion of the interest received by certain individual
owners of state or local bonds, including the Bonds, for taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
No prediction is made whether this provision will be enacted as proposed or concerning other future
legislation which if passed might have an adverse affect on the tax treatment of interest on the Bonds.
Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding any pending or
proposed federal tax legislation, as to which Bond Counsel expresses no opinion.

The IRS has established an ongoing program to audit tax-exempt obligations to determine whether
interest on such obligations is includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel
cannot predict whether the IRS will commence an audit of the Bonds. Bond Counsel’s engagement with
respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the Bonds, and, unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is
not obligated to defend the County or the Owners regarding the tax-exempt status of the Bonds in the event
of an audit examination by the IRS. The IRS has taken the position that, under the standards of practice
before the IRS, Bond Counsel must obtain a waiver of a conflict of interest to represent an issuer in an
examination of tax exempt bonds for which Bond Counsel had issued an approving opinion. Under current
procedures, parties other than the Issuer and their appointed counsel, including the Owners, would have
little, if any, right to participate in the audit examination process. Moreover, because achieving judicial
review in connection with an audit examination of tax-exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent
review of IRS positions with which the County legitimately disagrees may not be practicable. Any action of
the IRS, including but not limited to selection of the Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit, or
an audit of bonds presenting similar tax issues may affect the market price for, or the marketability of, the
Bonds, and may cause the County or the Owners to incur significant expense, regardless of the ultimate
outcome. Under certain circumstances, the County may be obligated to disclose the commencement of an
audit under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement. See “Continuing Disclosure” herein.

[Original Issue Premium

The Bonds maturing in the years through have been sold at an initial public offering
price which is greater than the amount payable at maturity (the “Premium Bonds™). An amount equal to the
excess of the purchase price of the Premium Bonds over their stated redemption prices at maturity
constitutes premium on such Bonds. A purchaser of a Premium Bond must amortize any premium over
such Bond’s term using constant yield principles, based on the purchaser’s yield to maturity. As premium is
amortized, the purchaser’s basis in such Premium Bond is reduced by a corresponding amount, resulting in
an increase in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes upon a sale
or disposition of such Premium Bond prior to its maturity. Even though the purchaser’s basis is reduced, no
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federal income tax deduction is allowed. Purchasers of any Bonds at a premium, whether at the time of
initial issuance or subsequent thereto, should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to the
determination and treatment of premium for federal income tax purposes and with respect to state and local
tax consequences of owning such Bonds.]

State Tax Exemption

Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that the Bonds and the interest thereon are exempt from all
taxation by the State of South Carolina, its counties, municipalities and school districts except estate,
transfer or certain franchise taxes. Interest paid on the Bonds is currently subject to the tax imposed on
banks by Section 12-11-20, Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, which is enforced by the
South Carolina Department of Revenue and Taxation as a franchise tax. The opinion of Bond Counsel is
limited to the laws of the State of South Carolina and federal tax laws. No opinion is rendered by Bond
Counsel concerning the taxation of the Bonds or the interest thereon under the laws of any other jurisdiction.

Continuing Disclosure

In accordance with Act No. 442 of the Acts and Joint Resolutions of the General Assembly of the
State of South Carolina for the year 1994, the County has covenanted in the Bond Ordinance to file with a
central repository for availability in the secondary bond market when requested (1) an annual independent
audit, within thirty days of the County’s receipt of the audit; and (2) event specific information, within thirty
days of an event adversely affecting more than five percent of the County’s revenue or tax base. The only
remedy for failure by the County to comply with this covenant shall be an action for specific performance.
Moreover, the County has specifically reserved the right to amend the covenant to reflect any change in Act
No. 442 without the consent of any bondholder.

The County has covenanted for the benefits of the holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds to
provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events, if material, and, in addition, to file an annual
report containing certain financial information and operating data. The notices of material events and the
annual report will be filed by the Issuer with the Electronic Municipal Market Access System (EMMA)
maintained by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and with any State Depository if any is hereafter
established. The form of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate to be executed by the County is attached to
this Official Statement as Appendix C. These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriters
in complying with S.E.C. Rule 15¢2-12 (the “Rule”). The County did not timely file its annual report in
years prior to 2005, but has since been timely with its filings.

Closing Certification

The County will also furnish, without cost to the successful bidder, certifications by appropriate
officials that the Official Statement relating to the Bonds as of its date and as of the date of delivery of the
Bonds does not contain an untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact
which should be included therein for the purpose for which the Official Statement is intended to be used or
which is necessary to make the statements contained therein, in the light of the circumstances in which they
were made, not misleading.

Appropriate certification will be given by County officials to establish that the Bonds are not

“arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code, and applicable regulations thereunder in
effect on the occasion of the delivery of the Bonds.

40



Conclusion

Further inquiries should be addressed to Kevin V. Yokim, Florence County, 180 N. Irby Street,
Florence, South Carolina 29501, telephone (843) 665-3013 or Walter Goldsmith, Davenport & Company
LLC, 401 N. Tryon Street, Charlotte, North Carolina, telephone (704) 375-0550. Requests for additional
copies of this Official Statement may be addressed to Benjamin T. Zeigler, Bond Counsel, Haynsworth
Sinkler Boyd, P.A., Post Office Box 6671, Florence, South Carolina 29502, telephone (843) 673-5304.
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RATING

Application has been made to Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (the “Rating Agency”) for rating of
the Bonds. The Bonds received a rating of “Aa2.” Such rating reflects only the view of the Rating Agency,
and an explanation of the significance of such rating may be obtained from the Rating Agency. The County
has furnished to the Rating Agency certain information and materials with respect to the County and the
Bonds. Generally, the Rating Agency bases its rating on such information and materials and on
investigations, studies and assumptions furnished to and obtained and made by it. There is no assurance that
such rating will remain unchanged for any period of time or that it may not be lowered or withdrawn
entirely by the Rating Agency, if in its judgment circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or
withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.

UNDERWRITING

The Bonds have been purchased at a competitive sale from the County for resale by
(the “Purchaser”). The Purchaser has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to
purchase the Bonds at % of par. The initial public offering prices of the Bonds are as shown on the
front page of this Official Statement and may be changed from time to time by the Purchaser. The
Purchaser may also allow a concession from the public offering prices to certain dealers. The initial public
offering prices average approximately $ per $1,000 face amount of the Bonds in excess of the
purchase price paid to the County by the Purchaser. The Purchaser has not received a fee from the County
for underwriting the Bonds.
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CERTIFICATION

All quotations from and summaries and explanations of provisions of laws of the State herein do not
purport to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the official compilations thereof.
All references to the Bonds and the determinations of the County relating thereto are qualified in their
entirety by reference to the definitive forms of the Bonds and the authorizing resolution and to such
determinations. All such summaries, explanations and references are further qualified in their entirety by
reference to the exercise of sovereign police powers of the State and the constitutional powers of the United
States of America, and to valid bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws for the
relief of debtors.

Certain of the information set forth in this Official Statement and in the appendices hereto has been
obtained from sources other than the County that are believed to be reliable but is not guaranteed as to
accuracy or completeness by the County. The information and expressions of opinion in this Official
Statement are subject to change, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made under
such document shall create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the County.

This Official Statement has been duly executed and delivered by the County as of the date shown
on the cover page.

/sl
County Administrator,
Florence County, South Carolina
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FLORENCE COUNTY

Finance Department

Diecember 10, 2010
To the Chairman, Members of County Council, and Citizens of Florence County

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Florence County, South Carolina, for the
year ended June 30, 2010, is submitted herewith. State statutes require Florence County to
annually issue g report on its financial position and activities, and that this report be
audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of this presented data and the coropleteness and fairness of this presentation,
meluding all disclosures, rests with the County’s management. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported
in a manner designed to present fairly both the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the various funds and component units of Florence County. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the County’s financial activities
have been included.

This annual veport is 1o a format that complies with the financial reporting model
developed by the Governiment Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Staternent 34, This
model Improves financial reporting by including government-wide statements that are
based on full accroal accounting and inclode capital assets and long-term debt. The
requirements of GASB  Statement 34 are explained in some detail within the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which immediately precedes the basic financial
statements m the financial section of this report.

Florence County is required to undergo an ammual single audit in conformity with the
provisions of the Single Andit Act of 1984 and the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget's Circular A-133, “Audits of State and Local Governments”. Information related
to this single audit, including a schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards and
the independent auditor’s report on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, is included in the single audit section of this report.

Chry-County Complex
180 Morth Irby Street MSC-H - Forence, South Carcling 29501 - (843) 665.3013 - Pax (B43) 6654515



JHE REPORTING ENTITY

Florence County, South Carolina is located in the northeast section of the state, and is
bounded on the north and east by the Pee Dee River, on the south by Williamsburg
County, and the west by Darlington County, The County was established in 1888 as a
railroad community and since that time has grown into the commercial, retail, and medical
center for this region of the state. Being at the intersection of U.S. 1-95 and 1-20 has
facilitated this growth, as well as being the mid-way point on [-95 between New York
City and Miami, Florida,

Florence County operates under the Council-Administrator form of government. The
County’s Council is comprised of nine single member districts, The Council annually elects
one member to serve as Chairman, one member to serve as Vice-Chairman, and one
member to serve as Secretary-Chaplain. County Council is responsible, among other
things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, and appointing the Administrator.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report includes all funds of Florence County that
are controlled by this governing body, and are considered fo be the “reporting entity”. The
County provides a full range of services including public safety, public works, health and
social service, culture and recreation, economic development, family court, magistrates,
probate court, general sessions court, solicitor, public defender, and general
adminstration. Other entities and political subdivisions including the County’s five school
districts and nine cities and towns have been excluded from the County’s funds and
accordingly, each entity has sufficient discretion in the management of its own affairs.
However, the County Treasurer is responsible for the collection of property taxes,
mtergovernmental revennes, and other revenues for the political subdivisions. The vear-
end balances and results of that fiduciary responsibility are included as agency funds in the
basic financial statements.

A discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate coluron in the government-
wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally scparate from the primary
government {Le. Florence County, South Carolina as legally defined) and to differentiate
its financial position and results of operations from those of the primary government. The
Florence City-County Building Comumission is reported as a discretely presented
component unit.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Florence County is contmuing to experience a strong increase in economic growth, This
growth comes from four areas: manufacturing companies, distribution, the medical
community, and tourism,



Manufacturing

The County is becoming an international center for manufacturing. Nan Ya Plastics
Corporation of America, a polyester fiber producing company based in Taiwan, has
become the County’s largest taxpayer as it continues to grow towards its goal of investing
$1 billion i the Florence County/Williamsburg County Joint Industrial Park. Roche
Carolina, Inc., a subsidiary of the Swiss-based pharmaceutical company, Hoffinan-
LaRoche, Inc., continues to expand ifs processing operation, adding to its previous $550
million mvestment since 1993, Over the past few years, Honda Motors Corporation of
America expanded its current facility to include an engine plant for its all-terrain vehicles.
Honda now employs approximately 1,000 people in its assembly and engine plants. This is
the first tirne that engines for any Honda vehicle have been produced in the United States.
Honda has also constructed a persoual watercraft (jet ski) plant that began production in
December 2002, Also, two suppliers to the Honda plant have located in Florence County
in recent years, those being South East Express and North American Container Company.
In addition, Angus-Palm, a manufacturer of cabs for heavy equipment, began operation of
its plant in the Pee Dee Commerce Center as well,

As shown above, the County’s manufacturing base is very diversified. Gther well known
companies also bave plants i the County. These companies include Dupont/Teijin,
General Electric, Asea Brown Bovert, and Smurfit Stone Container,

Diistribution

Given its location at the mtersection of Interstates 1-95 and I-20, the County is now
becoming a center for distribution facilities as well. TFH, a restaurant food supplier,
recently constructed a new plant that resulted in an investment of more than $20,000,000
and 70 new jobs. FedEx has also constructed a 75,000 square foot distribution facility
within the past two years. QVC, Inc. recently comstructed a 1,000,000 square foot
distribution facility that opened i the spring of 2007, This resulied in an investment of
almost $75,000,000 and the addition of several hundred jobs to the local economy. Finally,
Johoson Controls, Inc. moved mio a 300,000 square foot spec. building in the Pee Dee
Touchstone Energy Commerce Center in order to distribute automotive batteries. This
tacility also opened in the spring of 2007 and resuited In an investment of approximately
$35,0600.000. In June 2008, Heinz, Inc. announced a new investment of $105,000,000 and
350 new Jobs and 1s scheduled to begin production in 2011,



Medical Community

Florence County continues to serve as the medical center for the eastern half of South
Carolina. McLeod Regional Medical Center s the largest employer in the County, with
over 3,500 employees. MclLeod has, in the past few years, constructed a women’s hospital
pavilion as well as a four-story medical office building. Mcleod also has completed
construction on an additional five-story medical office building. In 2007, McLeod
completed the expansion of the women's hospital pavilion from its current five floors to a
total of twelve floors at a cost in excess of $100 million. To 2010, McLeod was awarded
the American Hospital Association-McKesson Quest for Quality Prize. This national
award 18 presented to one hospital anmually and, since its inception in 2002, has been
awarded to major national hospitals such as the Duke University Hospital and The Johns
Hopkins Hospital. MclLeod is the first hospital in South Caroling to receive this award.

Carolinas Hospital System is also located in Florence County, Carolinas is a subsidiary of
the national hospital company Quorum Heelth Group. In November 1998 Carolinas
dedicated a new nine-story state of the arl hospital complex. In the past vear, Carolinas
has also constructed facilities for additional bed space as well as a new conference center.

Also headquartered in Florence County is Palmetto Government Benefits Adnuinistrators,
a division of Blue Cross & Blue Shield of South Carolina. This division processes health
msurance claims from military personnel and their dependents from all across the nation
and around the world, They currently employ over 1,000 people in Florence County. In
addition, American Security Insurance Coropany {Assurant) has located an insurance
processing facility i Florence that currently employs over 300 people.

Tourism

With such attractions as the Darlington Raceway, the Florence City-County Civic Center,
and Freedom Florence, a nie-field softball complex, Florence County continues to see an
mcrease in tourism every vear. This has resulted in the construction of several new hotels
and motels ncluding a new multi-story Hilton Garden Inn as well as a new Holiday Inn
Expresa.

Florence County’s moderate clinate attracts tourists year round to come to the County to
shop, eat, and play goif at one of over 10 golf courses located within 30 miles of the City
of Florence. In addition the Florence City-County Civic Center hosts several conventions
and trade shows each year, as well as many business meetings and huncheons. The
Freedom Florence recreation complex hosts softball tournaments every weekend during its
30-week scason. These fournaments include a minimum of 15 teams and bring in plavers
from all over the Southeast to the Florence area. The City of Florence is constructing a 30
court tennis center that will open in 2011, This center will attract tennis tournaments from
many different locations. For the first time, the Darlington Raceway held a NASCAR
Crafisman truck series race in 2001. The Darlington Raceway, which is next door to
Florence County, also hosted the Jargest weekend sporting event in the state with Busch



series and NASCAR series races both on the Mother’s Day weekend. These races bring
mternational exposure to Florence through ESPN and major network telecasts. The
raceway has also added lights to the track to provide the opportunity for night-time racing
as well,

MAJOR INJTIATIVES

Florence County has embarked on several mitiatives that center primarily on increasing
service to the residents of Florence County.

EMS Improvements

During 2000, Florence County made major improvements to its EMS System. Four new
state of the art ambulances were purchased, as well as four new quick response vehicles.
In February 1999 the County broke ground on a mew 7,500 square foot EMS
headquarters. The building was completed in December 1999, In 2004, the County
completed the construction of two new EMS substations in ruraf areas of the County, and
has acquired land for a third rural substation to be completed in 2011,

Recreation Improvements

During 1999, 4 recreation master plan for the entire county was prepared by an outside
consulting company. The County had executed a long-term lease for a state park that is
now known as Lynches River County Park, On October 31, 2002, the State of South
Carolina deeded the Lynches River County Park to Florence County, Therefore, the
County now owns a 675 acre park near the geographic center of the county and the
County 18 moving forward with improvements to the park. A major renovation of the
cornmunity building at the park has already been completed. A canoe launch and a 1,200
foot boardwalk have been constructed. In addition, two cabins and a bathhouse have been
purchased and installed and are available to be rented. A splashpad was added to the park
to replace an out-dated swimming pool that was in much need of repair. An environmental
discovery center opened during 2008, and mcludes a rope bridge walk through the
ireetops adjacent to the center. An archery range also opened at the park in 2010, In
North Florence a local park has been enhanced by the addition of a community building
and a walling trail. In West Florence, additional land was acquired adjacent to an existing
ball field and several tennis courts, a picnic shelter and a playground were constructed. In
the Lake City area, land was acquired for a local park and a walking trail was constructed.
This land also includes a pond; therefore a fishing deck and a walking bridge over the
pond have been constructed. In 2004 the County acquired three parcels of land for
recreation. Two parcels are for the expansion of two existing baseball leagues and the
third is for a neighborhood park. In 2005 ove of these parks was completed and an
existing leaguc was relocated to this new facility. in 2007, the second of these parks was
completed and the other existing league was relocated to this new facility.



Libraries

In 2004, Forence County completed construction of an 80,000 square foot main library.
This new facility more than doubled the existing space of the previous facility and provides
more than three times the number of public access computers. In 2010 the County
completed the last of four branch libraries in the rural area of the county. Fach of these
libraries are more than twice as large as the previous facilities and patronage at each of
these new facilities has increased dramatically.

Economie Development

During 1999, Florence County entered into an agreement with a local private business
group to form the Florence County Economic Development Partnership. This is a joint
partnership that was formed to increase economic development throughout the county and
is funded equally by public and private funds. During 1999, a strategic plan was completed
by an outside consulting company and the County is currently proceeding with most of the
areas of the strategic plan. The County issued $1,500,000 of general obligation bouds to
fund the first of three phases of this strategic plan. A portion of these bonds proceeds have
been used to purchase approximately 150 acres for an industrial park in Johnsonville and
develop this park by installing roads and water and sewer service.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management of Florence County is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
contrel structure to ensure that assets of the County are protected from loss, theft, or
misuse, and to ensure that data compiled will allow for the preparation of financial
statements that are m conformity with generally accepted accounting principles,

Financial Audit, As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, we are also
responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure
comphance with laws and regulations related to those programs. This Internal structure is
subject to periodic evaluation by management of the County and our external auditors.
The results of the County’s financial audit for the year ended June 30, 2010 provided no
wstances of material weakness in the internal control structure or significant violations of
applicable laws and regnlations related to ruajor or non~-major federal financial assistance
DPrOZrams,

Budgetary Controls. A formal budget is adopted for the general fund and various special
revenue funds of the County at the account level In the General Fund, a budget is
prepared for each department of the County. Encumbrance accounting is used to record
estimated amounts for purchase orders, contracts and other commitments prior to release
to vendors. Commitments that would result in over expended funds are not made until
available funds are transterred via a budget adjustment approved by the County
Administrator and the Finance Director, Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are
reported as reservations of fund balance since they do not constitute expenditures or
habilities.



Proprietary Operations, Florence County has three proprietary funds. The Florence
County Utility System Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the water and
sewer system. The Florence County Landfill Fund accounts for the operation of the
County’s 15 manned convenience centers and the transportation of the waste from these
cepters to a private landfill outside the county and the tipping fee at this private landfill
The Florence County E911 System Fund accounts for the mapping and establishing of the
HO11 system throughout the Couniy.

Bebt Administration. In accordance with South Caroling State Law, Florence County
must maintain its general obligation bonded debt within a limit of eight percent of its total
assessed value of its real and personal property. For the year ended June 30, 2010, this

requirernent has been met.

Cash Management, The management of cash and cash investments is the responsibility of
the County Treasurer. As of June 30, 2010, Florence County’s investments were held
primarily int certificates of deposit.

Capital Assets. The capital assets of the County are those used in the performance of
general government functions. These assets are valued at historical cost or estimated
hstorical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued at
therr estimated {air market value on the acquisition date. The County, n accordance with
the Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, began recogrizing
depreciation on all its capital assets during the prior fiscal year. In addition, in further
compliance with this statement, the County capitalized all infrastructure assets, including
roads and bridges, during the fiscal vear as well,

Risk Management. The County maintains coverage for worker’s compensation with a
third party nsurance company. This fund covers all medical claims for work-related
mjuries, as well as providing disability payments for loss of time from work.

independent Audit. The South Caroling Code of Laws requires an annual audit of financial
records and transactions of the County by an independent certified public accountant
selected by County Council. The fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was audited by the
accounting firm of Baird and Company, CPA’s, LLC, and their report on the basic
financial statements is included in the Financial Scction of this Comprebensive Annual
Financial Report.




Certificate of Achievement. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United
States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Fxcellence in
Financial Reporting to Florence County, South Carolina for its comprehensive anuual
financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, This was the tweifth year that the
government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an casily readable and efficiently organized
comprebensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We beliove that our
current comprehensive agoual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments. The preparation of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report could
not have been accomplished without the dedicated service of the Finance Department and
the technical expertise and efforts of our independent auditors, Baird and Conwpany,
CPA’s, LLC. We would like to also conmend County Council for realizing the need for,
and the benefits derived from timely financial reporting,

Simcerely,

Kevin V. Yokim, CPA, CGFO
Finance Direcior
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to
Florence County
South Carolina

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2009

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAIFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting,

President

Executive Director
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@Eﬁ : &ny CPAs, LLC Joln P. Gillion, Jr., CPA, PFS, CES, CV4, CRF®

Brenda F. Carvoll, CUF, 4 CFE ClA, CICA, FCFP4, PFS
CERTIFIED PUIBLIC ACC OU’\T'{AN": & FINAKCIAL ADVIRORE Rep &. Whiddon, CPA, CVA4

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the County Council
Florence County, South Carolina
Florence, South Carclina

We have audited the sccompanying financial statements of the governmental achivities, the business-iype activities
the discretely presented component unit, each major fund and sggregate remaining fund information of Horence
County, South Caroling, as of and {or the yvear ended June 3G, 2010, which collectivaly comprise Florence County’s
basic {inancial statements, as histed in the table of contents. These financial staternents are the responsibility of
Florence County, Souwth Carobna’s managemert. Our reponsibility 15 fo express opimions on these financial
statements based on our audits, We did not awdit the fnaocial statements of the Florence Oity-County Complex
Building Comanission which siatements reflect total agsets of $1,922,849 as of June 30, 2010, and total revenues of
$1,454 559 for the year then ended. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report hag
been furmshed to us, and cur opinions on the financisl statersents, msofar as it refates to the amounts included for
the Florence City-County Complex Building Commmssion in the component unit colurmm, 18 based solely on the
report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards gererally accepted in the United 5States of America
and the standards spplicable to fimancial audits couvtained in Government Auditing Standards, ssued by the
Coraptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and pecform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalerments are free of maténal russtateraent.  An audit inchudes
exampning, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amourds and disclosures in the financial statoments, An audit
aleo inciudes assessing the acoounting principles uséd and significant estimates made by roonagernent, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presendation. We behieve that our audid provides a reasonable basis for our
OpATIONS.

In our opinton, based on owr audit and the report of other auditors, the finatilal stateraents referred lo above present
fairly, in all material respects, the fimdncial position of the government activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component und, each ropjor fund and the aggregate remaimug fund information of Florence
County, South Carolina, as of Juoe 36, 2010, and the re&pect}'ve changes in financial position and, where :1pp§ic:3ble
cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the vear then ended,
conformty with accounting pnnctpk_. generally accepted in the United States of America.

4210 Columbia Reoad, Building 10, Augasta, Georgia 30907 / Telephose (706) 85585
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Tao the County Council
Florence County, South Caroling
Page 2

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a veport dated Decernber 10, 2010, on our
consideration of Florence County, South Careling’s internal control over fuancial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with cerlain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grand agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of owr testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and noet to provide an opinion on the internal control over {inancisl
reporting or on compliance. That report 13 an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governmens
Auditing Standards and important for assessing the resulis of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 14 through 24 and 76, pages 106 through 118, and
pages 149 through 180 respectively be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basie financial statements, s required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic flnancial statements in an
appropriafe operational, economic, or historical context, We have applied certain Himited procedures 16 the reguired
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the infonmation for consistency with management’s vesponses to our inguiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the Bmited procedures do not provide us with
satficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Our audit was condusted for the purpose of forming opimons on the financial statements that collectively cormprise
the Florence Ceunaty, South Carobna’s financial stutements 38 8 whole. The introductory section, cembining and
individual nennajor fund financial staternents, statistical section, and the capital assets used in the operation of
goveromental funds section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statemnents. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.8. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Stares, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and 15 alse not o required part of the financial statements. The
combimng and individual sonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are
the responsibility of management and were dezived from and relase directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The mformation has been subjected 1o the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such mformation directly to the underlving accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
staternents or to the financial statements themselves, and other addifonal procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is faitly stated in all
material respects m relation to the finencial sistements as & whole: The introductory and statistical sections have not
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the andit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we
do not express an opinion of provide any assurance on it

&Z?&-a:wjf/ %wy’ C"/f-’-if_f L

BAIRD & COMPANY, CPAs, LLC
Certified Public Accountants
Augusta, Georgla
December 10, 2010
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MANAGEMENT S ISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of Florence County, South Carolina, we offer readers of the Florence County
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Florence
County for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2010. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in
our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1 8 of this report,

Financial Highlights

o The assets of Florence County excecded its Habilities at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $77,401,747 {ner assefs). Of this amount, $32,363,864 represents unrestricted net
assets. The general fund unreserved, undesignated fund balance was $10,910,932, which
may be used to meet the government’s cash flow management needs and its ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors. The remainder represents amounts accounted for in
special revenue, debt service, and capital project funds which are reserved or designated
for the specific purposes of cach fund.

e The government’s total net assets decreased by $6,798,841. Nearly all of this decrease is
attributable to a budgeted use of General Fund fund balance of $1,740,000, various
purchases of real property approximating $2,000,000, and economic development
meentives approximating $2,930.0600 to three new industries that have committed to
invest approximately $138,000,000 in Florence County.

* As of the close of the current fiscal year, Florence County’s governmental fands reported
combined ending fund balances of $31,488,139, a decrease of $1.568.460 in COMPpArison
with the prior year primarily as the result of a planned transfer of $1.231.020 from the
General Fund to the Landfill Enterprise Fund.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, the unreserved, undesignated fund balance for the
general fund was 510,910,932, or a healthy 20 percent of total general fund expenditures
and net transfers in.

» Fiorence County’s debt decreased by $2,138,542 (4.6 percent) during the current fiscal
year. The key factor in this decrease was the principal payment during the fiscal year on
the capital lease that funded the law enforcement center and the civic center,

Overview of the Financial Statoments

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Florence County basic
financial statements. Florence County’s basic financial statements comprise three components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information to the basic
financial statements themselves,

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements ave
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of Florence County’s finances, in a manne
stmilar to a private-sector business,

The statement of net assets presents information on all Florence County’s assets and Labilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assers. Over time, increases or decreases in



net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Florence County is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net asseis
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardiess of the fiming of velated cash flows,
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash
flows only in future fiscal periods {e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Florence County that
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from cther functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges (business-type activifies). The governmental activities of Florence County
include general government, public safety, economic development, public works, health, welfare,
culture and recreation, and education. The business-type activities of Florence County include a
utility system, a county landfill and an E911 system.

The government-wide financial statements inctude not only Florence County itself (known as the

primary government), but also a legally separate building commission for which Florence
County is financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported
eparately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself,

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 25 — 26 of this report.

Fund finaucial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Florence
County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirernents. All of the funds of Florence County can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Govermmental fundy are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmenial gctivities i the government-wide fmancial statements, However,
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable vesources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources avatlable at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government’s near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds s narrower than that of the government-wide financial
stalernents, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental finds with similar
information presented for governmental gotivities in the governmentaj-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Florence County maintains forty-one individual governmental funds, Information is presented

separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of

15
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revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the grant S{}G‘Ci&]
revenue fund, and the museum capital project fund, ali of which are considered to be major
funds. Data from the other thirty-eight governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for cach of these nonmajor governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Florence County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with
this budget. A budgetary compliance atdtcmmm has been provided for this fund to demonstrate
compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 27 — 31 of this report.

Proprietary funds. Florence County maintains one type of proprietary funds. Enterprive finds
arc used to report the same functions presented as business-fype activities in the government-
wide financial statements. Florence County uses enterprise funds to account for its utility system,
its landfill, and its E911 system.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide scparate
information for the wtility system, the landfill, and for the E911 system, all of which are
considered to be major funds of Florence County.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 32 — 35 of this report,

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
stalements because the resources of those funds are ot available {o support Florence County’s
own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary
funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 36 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided tn the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 37 -~ 75 of this report.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor
governmental funds are presented immediately followimg the notes to the financial statements.
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 77 — 98 of this
report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of 4 government’s financial

position. In the case of Florence County, assets exceeded Habilities by $77,401,747 at the close
of the most recent fiseal year,

i6



The largest portion of Florence County’s net assets (56 percent) reflects its investment in capital
assets {e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment}, less any related outstanding debt used to
acquire those assets. Florence County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are nof available for future spending. Although Florence County’s
investment in its capital assets is reporied net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital asseis
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these labilities,

Florence County’s Met Assefs

Governrnental Business-lype
Activities Activities Totai
2030 2009 2010 2065 2010 2049

Current and other agseis 542,259 164 8§ 52024787 § 787,881 % 7513700 % 490447045  § 80836488
Capital ass 81,174,174 80,086,653 2673390 2,521,889 83.797.370 82,608,547

To 123383338 132,111,440 9,861,278 HLG33.590 133,244,615 142145030
Limg-term iities outsianding 44,750,505 40,885 048 Y3l 90 44,751,300 40,889,938
Oither liabilities G 9,696,286 1,691,252 1.338.218 11,001 472 11,054,504

Total lisbilities i 56,588,134 1,692 14% £.359. 308 55,847 K68 57,844,442
Met i
Invesied in capttal assets, nat

of related debt 40,838,692 38516950 2.573.396 2.521.889 43,512,088 41,038,839
Restncted 1,525,795 1,498,580 - - 1,528.79% 1ATE SR
Unrestricled 26,568,120 33,510,570 5495738 6,152.5932 32,363 804 41,663,169

Total net gssets $.09.230,613  § 75520306 % B169.134 8 §.674487 §11AGET747  § 842003588

An additional portion of Florence County’s net assets (1.97 percent) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted
net asyets {$32,363,864) is comprised of the general fund unreserved, undesignated fund balance
of $10,910,932, which may be used to meet the government’s cash flow management needs and
its ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors and a remaining balance of $21,452,932, which
represents amounts accounted for in special revenue, debt service, and capital project funds
which are reserved or designated for the specific purposes of each fund.

The County’s unrestricted net assets decreased by $9,299,305 during the curtent fiscal year as a
resuit of a budgeted use of General Fund fund balance of §1,740,000, various purchases of real
property approximating $2,000,000, and ecconomic development incentives to three new
industries approximating $2,950,000. In addition, nnrestricted cash and investments decreased by
$5,784,941 as a result of the purchase of capital assets during the year. Even given these
purchases of capital assets during the vear, net assets invested in capital assets increased by only
$1,189,029 as a result of current depreciation.

Governmental activities. Goveromental activities adjusted Florence County’s net assets
downward by $6,293,493 10 $69,232,613.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities decreased Florence County’s net assets by
$505,347, primarily as a result of the budgeted use of Landfill Enterprise Fund fund balance in
the amount of $560,000 for various capital projects.



Revenues:

Florence County’s Changes in Net Assets

Governmental

Agtivitics

Business-type
Aptivi

8 Total

2010

2009 2818

2009 2010

2009

Progragn revenues:

Charpes for services

512,561,420

313,017,659 § 3.40).668

§ 2049284 813563086

$125.066.943

Operating grans and
coniztbutions

11,835,769

11,932,002 -

- 11,535,769

13,232,002

Capital grants and

contributions TA0K402 HL033.845 - - 7408407 10,033,248

General rovenues;
Property taxes 26,449,051 26,503,050 - - 26,449051 26,503,650
Other axes 16,686,521 16032578 - - 16,086,321 16037678
Other F32 604 2679 HHRG63 196311 823,267 1L123110
Yotal revenues 74,813,767 78,446,633 3,502,329 2,245.595 783160906 80,692,228

Expenses:

General povernment RANLANEEY 24,427 877 - - 24457 877
20,832,785 22,634,972 22634972

fronomic and physical
development 1,641,743 1,434,256 - 1. 454,250
Tublic works 0,203,449 6,84%.200 - 6 8458 300
Health 34789658 3.873.4499 - - 3,973 450
Welfare 456,001 SRO.GAE - - 480458
Culture and recreation 9,572,699 9.124,1553 - - $,572,949 9,124,155
Education 2,254.901 2,278,950 - 2234501 2273950
Loston long-term debt 1,765,256 LR27.075 - - 1LIB6 256 IR VARIEN]
Utility System - - 341436 408,166 341436 400,166
Landtiil - 4447 440 5318160 4,441,440 5818160
2911 System - - 416.92G 361,863 416920 361,865

79,915,341

12050748 5.199,79¢

5,380,191 83,114,937

$1.630.939

(5001374}

3,395,885 {1.687.457)

(£.334.398) _{ 6.798,841}

(. 938TILY

(192,119

{463734) 1.1%2.119

463,734

Increase {decreases) in net assels

{ 6,293.493)

2.832,151 {506,348y

(3.870.862) (6,798,841

{ 938710

Net Culy 1,

78,526,106

72,333,955 B.6T4,482

12,545.344 54,200,588

53 439.799

Met assets, hune 30

369,232,613

§75.526.406 % 8,109,134

$ 8674482 $77.401,747

584,260 588
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, Florence County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements,

Governmental funds. The focus of Florence County’s govermmental funds is to provide
wformation on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is uscful in assessing Florence County’s financing requirements, In particular,
unreserved fund balance way serve as a uscful measure of a government’s net resources
available for cash flow puorposes, to maintain financial stsbility in the economic downturn
affecting revenue received from the state government and to fund reimbursement-based grants,
as had often been the case in recent years.

As of the end of the fiscal year, Florence County’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of 31,488,139, a decrease of $1,568,460 in cormparison with the prior year
primarily as the result of a planned transfer of $1,231,020 from the General Fund to the Landfill
Enterprise Fund. Nearly half of this total amount (314,764,871} constitutes unreserved,
undesignated fund balance. The reroainder of fund balance is reserved or designated to indicate
that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed 1) to liquidate
contracts and purchase orders of the prior period ($23,408), 2} to pay debt service (82,151,381,
3} to pay for various capiial improvements or other expenditures in future years ($14,242,786),
or 4} for a vartety of other restricted purposes ($161,422).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of Florence County. At the end of the current fiscal
vear, wreserved, undesignated fund balance of the general fund was $10.910,932, while total
tund balance reached $12,007,396. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful
fo compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to fotal fund expenditures and
net transfers in. Unreserved, undesignated fund balance represents 20 percent of total general
fund expenditures and net transfers in, while total fund balance represents 22 percent of that
same amount.

The fund balance of Florence County’s general fund decreased by $5,296,888 during the current
fiscal year, primarily as a result of a planned draw down of fund balance.

The grant special revenue fund has a total fund balance of ($1,216,296), all of which is

designated for subsequent years’ expenditures. This fund balance decreased by $3.187,397,
g q y P : ¥

primarily as a result of the transfer to the museum capital project fund.

The museurn capital project fund has a total fund balance of $7.813,328. all of which is
designated for subsequent years’ cxpenditures, This fund balance increased by $7.813,328,
primarily as a result of the transfer from the grant special revenue fund.

Proprietary funds. Florence County’s proprietary funds provide the same type information found
in the government-wide financial statements, bat in more detail,



Unrestricted net assets of the utility system at the end of the vear amounted to $2.916,616, those
for the landfill amounted 1o $811,490, and those for the E911 system amounted to $1,767,632.
The total decrease in net assets for the utility fund and the landfill fund was $299,021 and
$852,218, respectively. The total increase in net assets for the E911 system was $645,892. Other
factors concerning the finances of these three funds have already been addressed in the
discussion of Florence County’s business-type activities,

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

There were minor changes between the original budget and the final amended budget for the
General Fund. Budgeted revenue from sales and other functional revenuve generated by the
Recreation Departinent was  increased by $65,000 and budgeted general government
expenditures were increased by a corresponding amount. Budgeted general government
operating transfers in were increased by $2,981.001 to fund economic development incentives
for three mdustries and general government expendifures were increased by a corresponding
amount. General government expenditures were also increased by $2,000,000 for various real
property purchases. Finally, general government expenditures were increased by $802,457,
primarily o fund a capital payment in the amount of $450,000 on behalf of a local hospital
special purpose district, to fund five additional Sheriff’s deputies for six mounths at a cost of
$107,000, and to fund a long range transportation plan contract in the amount of $151,000. Afier
these changes to the General Fund budget were made, it was expected that fund balance would
decrease by a total of up to $4,542,457. However, since less money was spent during the vear
than was budgeted, primarily as a result of savings from vacant personnel positions and
reimbursements being received earlier than planned on library construction grants, fand balance
decreased by only $3,937.434,

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. Florence County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business
type activities as of June 30, 2010, amounts to 383,797,570 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and additions, improvements other than
buildings, autos and trucks, furniture and fixtares, machinery and equipment, and roads and
bridges.

Major capital assets events during the carrent fiscal year included the following:

s Construction was completed on three new branch Hbraries.
# Various real property purchases were made.

Florence County’s Capital Assets
{(net of depreciation)

Covermmenta Business-type
Activitics Activities Total
2010 204 2610 2009 2010 2009
Land F.0258319 % BOAIR 52308451 §2.369,193 SLLSe0. 770 211238413
Buildings and additions 42,011,795 39,420,077 1,895 - 42.013.600 394200877
Improvements other than buildings 4,623,304 4955381 G133 17.097 4,632,497 4,572 478
Autos and trucks 318877 2544944 1000 33,250 5137877 2.978.194
Fumniture and fixtures 199 584 46,362 4,830 4312 g4 50,674
Machinery anc eguipment 5,833,169 0,486,356 330,087 158.038 6,163,256 0,544,391
Infrastruciure 16.079 066 17703113 - - 16079066 17703113
Total B 381024174  SEOOB6 63T B2673394 49 971 489 SEATOTSTY  $82.608.342

o]
]



Additional information ou Florence County’s capital assets can be found in Note 2 on pages 54 —
56 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the curent fiscal vear, Florence County had fotal bonded debt
outstanding of 817,676,639, This entire amount is backed by the full faith and credit of the
government. The remainder of Florence County's debt represents revenue bonds, unused
vacation pay, and capital leases which are secured by annual appropriations by County Couneil.

Florence County’s Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds and Other Debt

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2619 24369 2010 2009 2010 2609
Crenersl chligation honds $17.676,639  $ 18086357 % - & - $17.676,039 $18.986.357

4780482 2,800,000 - - 4,780,487 2,305,664
Capital leases 20,665,000 23,868,030 - - 20,66 23868030
Unused vagation pay 1628 384 1728597 891 290 162 1728997
Tatal 244750.905  FACKRGO4R  § 891§ 8490 $44.75 1,356 46,889,938

Florence County’s total debt decreased by $2,138,542 (4.6 percent) during the current fiscal
vear. The key factor in this decrease was the principal payments made on various capital [eases
during the course of the fiscal year.

Florence County maintains an “A” rating from Standard & Poor’s, and an Aa2 rating from
Moody’s.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 8
percent of its total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for Florence County is
$34,506,399, which is significantly in excess of Florence County’s general obligation debt as of
June 30, 2010, which is $17,676,639.

Additional information on Florence County’s long-term debt can be found in note 2 on pages 39
— 70 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budpets and Rateg

# The unemployment rate for Florence County is currently 11.1%, which is a decrease from
arate of 12.1% a year ago.

This factor was considered in preparing Florence County’s budget for the 2011 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance in the general fund
decreased to $10,910,932. This fund balance has now reached a threshold of 20 percent of
expenditures, limiting any additional planned drawdowns in future budget vears. In addition,
given the anticipation of future reductions in stalte revenue and accompanying increases in
premium expenditures for the state health insurance plan, it is probable that future reductions in
budgeted expenditures will be required to maintain a balanced budget.



Reqguests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Florence County’s finances for
all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to
the Office of the Finance Director, 180 North Irby St. MSC-H, Florence, South Carolina, 29501,

Financial Statements of Component Unit
The financial statements of Florence County’s component unit, the Florence City-County

Building Commission, can be obtained from its administrative office at 180 North Irby Street,
Box VV, Florence, 8.C. 29502,
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SCUTH CAROCLINA

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables (net of aliowance
for uncoliectibies)
Irventories
Prepaids
Resiricted assets:
Temporarily resfricted:
Cash and investments
Note receivable
Capital assats {net of accumulated
depreciation);
Land
Buiidings and additions
improverments other than bulldings
Autos and trucks
Furniture and fixiures
Machinery and equipment
infrastructure
Total assels

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other

current liabiiities
Liabtities payable from resiricted assets
QPERB Bability payable
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year

Dwe i more than one year

Total liabilities

MET ASSETS
invested in capital assels,
net of rafated debt
Restricied for:
Debt service
Unrastricted
Tolal net assets

STATEMENTY OF NET ASBETS
SUNE 30, 2010

Primary Governmeni

Component
Linit

Governmenial

Business-Type

Building

Activities Activities Tatal Commission
§ 33,362,806 § 5457380 $ 38,820,285 $ 132,025
8,587,048 113,612 8,701,560 120,320

164,049 - 164,049 -
144,271 - 144,271 43,118

- 896,140 896,140 -

- 720,739 720,738 -
5,258,319 2,308,451 11,566,770 521,180
42,011,785 1,895 42,013,690 1,020,400
4 623,364 8,133 4,832 497 40,708

3,118,877 19,000 3137877 -
199,584 4 830 204 414 45,080

5,833,189 330,087 6,163,256 -

16,079,066 - 16,079,066 -
123,383,338 G BB1,277 133,244 615 1,922,849
7,838,420 795112 8,631,532 28,050

- R96,140 8946,140 -

1,563,800 - 1,563,800 -
5,261,894 891 5,262 885 33,800
39,488 511 - 29,488,511 123,076
54.150,725 1,692,143 5R,842 868 184,926
40,838 892 2,873,388 43,512,088 1,470,503

1,525,788 - 1,525,795 -
26 868,126 5485738 32,363,864 267 420
3 60232613 $ 8,188,134 B 77401747 3 1,737,823

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statemeant.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 36, 20148

Grant Museum Other Total
Special Capitai Governmental Governmental
General Hevenue Fund Froject Fund Funds Funds

ASBETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assets:
Cash and invesimeants
Hecegivables:

$ 12,779,866 3 - § 7,813,528

$ 12,675,423

$ 33,266,607

Fropery taxes (net) 252,337 - - 123470 375,807
Other governmental urits and agencies 4,345,772 563,413 - 554,032 5,883,217
Others {nat) 1,731,282 10,287 - 487 345 2,228,924
Inventory 25,603 - - 138,448 164,049
Prapaids 44,271 - - - 144,271
Due from other funds 96,289 - - - 36 280
Total asseis $ 19,375 418 $ 893,710 $ 7813328 $ 14,376,718 $ 42,259,164
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable § 1,595,380 5 226222 & - & 1173072 $§ 3.085.584
Fayroil withheldings and accruals 1,656,520 87 352 - 108,212 1,731,884
Other payables 2,912,883 - - - 2.912.883
Due to other funds - 63,474 - 32,815 948,288
Deferrad revenues 1,203,641 1,552 558 - 178,008 2,934 805
Totsl Habilities 7,368,014 1,810,006 1,493,005 10,771,025
Fund balances:
Feserved for debt service reserve - - - 825,586 625,586
Reserved for ancumbrances 23,408 - - - 23,408
Reserved for inventory 22,378 - - 138,446 161,422
Reserved for prepaids 144,271 - - - 144,271
Reserved for debt service - - 1,523,795 1,825,795

Urreserved, reported in:

General fund 11,816,741 - -

11,816,741

Speciat revenue funds - {1,218,256) - 5,324,493 4,108,887
Capital project funds - - 7,813,328 5,268,891 13,082 2159
Total fund balances 12,007,398 1,218,286 7,813,328 12,883,711 31.488,130

Total liahilities and fund balances $ 19375410 % 893710 $ 7,813,328

§ 14,378,716

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different because:
Capital assets used In governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds,
Gtharlong-term assels are not available to gay for current-period

31,124,174

expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 2,934 605
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are nol reported in the funds. (46,314,308}

Net assets of governmental activities § 69,232,813

The Notes o Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,



FLORENCE COUNTY, BOUTH CARDLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES i

FUND BALANCES
GOVERMMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2610

Grant Museum Other Total
Special Capital Project Govermnmartal Govarnmental
General Favanus Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenusas,
Taxes $ 26,742,204 § 238088 $ - 5 8577022 338,558,214
Licenses and permits 1,832,795 - - - 1,832,785
Fines and fees 3,783,725 - - 5,710,388 8.474,124
Intergovemmental 7.084,611 11,883,204 - BTE.828 20,520,643
Sales and other
functional revenues 5,130,255 - - - 5,130,255
Miscellaneous 828,714 5,953,527 71,815 275,912 8,920 768
Total revenues 48 162,304 18,075,719 71615 16,136,184 82,445 708
Expendituras:
Current:
General government 24 577 743 6,312 418 - 1,232,432 32,722,501
Public safety 17,003,166 1,461,248 - 1,733,185 20,197,803
Economic and physical
development - 567,424 - 1,071,488 1,638,813
Public works 1,868,837 - - 2,827,705 4,838,642
Heszith 5,329,598 104,743 - - 5,434,341
Walfare 456,021 - - - 456,021
Cuatture and recreation 5,287,179 3,362,671 - 1,746,801 10,396,451
Education 4,901 - - 2,253,000 2,254 9031
Capital cufiay - = 58,287 1,853,242 1,711,528
Debt service:
Principal retirements - - - 4,640 3802 4,646,202
interest - - - 1,703,698 1,703,698
Payving agent fog - - - 2,588 2,558
Total expenditures 54,467 548 12,408,502 58,287 18,870,816 85,805,150
Revenues over (unger)
grpenditures (6,305,241} 5,687,217 13,328 {2,734,855) {3,359,351}
Other financing sources {usas):
Issuance of debt - - - 2,898,300 2,988,300
Transferin 3,426,089 - 7,800,000 2,748,014 13,874,113
Transfer out (2,402,458) {8,854 814) - {3,808,962) (15,168,232}
Total other financing sources {uses) 1,023,643 (8,854.814) 7,800,000 1837352 1,806,181
Nat change in fund balances (5,281,598} {3,187 587} 7,813,228 (897 ,30%) {1,853,170)
Fund balance - beginning
of year 17,304,284 1,971,301 13,781,014 33,086,80¢
Change in reserve for
invantory {15,280) - - - {15,290}
Fund balance - end of year $ 12,007,386 $ 1,216,296} $ 7,813,328 $ 12,883,711 % 31,488,139

The Notes to Financlal Siaterments are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CARDLINA

RECONGILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Amounts reporled for governmental activities in the statement of activities {page 26) are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmeantal funds {page 28)

Governmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures. Howsver, In Hia
staternand of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their astimated
useful ives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outiays exceeded depraciation in the current pariod.

Capital cutiays 7,089,751
lL.ess: depraciation expense {page 55) (5,998473)

The net effect of various miscefianeous transactions involving capital assets
{i.e., sales, trade-ing, and donations)is to decrease net assets

Disposals of capial assels; net of acoumidated depreciation (page 54)

Revanues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reporied as revenuas v fhe funds.

Deferred revenues {page 27} 2,834,605
Less: deferrad revenues, June 30, 2008 {10,985 9341

The issuance of long-term debt {e.q., bonds, leasas) provides current financial
resournes to govemnmental funds, while the repayment of the principle of long-term
debt consumes the curent financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transattion, however, has any effact on net assets. Also, governmental funds
repor the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar tems when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounis are defarred and amortizad in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences inthe
treatment of long-lerm dabt and relatad iems.

Principal retirements 5,037,930
Net decrease in vagstion pay samed not used 100,813
Less: issuance of debt (3,060,600}

Increase in capital assels for which no capital cutlay funds were expended, primartly
representsd by the value of new subdivision roads donated to the County

Deacrease in QFER liability payahle
Some expenses raported In the stefement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reportad as expenditures in

governmenial funds

Change in reserve for inventory {page 28)

Change in nel assaels of governmental activities {page 28)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

% {1,553170

1,081,278

(105,006)

(8,051,328}

2,138,543

51,341

150,232

{15,290}

$ (6,293.403)



FLOREMCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGFET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 38, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget -
Favorable

Criginal Final Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Taxes B 31,283,874 $ 31,203,874 § 29,742,204 $ {1,551,770)
Licenses and parmits 1,876,800 1,876,800 1,832,795 {144,005}
Finas and fees 3,867 480 3,867,480 3,763,725 (103,755}
intergovernmertal 7,485,965 7,495,965 7,064,611 {431,354)

Sales and other
functional revenuss 5,196,833 5,261,833 5,130,285 {131,578)
Miscellaneous 1,248,000 1,248,000 628,714 {619,286}
Total revenues 51,079,082 51,144,052 48,162,304 (2.981,748)

Expendiiures:
General government
Fublic safety
Public warks
Health
Walfare
Culture and recreation
Education
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under)
expanditures

Cther financing sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers oul

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning
of year

Fund balance - end of vear

19,898,489 05,524,177 24,590,755 933,422
17,086,208 17,086,208 17,001,431 84,777
2 858,686 2,858,686 1,808,837 1,049,749
5,726,877 5,726,877 5,328,508 397,279
463,777 463,777 456,021 7,756
5,375,033 5,375,033 5,286,989 88,044
4,901 4,901 4,901 -

51,413,071 57,039,650 54,478,632 2561.027
(334,319) (5,895,607) (6,316,328) (420,721)
419,151 3,400,752 3,426,099 25,347

(3,407,056)

(3,407 056)

(2,402 456}

1,004,600

(3,322,824) (5,901,811} (5,292,685) 609,226
17,292,787 17,292,787 17,292,787 -
$ 13,969,963 § 11,390,876  $ 12,000,102  § 609,226

(Continued)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, 8OUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2040

{Continued)

Reconciiiation of fund balarce:
CAAF hasis $ 12,007,398
Increase (decrease);
Due 1o expendiiures:

Encumbrances {23,409

invenicries {22,978}

Cash - Juror fee accounts 39,001
Budgetary basis $ 12,000,102

The Notes to Financial Staternents are an integral part of this staiement,
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT QF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 34, 2010

Business-type Activities - Enterorise Funds

-lorence Fiorence Caunty
Cotnty County E0tt
Ltlity System Landfill Sysiem Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and invastments $ 2232114 $ 1,533,827 $1,601.449 $ 545773080
Recelvables:
Due from customers - 14,455 Bg 1E7 113,612
Total current assets 2,232 114 1,548,282 1,730,808 5,571,002
Moncurrent assets:
Restricted pash and investments - 898 140 - 808,140
Mote receivable 720,739 - - 720,739
Capital assels:
Land - 2,465,853 - 2485 853
Ruildings & additions - 185,721 - 185,724
Improvements other than buildings - 587,096 - 567,086
Aufos & frucks - 1,738,972 25,009 1,783,981
Furniture & fixtures - 1,720 16,357 18,077
Machinery & squipment - 48 573 1,120,870 1,168,443
Less accumutated depreciation - (2,669 441) {827,334} 13,496,775)
Total capital assets (nat of
accumuiated depreciation) - 2,338,494 334,902 2,673,386
Total noncurrent asseis T20,736 3,234,634 334,802 4,280 275
Total asssis 2,952,853 4,782,916 2,125 508 9,861,277
LIABRITIER
Lizhilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 36,234 736,793 18,006 791,033
Apcrued pavrol] - - 4073 4,079
Total current liabilites 36,234 736,793 22,085 795112
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued vacation - - 891 891
Closure and post-closure costs - 896,140 - 886,140
Total long-term Habilities - 896,140 391 897,031
Total tiabilities 36,234 1,832,833 22,976 1,692,142
NET ASSETS
invested in capital assels - 2,338,494 334,802 2,873,398
Unrestricted 2,916,619 811,480 1,767,630 5,495 738
Total nef assefs 52,916,618 $ 3,140 .983 S 2,102 532 § 8,160,134

The Notes fo Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Florence County

Litility Systam

Landfil

Florence County  Florence County
E811 System

Totals

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
System maintenance
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Cperating income {loss)

Mon operating revenues (expenses):
irnterast sarnsd on investments
Total nonoperating revenuss
{expenses)

income (loss) befors operating transfers

Transfers in
Transfars out

Change in net asssts
Net assels - beginning

Net assets - ending

$ - $ 2322730 $ 1,078,936 3,401,666
- 2,322,730 1,078,036 3407 666

341,436 4,417,610 312,644 5,071,690

- 23,830 104,276 128,108

341,436 4441,440 418,520 5.109,706
(341,438) (2,118,710 £62,015 (1,768,130}
42,418 35,470 22,775 100,663
42,418 35,470 22,775 100,663
(289,018) (2,083,240} 584,791 (1,697,467)

- 1,231,020 - 1,231,020

- - (38,901) (38,001)
(299,018) (852,220 545,850 (505,348)
3,215,637 4,002,203 1,456,642 8,674,482

$ 2916619  § 3,149,983 $ 2,102,532 $ 8,169,134

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CARCGLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 38, 20190

Business-iype Activities - Enterprise Funds

Florence Florence Florence
County County County
Utility System Landfil EG11 System Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users % - % 2,308,273 § 1,081,085 $ 3,388,328
Payments 1o suppliers {375,140} {4,052.88%) {245,123} (4,673,148}
Payments to empioyees - - (65,508) {65,508)
Met cash provided by {ussd 1)
operating activitias {375,140} {1,744 610} 770,424 (1,349,326}
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers in - 1,231,020 - 1,231,020
Transfers out - - {38,201) {38,801)
Net cash provided by {used in}
non-capital inancing activities - 1,231,020 {38,901 1,182,118
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL and RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payment recaived on noka 338,715 - - 338,715
Purchase of capital assets - - {279,613} {273,613}
Net cash provided by {used in}
financing activities 339,715 - {279,613} 60,102
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest eamed on operating funds 42,418 35470 22,775 100,663
Other - - - -
Met cash provided by investing
activities 42,418 35,470 22,775 100,663
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and restricted cash §,993 (478,120} 474,685 3,558
Cagh and restricted cash at beginning of pericd 2,225,121 2,908,087 1,246,764 6,348,972
Cash and restricted cash at end of period % 2,232,114 $ 2,428,967 $ 1,891,443 $ 5,393,530
(Contimed)

The Notes to Financial Staterments are an integral part of this statement,



FLORENCE COUNTY, S0OUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2040

Business-iype Activities - Enterprise Funds

Florence Florence Florence
County County County
Utility System Landiil E911 Syatem Totals

{Continued)

Reconciliation of oparating income to net cash
provided by {used In} operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 0 (341436) § (218710 k] 862,018 § {1,798,130)
Adjusiments to reconcils operating loss to
net cash provided by (used in) operations;

Dapreciation - 23,830 104,276 128,108
Changes in assets and #abilifies:
(Increase) decrease in receivables - (14,455} 2,118 {12,337}
{increase) decragse in prepaid expensas - - ~ -
increase (decrease) in accounts payable {33,704} 368,225 1,548 338,069
tncrease (decreass) in postclosure costs - {3,500% - {3,500}
Incraase (decrease) in accrued payroll - - 466 466
Net cash provided by (used in}
operating activities $ (375140 $ {1,744.810) 3 770,424 § 11,248,326)

SCHEDULE of NONCASH INVESTING and FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

NONE

The Notes to Financial Statements are an intagral part of this statomeant,
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF ASSBETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2010

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments 5 12,234,805
Total assatls $ 12,234,895
LIABILITIES
Due to others L 1,818,970
Oue to other taxing units 10,418,825
Total lishilities $ 12,234,885
Reconciliation to combining statements;
Tolal assets and liabilities per above 3 12,234,885
Amount due to other funds - eliminated from basic financial statements 486,619
Total assets and liabilities per combining statements {page 102) § 12721514

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 20140

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A,

The Financial Reporting Entity

Florence County is a municipal corporation governed by an elected nine member
council. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial
statements present Florence County (the primary government) and its compo-
nent unit, a legally separate entity for which the County is financially accountable.
The component unit discussed in Note 1.B. is included in the County's reporting
entity because of the significance of its operational or financial relationships with
the County.

Component Unit

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, the financial state-
menis of component units have been included in the financial reporting entity ei-
ther as blended component units or as discretely presented component units.

Blended component units: Florence County has no blended component units,

Discretely presented component units: The component unit column in the com-
bined financial statements includes the financial data of the County's component
unit. It is reported in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally separate
from the County.

The Florence City-County Building Commission is responsibie for the mainte-
nance and operation of the Florence City-County Complex building. The
County provides approximately 72% of the operating revenue for the Com-
mission under an agreement with the City of Florence. The Commission is
governed by a seven member board that is appointed by the Governor of the
State of South Carolina. Five members are appointed based on the recom-
mendation of County Council and two members on the recommendation of
Florence City Counil,

Complete financial statements of the individual component unit can be obtained
at 180 North Irby Street, Box VV, Florence, S.C. 28502,
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C.

Related Organizations

The County's officials are also responsible for appointing the members of the
boards of other organizations, but the County's accountability for these organiza-
tions does not extend beyond making the appointments. The County Council
appoints the board members of the Howe Springs Fire District Board, the Sardis-
Timmonsville Fire District Board, the Johnsonville Fire District Board, and the
Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse.

Joint Venture

The County is a participant with the City of Florence in a joint venture to operate
the Florence City-County Civic Center. The Fiorence City-County Civic Center
Commission was created for that purpose. The Commission is governed by a
nine member board composed of four appointees from the County and four from
the City with the remaining member appointed by the members of the board.
The County and the City are obligated by agreement to contribute $520,000 each
annually as its share of the cost of the Civic Center. Included in the agreement is
a provision that any additional funding shortfall is to be paid squally by the Coun-
ty and the City. Neither of the participating governments have any equity interest
in the joint venture, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial
statements at June 30, 2010. Complete financial statements of the Commission
can be obtained from its administrative office at 3300 Waest Radio Drive, Flor-
ence, S.C. 29501,

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statemenis (i.e., the statement of net assets and
the statement of changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduci-
ary activities of the primary government and its component unit. For the most
part, the effect of the interfund activity has been removed from these statemeants,
Governmental activifies, which normally are supported by taxes and intergov-
ernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-fype activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary
government is reported separately from g certain legally separate component unit
for which the primary government is financially accountable.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CARDLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended Juns 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activilies demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses
of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct sxpenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Pro-
gram revenues include 1) charges fo customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted o meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes
and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported in-
stead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary
funds, and fidudiary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the govern-
ment-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
siatements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

in June 1999, Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued State-
ment No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and
Analysis for state and local governments and in June 2001, GASR issued State-
ment No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus and Statement No. 38,
Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. These statements established
new requirements for annual financial reports for state and local governments,
The County implemented these statements for the year ended June 30, 2003,

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic re-
sources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the pro-
prietary fund statements. The agency fund financial statements do not have a
measurement focus; however, they are reported using the acorual basis of ac-
counting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Property tax-
es are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar Hems are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibllity requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
{Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available,
Revenues are considered {o be avaiable when they are collectible within the cur-
rent period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are col-
lected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures gener-
ally are recorded when a liability Is incurred, as under accrual accounting. How-
ever, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise fees, licanses, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government,

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. it accounts for
all financial resources of the general government, except those required fo be
accounted for in another fund.

The Grant Special Revenue Fund accounts for the activities reiative to vari-
ous federal and state grants received throughout the fiscal year.

The Museum Capital Project Fund accounts for the construction of a new mu-
seum in Florence County.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Utility System Fund accounts for the balances remaining after the water
and sewer system were consolidated into the City of Florence utility system.

The County Landfill Fund accounts for the activities of the County landfil{ and
the operation of 15 manned convenience centers throughout the County.

The E871 Systern Fund accounts for the operating of the County's emergen-
cy 911 system,

A3



FLORENCE COUNTY, S8OUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Preseniation
{Continued)

The government afso reports the receipt and disbursement of property taxes and
other revenues for school districts, municipalities, fire districts, and other special
purpose districts in its fiduciary funds.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to De-
cember 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprie-
tary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict
with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-secior guid-
ance for thelr business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
iimitation. The government has elected not fo follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

As a genergl rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or ap-
plicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and con-
tributions, and 3} capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources
are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise,
general revenues include all taxes.

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperat-
ing items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing ser-
vices and producing and delivering goods in connection with an enterprise fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Utility Sys-
tem Fund, the County Landfill Fund, and the E911 System Fund are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for emterprise funds in-
clude the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are re-
ported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the

government’s policy to use restricted resources first, and then use unrestricted
resources as they are needed.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROCLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Budgetary Data

Budget

The County foliows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected
in the financial statements:

1.

Prior to May 1, the County Administrator and Finance Director
submit to the County Councll a proposed operating budget for the fiscal
year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducied by the County fo obiain taxpayer
comments.

Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an or-
dinance.

The County Administrator is authorized fo transfer budgeted amounts
within departments or between departments. Revisions that alfer total ex-
penditures of a fund must be approved by the County Council.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control de-
vice during the year for all funds of the County; howaver, legal budgets are
adopted only for the General Fund and the following ten Special Revenue
Funds: Capital Improvements Special Revenue Fund, Law Library Special
Revenue Fund, Economic Development Parinership Special Revenue
Fund, Victim/Witness Assistance Special Revenue Fund, Local Accom-
modations Fee Special Revenue Fund, Hospitality Tax Special Revenue
Fund, Sheriff Camps Special Revenue Fund, Sheriff Sex Offender Special
Revenue Fund, Seized Auction Special Revenue Fund, and Road System
Mainienance Fee Special Revenue Fund. For each fund for which & for-
mal budget is adopted, the same basis of accounting is used to reflect ac-
tual revenues and expenditures recognized on the basis of generally ac-
cepted accounting principles.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINARNCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G.

Budgetary Daia (Continued)

The County provides that the whole or any part of any appropriation pro-
vided for grants, and 5.C. Accommodations tax budgeted amounts for out-
lays of any aclivity remaining unexpended or unencumbered at the close
of the fiscal year shall remain in full force and effect and shall be held
available for the following vear, except any such appropriations as the
County Councll by ordinance may abandon, Al other appropriations,
which are not encumbered, lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

3. The budget for the General Fund is adopted on a basis that differs from

generally accepted accounting principles {(GAAP) in that expenditures are
budgeted on a basis that includes encumbrances. Budgetary control over
expenditures is exercised by County Council on a departmental basis to
establish more administrative control than state law requires. Legal level
of budgetary control is at the fund level. The actual resulis of operations
are presented in the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - in accordance with
the budget basis o provide a meaningful comparison between actual re-
suits and budget. Adjustments necessary to convert the results of opera-
tions and fund balances at the end of year on the GAAP basis o the
budget basis for the General Fund are as follows:

GAAP basis
Increase {decrease):
Due to expenditures:

Fund
Balance
Net Change in at end of
Fund Balance ear
(Generg] General
__Fund Fund

($5,281,598)

$12,007.396

Encumbrances {23,218} {23,409}
inveniories - {22,976)
Cash - Juror fee accounts 12,132 39,001

Budgetary basis ($5.292 685) $12.000,102
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended Junse 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The County does not have budgets for the fiscal yvear ended June 30,
2008, for the South Carolina Accommodations Tax Special Revenue
Fund, the Treasurer Delinquent Tax Special Revenue Fund, the Grant
Special Revenue Fund, the Jail Dabt Service/Operations and Maintenance
(O&M) Special Revenue Fund, the Emergency Management Special Rev-
enue Fund, the County Library Special Revenue Fund, the Florence-
Darlington Technical Education Center and Library Special Revenus
Fund, the Howe Springs Fire District Special Revenue Fund, the Sardis-
Timmonsville Fire District Special Revenue Fund, the Johnsonville Fire
Ristrict Special Revenue Fund, and the Senior Citizens Center Special
Revenue Fund. individual fund statements of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balance -- budget {(budgetary basis) and actual pre-
sent financial information for only the following special revenue funds
which have legally adopted annual budgets: Capital Improvements Special
Revenue Fund, Law Library Special Revenug Fund, Economic Develop-
ment Parinership Special Revenue Fund, Vicim/Witness Assistance Spe-
cial Revenue Fund, Local Accommodations Fee Special Revenue Fund,
Hospitality Tax Special Revenue Fund, Sheriff Camps Special Revenue
Fund, Sheriff Sex Offender Special Revenue Fund, Seized Auction Spe-
cial Revenue Fund, and Road System Maintenance Fee Special Revenue
Fund.

Encumbrances

The County maintains encumbrance accounts which are considered to be "budg-
etary accounts”. Encumbrances outstanding at year end represent the estimated
amounts of the expenditures ultimately 1o be incurred if unperformed contracts in
process at year end are completed. Encumbrances outstanding at year end do
not constitute expenditures or liabilities,

At June 30, 2010, $23,408 of open purchase orders and contracts were out-
standing. These amounts are reported as "Reserved for encumbrances” in the
fund balance section of the balance sheet. Encumbrances do not lapse at year
end.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 3§, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

.

Assets, Liabiliies and Fund Equity
Deposits and investments

As of June 30, 2010, the County had the following investments and maturities:

Invesiment Maturities Fair Value
Certificates of Deposit 10118110 - 04/16/11 $ 11,540,205
Total investments %5 11.540.205

Interest Rate Risk — The County does not have a formal investment policy that
limits invesiment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair vaiue
iosses arising from increasing interest rates,

Credit Risk — Statutes authorized the County to invest in obligations of the State
of South Carolina and any of its political units, United States Government obliga-
tions fully insured or guaranteed by the United States Government, repurchase
agreements and certificaies of deposit which are secured by direct obligations of
the State of South Carolina or the United States Government, and savings and
ivan associations to the extent that the same are insured by an agency of the
Federal government. The County has no investment policy that would further limit
its investment choices.

Conceniration of Credit Risk — The County places no limit on the amount that the
County may invest in any one issuer. More than 5% of the County's total invest-
ments are in certificates of deposit (100.0%).

As of June 30, 2010, the County had the following balances in cash and invest-
ments:

Cash, including restricted cash and invesiments $28,176,131

invastments 11.540,295
Total cash and investments $39,716,426
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY of SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property Taxes Receivable

Ad valorem taxes receivable are accrued as revenue for collections 60 days sub-
sequent to year end; the balance is not accrued because it is not considered to
be both "measurable and available". The amount of the receivable is reduced by
an allowance for doubtful accounts and is based on historical collection experi-
ence (Note 2). An amount equal to the net receivable less the 60 days subse-
guent collections is shown as deferred revenue on the liability side of the balance
sheet. The following dates are applicable to property taxes:

Lien date December 31
Levy date July 1

Bue date January 15
Collection daie March 15

According to South Carolina law, ad valorem taxes levied on July 1, the begin-
ning of the fiscal year, are due January 15. Penalties accrue at that time. On
March 15 delinquent costs also begin to accrue. On June 30, they are materially
past due and, consequently, cannot be considered as a resource which can be
used to finance the government operations for this year although the amount due
is measurable.

For collection purposes, ad valorem taxes receivable are written off at the end of
ten years in accordance with South Carolina law.

For reporting purposes this receivable also includes costs and fees relating to
property taxes.

Sales Tax Receivable

In November 1993, the Florence County voters approved a referendum to im-
pose a one percent local oplion sales tax. This tax was imposed beginning May
1, 1984, All of the revenue collected from this tax is being used as a credit
against ad valorem taxes and vehicle taxes. This credit first appeared on ad val-
orem fax notices mailed November 1984 and on vehicle tax notices beginning
with those notices for January 1995.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

According to GASB Statement 22, "Sales faxes coilected by merchants but not
yet required to be remitied to the taxing authority at the end of the fiscal year and
taxes collected and held by one government agency for ancther at vear-end
should be accrued.." Therefere, May and June taxes which were received by
the County within 60 days after fiscal year-end are shown as sales tax receivable
on the asset side of the balance sheet.

included In other payables at June 30, 2010, are local option sales tax collections
in excess of local option sales tax credits applied on property tax notices as fol-
fows:

Special Revenue Fund 773,760

.............................

Allowance for Doubtful Accounds

An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained for property taxes, Emergency
Medical Services (EM3), Vehicle Registration Fee, Florence County Utility Sys-
tem, and Landfill receivables which historically experience uncollectible accounts.
All other receivables are generally collectible and any doubtful accounts are con-
sidered immaterial.

Inventory

lnventories are maintained for major items used by the governmental funds and
enterprise funds. Inventories of the governmental funds are valued at cost. The
purchase method is used to account for most inventories of the governmental
funds. The purchase method is not used for the drug and supply inventory of the
EMS system since this inventory is held for use for EMS patienis and is not ex-
pended until used. The purchase method is not used for the fuel truck inventory
as well and is not expended until used. The amount of these inventories at Junse
30, 2010, is $2,627. Therefore, the tolal Florence County General Fund inventory
baiance at June 30, 2010, of $25,803 is not equally offset by the Florence County
General Fund fund balance reserved for inventory of $22,976. Under the pur-
chase method, disbursements for inventory-type items in the General Fund are
considered (o be expendiiures at the fime of purchase. Supplies transferred fo
and consumed by the individual departments are considered a reduction of the
inventory expenditure account and an expenditure of the department.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Reported inventories accounted for using the purchasa method in the govern-
mental funds are equally offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates the
assels are unavallable for appropriation even though they are a component of
reported assets.

Inventories of proprietary funds are valued at the lower of cost (firstdin, first-out)
or market.

Restiricted Assets - Cash and Investments

The balance shown in restricted assets - cash and investments at June 30, 2010,
is the balance required for closure and post-closure costs of the Florence County
Landfil.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure as-
sets {(e.g., roads and bridges), are reporied in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the govermnment-wide financial siatements.
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an inifial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if pur-
chased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capifalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 3¢, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using
the straight line method over the Tollowing estimated useful lives:

Assels Years
Buildings 50
Building improvements 20
Roads 20
Bridges 40
Machinery & equipment 10
Vehicles 5
Furniture & fixiures 10
Computer equipment 5

Long-Term Obligations

in the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are re-
ported as liabiliies in the applicable govemmental, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as
well as {ssuance costs, are deferred and amoartized over the life of the bonds us-
ing the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applica-
ble bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reporied as deferred
charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

Iy the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premi-
ums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.
The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premi-
ums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are re-
ported as debt service expenditres.

Deferred Revenues

As discussed in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, ad valorem tax-
es receivable are not accrued as revenue because they are not considered to be
both "measurable and available”. NCGA Statement 3 states that property taxes
that are measurable but not available should be initially recorded as deferred
revenues. In addition, property taxes collected in advance of the fiscal year to
which they apply should aiso be recorded as deferred revenues.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The balance in deferred revenues at June 30, 2010, is composed of the following

glements:
Prepaid

Receivables Vehicle Uneamed

From Other Taxes Grant

Governmenis & Fees Revenus Other
General fund $ 188622 51,007 884 3 - 5 7,334
Special revenue - 172,027 1,552,958 -
Debt service - 5078 - -

Totai § 188622  $1.185890 $1,552,958 7,334

Fund Equity

The amounts shown in the fund eguity section of the balance sheet reflect fund
batance as defined by "generally accepled accounting principles® in NCGA
statement 1. Portions of fund balance have also been reserved for inventories,
encumbrances and debt service.

Equity includes the following:
1. Net assets - represents the cumulative net eamings of the enterprise funds.
2. Fund balance - represents the fund balances as defined by "generally accept-

ed accounting principles” in governmental accounting and financial reporting
standards.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Designated Fund Balances
Management has made designations of portions of unreserved fund balances for

capital improvements or other subsequent year expenditures. These balances as
of June 30, 2010, were as follows:

General Fund $ 980,610
Capital improvements Special Revenue Fund 1,101,468
Treasurer Delinquent Tax Special Revenue Fund 170,516
County General Capital Project Fund 748,405
Windy Hill/Olanta Fire District Capital Project Fund 1,520
2008 County Capital Project Fund 2,408,284
Radio bBystem Upgrade Capital Project Fund 206,653
Hannah/Salem/Friendfield Fire District Capital Project Fund 237
Johnsonvilie Fire District Capital Project Fund 7,860
Museum Capital Project Fund 7,813,328
Howe Springs Fire District Capital Project Fund 10,885
2008 County Capital Project Fund 1,887,047

Deficit Fund Balances

The Grants Special Revenue Fund, the Victim/Witness Assistance Special Rav-
enue Fund, and the Johnsonville Fire District Special Revenue Fund had a deficit
fund balance of $1,216,296, $32,502, and $18,562, respectively, as of June 30,
2010, These deficits will be funded through future operations.

i, Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses
Vacation and Sick Pay

The County's vacation policy provides for the accumulation of up to twenty-five
days earned vacation as of the end of the calendar year with such leave being
fully vested when earned. Depending on years of service, ten days (for service
yaars 1-10}, fifteen days (for service years 11-20) or twenty days (for service
over twenty years) may accrue for the cumrent year. Accumulated earned vaca-
tion at June 30, 2010, amounted to $1,628,384 in total, all of which relates to the
governmental funds. The liability of the governmental funds is recorded as a
long-term obligation in the government-wide financial statements. The current
purtion is not considerad to be material.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)

The County's sick leave policy provides for accumulation of ninety days sarmed
sick leave. Depending on years of service, additional days are allowed 1o accrue
for the current year but must be used within that vear or be lost. Sick leave does
not vest; any unused sick leave af refirement is lost and is not used in determina-
tion of length of service for retirement purposes. Since the County has no obliga-
tion for accumulated sick leave until actually taken, no acorual has been made.

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations in Individual Funds

The following table shows the excess of expenditures over appropriations in indi-
vidual funds for the year ended Juns 30, 2010.

Appropriations  Expenditures Excess

Economic Development Partnership Special
Revenus Fund 455,400 954,135 {488,735

For the Economic Development Parinership Special Revenue Fund, excess ex-
penditures were the result of two factors. First, the appropriations for this fund
were based on historical appropriations that did not reflect the revenues of these
funds. Second, as a result of the appropriations being based on historical appro-
priations for the past few fiscal vears, a fund balance had accumulated in this
fund. Therefore, the excess of expenditures cccurred to reduce the fund balance
of this fund fo a more appropriate level.



FLORENCE COUNTY, SQUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Assels

Receivables - Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The amount shown on page 27 for property taxes receivabie is net of an aliow-
ance for doubtful accounts of $1,127,660 for property taxes not related o vehi-
cles. The breakdown of this allowance is as follows;

General Fund & 845270
Special Revenue Funds 149,488
Debt Service Funds 132,943

$1,127.660

included in the amount shown as property taxes receivable are vehicle faxes re-
ceivable net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $462,364. The breakdown
of this aliowance is as follows:

General Fund $ 312,842
Special Revenue Funds 100,607
Debt Service Funds 48,915

$ 462 364

Certain receivables included in other receivables are net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts as follows:
General Fund

Yehicle General
Registration Fund
Fes EMS Enterprise
Gross receivables $852,081  $6,186,664 $1,230,867
Less: sllowance for
doubtful accounts 8§52 081 5950 551 1,117,255
$ - 0§ 227113 % 113612

Due from Other Governments and Agencies
General Fund amounts due from other governments include the following:

State - taxes and lcenses 54,222 577
State - other 113,850
Local municipality 8245

$4.345.772
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FLORENCE COUNTY, 30UTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

A. Assets {Conlinued)

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Primary Government

Beginning Ending
Description Balance Additions Disposals Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being deprecialed:

Land $ 8830418 § 327901 - 39258319
Total capital assets, not being

depraciated 8,830,418 327.901 - 9,258,319
Capital assets being depreciated:

Bulldings & additions 52,753,285 3,881,575 (709,238} 55,938,332

improvements other than

hutidings 6,398,741 428,886 {35,616) 8,792,011

Auttos & trucks 9,858,159 1,335,938 (799,720 10,384,377

Furniture & fixtures 245,015 183,084 - 428,088

Machinery & equipment 22,078,872 922,518 (14,0973 22,887,393

infrastructure 52626713 51,180 - 52.677.803
Total capital assets being

depreciated 143,961,585 8,813,191  {1.558671y 149216.115
Less accumuiated deprecigtion for

Buildings & additions {13,333.918) (1,283,399} 672,780 (13,924,537)

improvements other than

buildings {1,843 ,3860) {341,314} 16,027 {2,168,6847)

Autos & trucks {6,813,218y  {1,127.051) 764,766 {7.275,500}

Furnifure & fixtures (198,653) (79,862} - {228.515)

Machinary & equipment (15,592,616) (1,561.608) - (17,154,224}

Infrastructure {34,923.588) (1.675,23%) - (36,598 ,837)
Total accumulated depreciation  {72,805.360) (5,998473) 1,453,673  {(77.350 260)
Total capital assets being

depreciated, net 71,156,235 814,718 (105.088) _ 71.865855
Governmental activities capital

assets, net $ 80086653 §1.142612 (3 105.008) $ 81.124.174




FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Business-type activities:
Capital assels heing depreciated:

Land $2,465,853 B - $ - $2.465,853

Buildings & additions 185,721 - - 185,721

improvements other than

buildings 567,066 - - 587,096

Autos & trucks 1,763,981 - - 1,763,981

Furniture & fixiures 15,721 2,358 - 18,0677

Machinery & equipment 892,188 277,257 - 1,168,443
Total capital assets being

depreciated 5,890,558 279613 - 6,170,171
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land (156,658) (744} - {157,402}

Buildings & additions (185,721} - - (185,721)

improvements othaer than

buildings (549,999} {8,807) - (558,806}

Auios & trucks (1,730,731} {14,250) - {1,744,881)

Furniture & fixtures (11,409} (1,838) - {13,247}

Machinery & equipment (734,151} {102.487) - (836,618}
Tolal accumulated depreciation  {3.368.669) {128.106) - {3,496.775)
Total capital assels being

depreciated, net 2,521,889 151,507 - 2873398
Business-type activities capital

assets, nat $2.521.889 $151.507 § - $2.673.386

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary gov-
ernment as follows:

Governmenial activities:

General government $ 699,017
Fublic safety 1,964,555
Economic development 2,830
Public works, including depreciation of infrastructure assets 2,088,238
Health 456,805
Culture & recragtion 787,028
Total depreciation expense — governmental activities $5,998 473

Business-type activities:

Landfll $23,830
E911 104,278
Total depreciation expense ~ business type activities $128.106

-55-



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CARCLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

The Civic Center is operated as a joint venture between the City of Florence and
Florence County. Accordingly, the capital assets of the Civic Certer are not in-
cluded in the capital assets of the County.

The portion of the land In the landfill fund that was used for landfill purposes is
being depreciated over a perod of twenty-five (25) years since the future use of
the land has been impaired due o its previous use as a municipal solid waste
tandfill. The remaining land in the landfill fund is vacant and has not been used
for landfill purposes and therefore is not being depreciated.

B, Liabilities

Pension Plans

The County is a member of the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) and
the South Carolina Police Officers’ Retirement System (SCPORS). Both systems
are cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement systems (PERS)
and are administered by the South Carolina Retirement Systems. Benefit provi-
sions, contribution rates and amendment authority are established under the au-
thority of Title 8 of the South Carolina Code of Laws.

Generally, all employees are required o participate and confribute o the SCRS
as a condition of employment. The normal cost is funded by contributions from
the members at a rate of 6.5% of wages earned for the year. The employer's
contribution rate is 9.39%. Employees who refire at or after age 65 or with 28
years of credited service are entitled {o full retirement benefits, payable for life,
with an annual rate equal to 1.82% of average final compensation, for each year
of credited service. Vested employees are entitied {o deferred annuity commenc-
ing at age 60.

Generally, alt full-time employees whose principal duties are the preservation of
public order, protection or prevention and control of property destruction by fire
are eligible to participate in the SCPORS. The basic pension program is funded
by contributions from the members at a 8.5% rate. The employer's contribution
rate is 11.05%. There are no early retirement provisions under SCPORS. A
member must have 25 years service for full relirement or must be age 55 with 5
vears service, both criteria provide for full formula benefit, payable for life with an
annual rate equal to 2.14% of average final compensation, for each year of cred-
ited service.
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NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES on ALL FUNDS (Continued)

The County's contributions to the SCRS for the years ended June 30, 2010,
2008, and 2008 were $1,723,477, 51,670,271, and $1,578,817, respectively,
equal to the required contributions for each year. The County's contributions to
the SCPORS for the vears ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were
$022,008, 926,422, and $863,067, respectively, equal to the required contribu-
tions for each year. Contributions by employees during the year were $1,189,499
to the SCRS and $542,887 to the SCPORS. The County's covered payroll for the
SCRS and SCPORS was $18,289,992 and $8,352,106, respectively. Total cur-
rent year payroll for all employees was $27,520 475,

A Comprehensive Annual Financial Report containing financial statements and
required supplementary information for the South Carolina Retirement System
and South Carclina Police Officers Retirement System is issued and publicly
available by wriling the South Carclina Retirement System, Post Office Box
11860, Columbia, South Caroling 28211-1980.

Other Post Emplovment Benefits

Pilan Description

The County provides post-retirement health insurance benefits for qualifying re-
tirees as required by County Ordinance #15-87/88. Qualifying retirees are those
who retired after September 1, 1987, with at least 15 years of continuous em-
ployment service with the County. The County will coniribute the cost of insur
ance coverage as carried by the County for regular full-time employees accord-
ing fo the following scale which is based on years of service.

% of coverage paid for

Years of service by the County
35 years 100%
30 years 80%
25 years 80%
20 years 70%
15 years 60%
Funding Policy

At June 30, 2010, there were 85 refirees receiving benefits under this ordinance.
The County finances these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis and the expendi-
tures for these benefits for the year ended June 30, 2010, were $264,158,
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MOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continuad)

The County's annual cost (expense) for other post employment benefits is calcu-
lated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, which is
actuarially determined based upon the requirements and paramesters of GASB
Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post Em-
ployment Benefits other Than Pensions. The ARC represents the amount of
funding required that, if paid on an annual basis, is projected to cover the normal
cost for each year plus the amount necessary to amortize any unfunded liability
over a period not to exceed 30 years.

For the current year, the County's year of implementation of GASB Statement 45,
the annual OPEB expense of $1,563,800 is equal {o the ARC. The ARC for the
vear ended June 30, 2010 is computed as follows:

Normal cost for current year $ 863,769
Amortization of the unamortized accrued liablity 700,031
Total Annual Required Contribution 51,563,800

Calculations of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the sub-
stantive plan understood by the employer and the plan members. The calcula-
tions include the types of benefils provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical costs, shared by the employer and the plan members. The actuarial
valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of events far into the future. The actuarially determined
amounts are subject to continual revisions as actual results are compared (o past
expectations and new estimates are made about fulure events and costs. The
Projected Unit Credit, Level Percent Funding actuarial cost method was used to
calculate the ARC for this valuation. The current rate used to compute the ARC is
based on a level percent funding and assumed a 4.50 percent rate of return on
invastments for the current year,

Actuarial valuations of an onguing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far info
the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality,
and the healthcare cost frend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status
of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress is pre-
sented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 2, DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

The County's management has elected not to reduce the total ARC amount by
current year contributions as it is expected that the ARC may increase due to
current economic conditions. Accordingly, the net OPER obligation recorded at
June 30, 2010 is $1,563,800.

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $16,301,502
Actuarial value of plan assels .
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $16,301,502
Funded ratio {actuarial value of plan asseis / AAL) 0.00%
Covered payroill {active plan members) 527,520,475
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroli 59.23%

The Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method was used in the July 1, 2009 valua-
tion. The actuarial assumptions included 4.50% investment rate of return., For all
retirees the healthcare cost trends 2010 to 2012 were a rate of 7.5%. The frends
rate will decrease in 0.5% steps until it reaches 5.0% and then will remain level.
General inflation is assumed to be 3.0% per vear. The Plan's unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amoriized as a level dollar amount of projected payroll
on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2010 was twen-
ty-eight years,

Long-Term Debt

The general obligation bonds shown as long-term obligations in the government-
wide financial statements are collateralized by the full faith, credit and taxing
power of the County. They bear interest payable semiannually, at rates varying
from 3.00% to 5.50%. Principal and interest retirements are 1o be made from the
applicable Debt Service Funds,

On June 21, 2000, the County issued $500,000 of Series 2000A Florence County
General Obligation Bonds {Johnsonville Fire District). These bonds bear interest
at 5.30%. The first interest payment of $18,403 was due March 1, 2001 and
semi-annually thereafter. The first principal payment was due March 1, 2002 and
annually thereafter, with the final payment for both principal and interest due
March 1, 2015.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

On October 11, 2001, the County issued $430,000 of Series 2001 Florence
County General Obligation Bonds (Hannah-Salem-Friendfisld Fire District). The-
se bonds bear interest at 4.10%. The first principal and interest payment of
$32,630 was due October 11, 2002, and annually thereafter with the final pay-
ment for both principal and interest due October 11, 2011,

On July 17, 2002, the County issuad $10,000,000 of Series 2002 Florence Coun-
ty General Obligation Bonds. These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from
3.00% to 4.75%. The first interest payment of $243,883 was due March 1, 2003,
and semiannually thereafter. The first principal payment was due March 1, 2003,
and annually thereafter, with the final payment for both principal and interest due
March 1, 2023. The proceeds of the bonds were used for funding a portion of the
costs of the construction of a new main library building.

On October 15, 2003, the County issued $210,000 of Florence County General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2003 (Hannah-Salem-Friendfield Fire District). These
bonds bear interest at a rate of 4.71%. Interest payments and principal paymernis
were due annually beginning on October 15, 2004, with the first payment being in
the amount of $17,881. The final payment is due October 15, 2013, The pro-
ceeds of these bonds are being used to fund the construction of a new fire sub-
station,

On February 5, 2004, the County issued $950,000 of Florence County General
Obtigation Bonds, Series 2004 (Howe Springs Fire District). These bonds bear
interest at a rate of 4.20%. Interest payments and principal payments were due
annually beginning on February 5, 2005, with the first payment being in the
amount of $118,295. The final payment is due February 5, 2014. The proceeds
of these bonds are being used to fund the purchase of new fire trucks and
equipment.

On February 9, 2005, the County issued $1,123,000 of Series 2005 Florence
County General Obligation Refunding Bonds. These bonds bear interest af a rate
of 3.13%. Interest payments and principal payments are due annually beginning
on February 8, 2006, with the first payment being in the amount of $246 123, The
final payment was paid February 9, 2010. The proceads of the bonds were used
to refund the entire amount outstanding of the Series 2000B Florence County
General Obligation Bonds (Economic Development),
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

On March 16, 2005, the County issued $4,200,000 of Series 2005 Florence
County Advance Refunding General Obligation Bonds. These bonds bear inter-
est at rates ranging from 3.00% to 4.00%. The first interest payment of $243,883
was due October 1, 2005, and semiannually thereafter. The first principal pay-
ment was due April 1, 2006, and annually thereafter, with the final payment for
both principal and interest due April 1, 2020. The proceeds of the bonds were
used 1o refund 3,835,000 of the Series 2000 Florence County General Cbliga-
tion Bonds. The aggregate debt service of the Refunding Bonds is $5,743,505.
The aggregate debt service of the refunded bonds is $5,811,640, for an aggre-
gate difference of $68,045. The economic gain from this refunding transaction
was $252,317.

On December 19, 2008, the County issued $7,800,000 of Florence County Gen-
aral Obligation Bonds, Series 2008. These bonds bear interest at rates ranging
from 3.50% to 3.85%. The first interest payment of $189,590 is due August 1,
2007, and semiannually thereafter. The first principal payment is due February 1,
2008, and annually thereafter, with the final payment for both principal and inter-
ast due February 1, 2019. The proceeds of these bonds are being used fo fund
various capital projects.

On August 29, 2008, the County issued $600,000 of Florence County General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2008 (Windy Hill/Olanta Rural Volunteer Fire District).
These bonds bear interest at a rate of 4.65%. Interest payments and principal
payments were due annually beginning on April 1, 2009, with the first payment
being in the amount of $55,415. The final payment is due April 1, 2023. The pro-
ceads of these bonds are being used to fund the construction of a new fire sta-
tion.

Cn April 1, 20008 the County issued $1,500,000 of Florence County General Obli-
gation Bonds, Series 2008 (Howe Springs Fire District). These bonds bear inter-
est at a rate of 3.235%. Interest payments and principal payments were due an-
nually beginning on April 1, 2010, with the first payment being in the amount of
$177.961. The final payment is due April 1, 2019, The proceeds of these bonds
are being used to fund fire-fighting equipment, vehicles, and related equipment
for use within the District,
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)

General obligation bonds payable at June 30, 2010, are comprised of the follow-
ing individual issues;

Current
Final Maturity of
Interest Maturity Amount Principal
Rates Date Quistanding Instaliments
Johnsonville Fire
District Bonds:
$500,600, series 2000 5.30% 2011 $ 40,000 $ 40,000
5.30% 2012 45,000
5.30% 2013 50,000
5.30% 2014 50,000
5.30% 2015 55 000
240,000 40.000
Hannah-Salem-Friendfield
Fire District Bonds:
$430,000, series 2001 4.10% 2011 $ 80,000 $ 80,000
4.10% 2012 83,000
123,000 60,000
Florence County
General Bonds:
$10,000,000, series 2002 4 .00% 2011 § 225000 $ 225000
4.00% 2012 235,000
4.10% 2013 250,000
4.20% 2014 260,000
4.30% 2015 275,000
4.40% 2016 285,000
4.45%, 2017 300,600
4.55% 2018 315,000
4.65% 2019 330,000
4.70% 2020 350,000
4.75% 2021 373,000
4.75% 2022 385,000
4,75% 2023 410 000

2,980 000 225,000
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Current
Final Maturity of
interast Maturity Amount Principal
Rates Date Cutstanding Instaliments
Hannah-Salem-Friendfield
Fire District Bonds:
$210,000, series 2003 4.71% 2011 $ 14000 % 14,000
4.71% 2012 15,000
4.71% 2013 585,000
4.71% 2014 680,000
144.000 14,000
Howe Springs Fire
District Bonds:
$950,000, series 2004 4 20% 2011 $ 100,345 § 100,345
4.20% 202 104 560
4.20% 2013 108,951
4.20% 2014 113,528

427,384 100,345

Florence County Advance
Refunding Bonds:

$4,200,000, series 2005 3.50% 2011 § 285000 § 295,000
3.50% 2012 305,000
3.83% 2013 320,000
3.63% 2014 335,000
3.63% 2015 345,000
3.63% 2016 360,000
3.75% 2017 375,000
3.80% 2018 380,000
3.90% 2019 400,000
4.00% 2020 420,000

3.545,000 295.000




FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROCLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 3¢, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Current
Final Maturity of
interest Maturity Amount Principal
Rates Date Qutstanding Installments
Florence County General
Bonds
$7,800,000, series 2006 3.50% 2011 § 208,000 § 205,000
3.75% 2012 515,000
3.75% 2013 535,000
3.75% 2014 760,000
3.75% 20156 790,000
3.75% 2016 1,020,000
3.75% 2017 1,060,000
3.75% 2018 1,185,000
3.85% 2019 1,235,000

7,305,000 205,000

Windy Hill/Olanta Fire

Dhstrict Bonds
$600,000, serias 2008 4.65% 2011 8 30682 $ 30692
4.65% 2012 32,11¢
4.65% 2013 33,812
4,65% 2014 35,175
4.65% 2015 36,811
4.85% 2016 38,523
4.65% 2017 40,314
4.85% 2018 42,188
4.65% 2019 44,150
4. 85% 2020 48 203
4.65% 2021 48,352
4.65% 2022 503,600
4.65% 2023 52,952
531,691 30,692
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FLORENCE COUNTY, S0UTH CAROCLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Current
Final Maturity of
interest Maturity Amount Principsl
Rates Date Cutstanding Instaliments
Howe Springs Fire
District Bonds
$1,500,000, serigs 2008 3.235% 2011 § 133,623 § 133,623
3.235% 2012 137,846
3.235% 2013 142,400
3.235% 2014 147,016
3.235% 2015 181,772
3.235% 2018 156,681
3.235% 2017 161,750
3.235% 2018 166,983
3.235% 2019 172,384

1,370,564 133,623

Total general obligation bonds $17.676,639 $1,103,680

Amount of long-term liability due within one vear, by class:

General obligation bonds $ 1,103 860
Special source revenue bond 821,511
Capital leases 2,280,000
Vacation pay (estimated) 856,823
Total $5,261.804
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended June 3§, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Changes in long-term debt during 2010 are summarized as follows:

Long-Term
Long-Term Debt
Debt June 30,
July 1, 2009 Additions Retirements 2010
By type of debt:
{seneral obligation
bonds $18,086,357 § - $1,309,718 $ 17,676,639
Revenue bonds 2,305,664 3,000,000 525,182 4,780,482
Capital leases 23,868,030 - 3,203 030 20,665 000
Vacation pay 1,728.997 956,823 1,057 438 1,628,384
Total $46.880,048 $3.956.823  $6,0095.366 $44.750.505
By purpose:
General government:
County general
capital projects  § 16,147,700 § - $ 948050 $15,199,650
County vehicles 510,386 - 610,386 -
Energy management 387,644 - 387,544 -
Public safety:
Fire protection 3,202,704 - 366,065 2,836,638
County jail and
radio system 11,820,800 - 1,146,600 10,774,200
Economic and physical
development:
Economic development 2,544 317 3,000,000 763,835 4,780,482
Culture & recreation:
County library 4,210,000 - 220,000 3,880,000
Civic Center 6,136,500 595 350 5,541,150
Vacation pay 1,728 997 956,823 1,057,436 1,628,384
Total $46.889,048 $3956823 $6,095366 $44,750,505
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAWL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Annual principal and interest requirements of general obligation bonds are sum-
marized as follows:

Hannah/Salamy

Johnsonvilfe Friendfield Howe Springs
Fire Fira Fira
District District District
Bonds Bonds Bonds
Year Ending
June 30,
Principat interest Principal interest Principal Interast
2011 $ 40,000 $12,720 $ 74,000 $11,825 $ 233,068 T 52,288
2042 45 000 10,600 78,000 8,706 247 506 53,751
2013 50,000 8,215 55,000 5,417 251,360 44,856
20142018 108,000 8,480 80,000 2,826 887,728 110,373
20192023 - - ~ - 172,384 5577
$240,000 540,018 $267.000 $28.774  §$3.797.947 3276.685
Florance Windy Hill/
County Olants Fire
General District
Bonds Bonds
Year Ending
Jungs 30,
Frincipal interest Principa Interest
2011 $ 430,000 % 453410 % 30802 § 24724
2012 750,000 437,235 32,118 23,286
2013 785,000 408,523 33,612 21,803
2014-2018 §,250,000 1,454,340 193,011 84,065
2019-2023 2.080.060 316,043 242 258 34.818
$11.2095000 $3.072,551  $531.687  $148.708



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continuad)

Year Ending
June 30,

Florence
County
Advance Refunding
Bonds . Totals
Principal interest Principal interest
3 295000  §131.583 $ 1,103,660 3 696,550
2012 305,000 121,258 1,452,825 654,848
2013 320,000 116,583 1,484,872 589,437
2014-2018 1,805,000 368,656 4,310,740 2,028,740
2019-2023 820,000 48200 4,314,647 408,638
$3.545000  $.781.280 $17.676630 54388211
General
Principal Interest Totals
Reconciliation:
Current portion $ 1,103,860 § 606,550 $ 1.800.210
Subsequent vears 18,572,879 3,691,661 20,264 640
Total $17.676.639  $4,388.211 $22,064.850

On March 15, 2007, the County issued $2,800,000 of Florence County Special
Source Revenue Bonds, Series 2007. These bonds bear interest at a rate of
6.24%. The first interest payment of $174,720 is due March 15, 2008, and annu-
ally thereafter. The first principal payment is due March 15, 2009, and annually
thereafter, with the final payment for both principal and interest due March 15,
2013. The proceeds of these bonds are being used to fund incentives for two in-
dustries in the County.

On Aprit 30, 2010, the County issued $3,000,000 of Florence County Special
Source Revenue Bonds, Serles 2010, These bonds bear interest at a rate of
5.44%. The first interest payment of $163,200 is dus April 30, 2011, and annually
thersafter. The first principal payment is due April 30, 2011, and annually thereaf-
ter, with the final payment for both principal and interest due April 30, 2017, The
preceeds of these bonds are being used to fund incentives for three industries in
the County.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

MNOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ORN ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Annual principal and interest requirements of special scurce revenue bonds are
summarized as follows:

Year ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 921,511 $274,302 $1,195.813
2012 076,104 218,709 1,195,813
2013 1,033,048 161,867 1,185,813
2014 426,176 100,581 526,757
2015 448,360 77,397 528,757
2016 473,805 52,052 26,757
2017 498 580 27477 526,757
Total 54,780,482 - $913,986 $5.694,467

On Aprit 30, 2008, the County issued a $25,000,000 capital lease with a fixed in-
terest rate of 3.52% to refinance the outstanding certificates of participation in the
amount of $17,628,714, including interest, and to pay a swap termination pay-
ment in the amount of $1,933,400. The remaining proceeds of the lease wers
deposited info the 2008 County Capital Project Fund to be used for various capi-
tal projects. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under
this capital lease as of June 30, 2010.

Year ending

June 30 Principal interast Total
2011 $ 2,280,000 $ 727,408 $ 3,007,408
2012 2,360,000 647,152 3,007,152
2013 2,445 000 564,080 3,008,080
2014-2018 13,580 000 1,466,784 15,046 784
Minimum capital
lease payments 320865000  $3.405.424 $24,070.424

On November 15, 2007, the County entered info a capital lease. The lease bears
interest at a rate of 3.40%. Interest payments and principal payments were due
quarterly beginning on March 1, 2008, with the first payment being in the amount of
$104,778. The balance of this lease was retired in the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010. The proceeds of this lease are being used to fund the purchase of new vehi-
cles and equipment.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

The County is obligated under other leases accounted for as noncancellable operating
leases. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under noncan-
cellable operating leases as of June 30, 2010

Year ending June 30
2010 $ 41,500
2011 41,500
2012 41,500
2013 41,500
2014 24,042

$_180.042

Due toffrom other funds

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 20410, is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Victim Witness Assistance Special Revenue Fund $32.815
General Fund Grant Special Revenue Fund $63,474

The outstanding balance between these funds results from the time lag betwsen the
dates that payments between funds are made.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CARCLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Interfund Transfers

Transfer In:
Generafl Enterprise Museun MNonmajor
Fund Flind Capital Project Governmental Total
Transfer out:
General Fund $ $1,231.020 % . $1.171.438 $ 2402458
Grant Special
Revenus Fund 98,878 - 7,800,000 955,936 8,854,814
Enterprise Fund 38,801 - - - 38,901
Monmajor
Governmental 3,288 320 - - 520,841 3,508 981
Total 33,426,009 $1.231.020 $7,806.000 $2.748013 218.205132

Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to
the debt service fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due, 2)
move unrestricted general fund revenues to finance various programs that the govern-
ment must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations and
3) move revenues from various funds into the general fund also in accordance with
budgetary authorizations.

NOTE 3. RESTRICTED ASSETS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The balances of the restricted asset accounts in the enterprise funds are as follows:
Restricted cash - held for closure and postclosure costs $896.140

NOTE 4. SUMMARY DISCLOSURE of SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

The County is defendant in several miscellaneous fitigations. Any losses which may be

incurred and are not fully covered by County insurance are not expected to be material,
Legal fees related o these litigations are also not expected o be material.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CARGLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2018

NOTE 4. SUMMARY DISCLOSURE of SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Federal and State Assisted Programs

The County has received proceeds from several Federal and State Grants. Periodic
audits of these grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being
appropriate expenditures under the grant agreaments. Such audits could result in the
refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any required
refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial
statements for the refund of grant monies.

NOTE 5. LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The County has entered into an operating lease agreement with a fire district whereby
the district will pay the County for renting a portion of the Lower Florence County Public
Service Building., Af June 30, 2010, the minimum future rentals under this lease are
$22,483 annually for 9 years or $202,347 total. The revenue from these rentals is rec-
orded by the County in the General Fund.

NOTE 6. NO-COMMITMENT DEBT

Al June 30, 2010, approximately $207,630,000 of industrial and hospital revenue bonds
bearing the County's name was outstanding. This debt is repayable only by the entities
for whom the debt is issued and the County assumes no responsibility for repayment,

NOTE 7. UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS

The County evaluates income tax positions judged to be uncertain. A loss contingency
reserve is accrued if it is probable that the fax position will be challengad, it is proebable
that the future resolution of the challenge will confirm that a loss has been incurred, and
the amount of such a loss can be reasonably estimated. No accrual for uncertain tax
positions was recorded at June 30, 2010.

NOTE 8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing the financial statements, the County evaluated events and transactions for
potential recognition or disclosure through December 10, 2010, the date the financial
statemenis wers avallable to be issued.

NOTE §. COMMITMENTS

Of the total unreserved general fund balance of $11,816,741, $10,856,131 is undesig-
nated. The remaining $960,610 is designated to finance current and future capital im-
provement needs of Florence County.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROCLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 8. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

During fiscal year 1993, Florence County Council approved an ordinance and certain
agreements authorizing the sale of $45,880,000 of Refunding Series Certificates of Par-
ticipation. The proceeds of this issue were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for
all future debt service payments of the 1990 Certificates of Participation. The County's
obligation to repay these certificates is dependent upon annual appropriations being
made by the County for that purpose.  Although this obligation of the County does not
constitute a pledge of the full faith, credit, or faxing power of the County within the
meaning of any state constitutional or statutory provision, the County is financially obli-
gated for repayment and has set up certain Special Revenus and Debt Service funds
from which it contemplates making the annual appropriations. The proceeds of these
certificates were used to finance the construction of a Law Enforcement Cenier, a Civie
Center, a radio fransmission tower, and to purchase other County equipment.

On March 3, 2003, the first call date for the 1992 certificates, the County issued
$29,515,000 variable rate refunding certificates of participation ic pay the entire out-
standing balance of the 1992 certificates, as well as the issuance costs of the new 2003
certificates.

Principal and interest payments for the refunding series of certificates of participation
are being funded by annual appropriations made by County Council,

On April 30, 2008, the County issued a $25,000,000 capital lease with a fixed interest
rate of 3.52% to refinance the outstanding certificates in the amount of $17,628,714, in-
cluding interest, and to pay a swap termination payment in the amount of $1,833,400.
The remaining proceeds of the lease were deposited into the 2008 County Capital Pro-
ject Fund to be used for varicus capital projects.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The debt service costs and the operation and maintenance costs for the Civic Center
are being jointly paid by the City of Florence and the County. The two entities have en-
terad inte a service agreement whereby each are making equal annual payments into a
Civic Center Debt Service and Operations and Maintenance Fund from which these
costs will be paid. All Civic Center revenues are to be used to offset operation and
maintenance costs, thereby reducing the amounis needed from the Debt Service and
Operations and Maintenance Fund. In fiscal year 2003, the County began using reve-
nues from the Local Accommodations Tax Special Revenue Fund to meet its obligs-
tions under this service agreement. The City-County service agreement requires that, if
the annual payments and balances on hand in the Debt Service and Operations and
Maintenance Fund are not sufficient in any year to pay the debt service and net opera-
tions and maintenance costs, the County and City must make equal additional pay-
ments to fund the deficiency. The annual payment from both the County and the City
was approximately $1,300,000 each for the fiscal yvear ended Juns 30, 2010. It is ex-
pected that the City's and County's annual payments will remain approximately
$1,300,000 per year beginning in fiscal year 2010,

NOTE 10. CONTINGENCIES

Pursuant to the Solid Waste Management Act of 1991, Florence County must operate a
Sub-title D iandfill in compliance with the provisions of the Act, to continue to accept solb-
id waste into its landfill after October, 1995. Among the requirements of Sub-title D op-
eration are instaliation of synthetic liners in all fill areas, installation of a cap over the
filled areas at the time of closure, and funding of a post-closure account to defray costs
of monitoring and compliance after closure.

On Ociober §, 19495, the County received a six-month sxtension on compliance with the
Act and did not have o operate a Sub-title D landfill untit Aprii 8, 1998.

On April 8, 1986, the County closed the vertical expansion portion of the landfill and
contracted with a private company to transport the County's solid waste to ancther land-
fill.



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROCLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 34, 2010

NOTE 10. CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Because the County elected to close the vertical expansion portion of the landfil, the
County will now incur costs for closure of this portion of the landfill as well as post-
closure care costs such as the purchase of liability insurance fo protect the County in
the event of an incident of contamination and the monitoring of this portion of the landfill
for a thirty year period. These costs are estimated at approximately $896,140 at June
30, 2010, and have been funded by user fees which were being collected through Sep-
tember, 1995, Since the vertical expansion portion of the landfill was closed on April 9,
1900, the estimated amount for closure and post closure costs have been fully accrued
at June 30, 2010. Costs for closure and post-closure care are based on engineering es-
timates and are subject to change based on various factors some of which indude infla-
tion, deflation, changes in technology, and changes in laws or regulations.

The Solid Waste Management Act, which was amended on June 23, 1995, requires the
County to adopt one, or a combination of a few, financial assurance mechanisms that
would bind and legally enforce the County to make the payments necessary for closure
and post-closure care costs. The County has restricted the cash necessary for the
payment of the closure and post-closure care costs in the Landfill Enterprise Fund and
has chosen the local government financial test as its financial assurance mechanism.
This test requires that the finance director provide certification annually that the County
meets certain financial ratios and certain other criteria in order to comply with financial
assurance under the Scolid Waste Management Act.

NOTE 11. RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to emplovess; and natural disas-
ters.  The County maintains commercial insurance coverage covering each of those
risks of loss. The County participates in certain state-wide funds for the purchasing of
workers compensation insurance and liability insurance. The County's primary risk with
regard to these funds is only for the annual premiums. However, the County does bear
a secordary risk if the funds were to default due to either a wide-spread increase in
claim experience or mismanagement of the funds assets. |If this event were to ocour,
the County, along with all other participants in the funds, would be charged additional
assessments. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any signifi-
cant uninsured losses to the County. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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APPENDIX B

[FORM OF OPINION OF HAYNSWORTH SINKLER BOYD, P.A]

[Purchaser]
[City, State]

Re: $5,000,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2011, of
Florence County, South Carolina

Sirs:

We have examined a certified copy of the Transcript of Proceedings and other proofs submitted to
us, including the Constitution and Statutes of the State of South Carolina, in relation to the issuance of the
$5,000,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2011, of Florence County, South
Carolina (the “Bonds”).

The Bonds are issued by Florence County, South Carolina (the “County”) pursuant to and for the
purposes authorized by Sections 4-15-10 to 4-15-180, inclusive, and Sections 11-15-410 to 11-15-600,
inclusive, and Section 11-27-40, Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, and ordinances
(collectively, the “Ordinance”) duly adopted by the County Council of Florence County (the “Council”), the
governing body of the County.

In our opinion, the said proceedings are regular and in due form of law, and the Bonds constitute
valid and binding obligations of the County, and are payable, both principal and interest, from a direct ad
valorem tax upon all taxable property in the County, without limit as to rate or amount. Provision has been
made for the levy and collection of the tax to meet the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds,
as the same respectively mature.

Pursuant to Section 4-15-160, 11-15-550, and Section 12-2-50 of the South Carolina Code of Laws,
1976, as amended, the Bonds and the interest thereon are exempt from all taxation by the State of South
Carolina, its counties, municipalities and school districts except estate, transfer or certain franchise taxes.
Interest paid on the Bonds is currently subject to the tax imposed on banks by Section 12-11-20, Code of
Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, which is enforced by the South Carolina Department of Revenue
as a franchise tax. The opinion of Bond Counsel is limited to the laws of the State of South Carolina and
federal tax laws. No opinion is rendered by Bond Counsel concerning the taxation of the Bonds or the
interest thereon under the laws of any other jurisdiction.

Interest on the Bonds (including any original issue discount properly allocable to an owner thereof)
is excludable from gross income of the registered owners thereof for federal income tax purposes and is not
an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and
corporations and such interest will not be included in adjusted current earnings of taxpayers taxed as
corporations for purposes of computing alternative minimum tax of such corporations. The opinion set forth
in the preceding sentence is subject to the condition that the County comply with all requirements of the
Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon be (or

B-1



continue to be) excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply with
certain of such requirements may cause interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal
income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The Council has covenanted to comply
with all such requirements. It should be noted, however, that for the purpose of computing the alternative
minimum tax imposed on certain corporations (as defined for federal income tax purposes), interest on the
Bonds is taken into account in determining adjusted current earnings. We express no opinion regarding
other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.

The County has represented that it expects that it and all entities subordinate thereto will issue in
calendar year 2011 not exceeding $10 million of tax-exempt obligations. The County has designated the
Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code.

It is to be understood that the obligations of the County under the Bonds and the Ordinance, and the
enforceability thereof, may be subject to judicial discretion, the valid exercise of the sovereign police
powers of the State of South Carolina and of the constitutional powers of the United States of America, and
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws affecting creditors rights.

We express no opinion herein regarding the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of the Official
Statement dated , 2010 relating to the Bonds. This opinion is given as of the date hereof
and we assume no obligation to revise or supplement this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that
may hereafter come to our attention, or any changes in law that may hereafter occur.

We have been advised on this date that there is no litigation threatened or pending, which, in any
manner, affects the validity of the Bonds.

We have examined an executed Bond of said issue, and in our opinion, its form and execution are in
due form of law.

Very truly yours,



APPENDIX C

DISCLOSURE DISSEMINATION AGENT AGREEMENT

This Disclosure Dissemination Agent Agreement (the “Disclosure Agreement”), dated as of
, 2011, is executed and delivered by Florence County (the “Issuer”) and Digital
Assurance Certification, L.L.C., as exclusive Disclosure Dissemination Agent (the “Disclosure
Dissemination Agent” or “DAC™) for the benefit of the Holders (hereinafter defined) of the Bonds
(hereinafter defined) and in order to provide certain continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds in
accordance with Rule 15c2-12 of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time (the “Rule”).

The services provided under this Disclosure Agreement solely relate to the execution of
instructions received from the Issuer through use of the DAC system and do not constitute “advice”
within the meaning of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Act”).
DAC will not provide any advice or recommendation to the Issuer or anyone on the Issuer’s behalf
regarding the “issuance of municipal securities” or any “municipal financial product” as defined in the
Act and nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be interpreted to the contrary.

SECTION 1. Definitions.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Disclosure
Agreement shall have the meaning assigned in the Rule or, to the extent not in conflict with the Rule, in
the Official Statement (hereinafter defined). The capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

“Annual Report” means an Annual Report described in and consistent with Section 3 of this
Disclosure Agreement.

“Annual Filing Date” means the date, set in Sections 2(a) and 2(f), by which the Annual Report is
to be filed with the MSRB.

“Annual Financial Information” means annual financial information as such term is used in
paragraph (b)(5)(i) of the Rule and specified in Section 3(a) of this Disclosure Agreement.

“Audited Financial Statements” means the financial statements (if any) of the Issuer for the prior
fiscal year, certified by an independent auditor as prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles or otherwise, as such term is used in paragraph (b)(5)(i) of the Rule and
specified in Section 3(b) of this Disclosure Agreement.

“Bonds” means the bonds as listed on the attached Exhibit A, with the 9-digit CUSIP numbers
relating thereto.

“Certification” means a written certification of compliance signed by the Disclosure
Representative stating that the Annual Report, Audited Financial Statements, Notice Event notice,
Failure to File Event notice, Voluntary Event Disclosure or Voluntary Financial Disclosure
delivered to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent is the Annual Report, Audited Financial
Statements, Notice Event notice, Failure to File Event notice, Voluntary Event Disclosure or
Voluntary Financial Disclosure required to be submitted to the MSRB under this Disclosure
Agreement. A Certification shall accompany each such document submitted to the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent by the Issuer and include the full name of the Bonds and the 9-digit CUSIP
numbers for all Bonds to which the document applies.

“Disclosure Representative” means the Florence County Administrator, the senior member of the
Issuer or his or her designee, or such other person as the Issuer shall designate in writing to the
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Disclosure Dissemination Agent from time to time as the person responsible for providing
Information to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent.

“Disclosure Dissemination Agent” means Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C, acting in its
capacity as Disclosure Dissemination Agent hereunder, or any successor Disclosure
Dissemination Agent designated in writing by the Issuer pursuant to Section 9 hereof.

“Failure to File Event” means the Issuer’s failure to file an Annual Report on or before the
Annual Filing Date.

“Force Majeure Event” means: (i) acts of God, war, or terrorist action; (ii) failure or shut-down of
the Electronic Municipal Market Access system maintained by the MSRB; or (iii) to the extent
beyond the Disclosure Dissemination Agent’s reasonable control, interruptions in
telecommunications or utilities services, failure, malfunction or error of any telecommunications,
computer or other electrical, mechanical or technological application, service or system, computer
virus, interruptions in Internet service or telephone service (including due to a virus, electrical
delivery problem or similar occurrence) that affect Internet users generally, or in the local area in
which the Disclosure Dissemination Agent or the MSRB is located, or acts of any government,
regulatory or any other competent authority the effect of which is to prohibit the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent from performance of its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement.

“Holder” means any person (a) having the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or consent with
respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds through
nominees, depositories or other intermediaries) or (b) treated as the owner of any Bonds for
federal income tax purposes.

“Information” means, collectively, the Annual Reports, the Audited Financial Statements (if any),
the Notice Event notices, the Failure to File Event notices, the Voluntary Event Disclosures and
the Voluntary Financial Disclosures.

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established pursuant to Section
15B(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

“Notice Event” means any of the events enumerated in paragraph (b)(5)(i)(C) of the Rule and

listed in Section 4(a) of this Disclosure Agreement.

“Obligated Person” means any person, including the Issuer, who is either generally or through an
enterprise, fund, or account of such person committed by contract or other arrangement to support
payment of all, or part of the obligations on the Bonds (other than providers of municipal bond
insurance, letters of credit, or other liquidity facilities), as shown on Exhibit A.

“Official Statement” means that Official Statement prepared by the Issuer in connection with the
Bonds, as listed on Exhibit A.

“Trustee” means the institution, if any, identified as such in the document under which the Bonds
were issued.

“Voluntary Event Disclosure” means information of the category specified in any of subsections
(e)(vi)(2) through (e)(vi)(11) of Section 2 of this Disclosure Agreement that is accompanied by a
Certification of the Disclosure Representative containing the information prescribed by Section
7(a) of this Disclosure Agreement.
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“Voluntary Financial Disclosure” means information of the category specified in any of
subsections (e)(vii)(1) through (e)(vii)(9) of Section 2 of this Disclosure Agreement that is
accompanied by a Certification of the Disclosure Representative containing the information
prescribed by Section 7(b) of this Disclosure Agreement.

SECTION 2.  Provision of Annual Reports.

@) The Issuer shall provide, annually, an electronic copy of the Annual Report and
Certification to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent, together with a copy for the Trustee, not later than
the Annual Filing Date. Promptly upon receipt of an electronic copy of the Annual Report and the
Certification, the Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall provide an Annual Report to the MSRB not later
than 210 days after the end of each fiscal year of the Issuer, commencing with the fiscal year ending June
30, 2012. Such date and each anniversary thereof is the Annual Filing Date. The Annual Report may be
submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference
other information as provided in Section 3 of this Disclosure Agreement.

(b) If on the fifteenth (15th) day prior to the Annual Filing Date, the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent has not received a copy of the Annual Report and Certification, the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent shall contact the Disclosure Representative by telephone and in writing (which may
be by e-mail) to remind the Issuer of its undertaking to provide the Annual Report pursuant to Section
2(a). Upon such reminder, the Disclosure Representative shall either (i) provide the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent with an electronic copy of the Annual Report and the Certification no later than two
(2) business days prior to the Annual Filing Date, or (ii) instruct the Disclosure Dissemination Agent in
writing that the Issuer will not be able to file the Annual Report within the time required under this
Disclosure Agreement, state the date by which the Annual Report for such year will be provided and
instruct the Disclosure Dissemination Agent that a Failure to File Event has occurred and to immediately
send a notice to the MSRB in substantially the form attached as Exhibit B, accompanied by a cover sheet
completed by the Disclosure Dissemination Agent in the form set forth in Exhibit C-1.

(c) If the Disclosure Dissemination Agent has not received an Annual Report and
Certification by 6:00 p.m. Eastern time on Annual Filing Date (or, if such Annual Filing Date falls on a
Saturday, Sunday or holiday, then the first business day thereafter) for the Annual Report, a Failure to
File Event shall have occurred and the Issuer irrevocably directs the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to
immediately send a notice to the MSRB in substantially the form attached as Exhibit B without reference
to the anticipated filing date for the Annual Report, accompanied by a cover sheet completed by the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent in the form set forth in Exhibit C-1.

() If Audited Financial Statements of the Issuer are prepared but not available prior to the
Annual Filing Date, the Issuer shall, when the Audited Financial Statements are available, provide in a
timely manner an electronic copy to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent, accompanied by a Certification,
together with a copy for the Trustee, for filing with the MSRB.

Q) The Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall:

(i) verify the filing specifications of the MSRB each year prior to the Annual Filing
Date;

(i) upon receipt, promptly file each Annual Report received under Sections 2(a) and
2(b) with the MSRB;

(iii) upon receipt, promptly file each Audited Financial Statement received under
Section 2(d) with the MSRB;
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

upon receipt, promptly file the text of each Notice Event received under Sections
4(a) and 4(b)(ii) with the MSRB, identifying the Notice Event as instructed by
the Issuer pursuant to Section 4(a) or 4(b)(ii) (being any of the categories set
forth below) when filing pursuant to Section 4(c) of this Disclosure Agreement:

1. “Principal and interest payment delinquencies;”

2. “Non-Payment related defaults, if material;”

3. “Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;”

4. “Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;”

5. “Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;”

6. “Adverse tax opinions, IRS notices or events affecting the tax status of

the security;”

7. “Modifications to rights of securities holders, if material;”

8. “Bond calls, if material;”

9. “Defeasances;”

10. “Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the

securities, if material;”
11. “Rating changes;”

12. “Tender offers;”

13. “Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated
person;”

14, “Merger, consolidation, or acquisition of the obligated person, if
material;” and

15. “Appointment of a successor or additional trustee, or the change of name

of a trustee, if material;”

upon receipt (or irrevocable direction pursuant to Section 2(c) of this Disclosure
Agreement, as applicable), promptly file a completed copy of Exhibit B to this
Disclosure Agreement with the MSRB, identifying the filing as “Failure to
provide annual financial information as required” when filing pursuant to Section
2(b)(ii) or Section 2(c) of this Disclosure Agreement;

upon receipt, promptly file the text of each Voluntary Event Disclosure received
under Section 7(a) with the MSRB, identifying the Voluntary Event Disclosure
as instructed by the Issuer pursuant to Section 7(a) (being any of the categories
set forth below) when filing pursuant to Section 7(a) of this Disclosure
Agreement:
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10.

11.

“amendment to continuing disclosure undertaking;”
“change in obligated person;”

“notice to investors pursuant to bond documents;”

“certain communications from the Internal Revenue Service;”
“secondary market purchases;”

“bid for auction rate or other securities;”

“capital or other financing plan;”

“litigation/enforcement action;”

“change of tender agent, remarketing agent, or other on-going party;”

“derivative or other similar transaction;” and

“other event-based disclosures;”

(vii)  upon receipt, promptly file the text of each Voluntary Financial Disclosure
received under Section 7(b) with the MSRB, identifying the Voluntary Financial
Disclosure as instructed by the Issuer pursuant to Section 7(b) (being any of the
categories set forth below) when filing pursuant to Section 7(b) of this Disclosure

Agreement:

1 “quarterly/monthly financial information;”

2. “change in fiscal year/timing of annual disclosure;”

3. “change in accounting standard;”

4. “interim/additional financial information/operating data;”

5. “budget;”

6. “investment/debt/financial policy;”

7. “information provided to rating agency, credit/liquidity provider or other
third party;”

8. “consultant reports;” and

9. “other financial/operating data.”

(viii)  provide the Issuer evidence of the filings of each of the above when made, which
shall be by means of the DAC system, for so long as DAC is the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent under this Disclosure Agreement.

4] The Issuer may adjust the Annual Filing Date upon change of its fiscal year by providing
written notice of such change and the new Annual Filing Date to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent,
Trustee (if any) and the MSRB, provided that the period between the existing Annual Filing Date and new
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Annual Filing Date shall not exceed one year.

(9) Any Information received by the Disclosure Dissemination Agent before 6:00 p.m.
Eastern time on any business day that it is required to file with the MSRB pursuant to the terms of this
Disclosure Agreement and that is accompanied by a Certification and all other information required by
the terms of this Disclosure Agreement will be filed by the Disclosure Dissemination Agent with the
MSRB no later than 11:59 p.m. Eastern time on the same business day; provided, however, the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent shall have no liability for any delay in filing with the MSRB if such delay is caused
by a Force Majeure Event provided that the Disclosure Dissemination Agent uses reasonable efforts to
make any such filing as soon as possible.

SECTION 3. Content of Annual Reports.

(@) Each Annual Report shall contain Annual Financial Information with respect to the Issuer,
including the information provided in the Official Statement under the headings: “THE COUNTY-Five
Year Summary of General Fund Operations”; “THE BONDS-Additional Security for the Bonds”; “THE
COUNTY-Market Value/Assessment Summary of the County”; “THE COUNTY-Exempt Manufacturing
Property”; “THE COUNTY-Tax Collections for the County”; “THE COUNTY-Ten Largest Taxpayers”;
“THE COUNTY-Millage History”; and “THE COUNTY-General Fund Budget”.

(b) Audited Financial Statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) as described in the Official Statement will be included in the Annual Report. If
audited financial statements are not available, then, unaudited financial statements, prepared in
accordance with GAAP as described in the Official Statement will be included in the Annual Report.
Audited Financial Statements (if any) will be provided pursuant to Section 2(d).

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference from other documents,
including official statements of debt issues with respect to which the Issuer is an “obligated person” (as
defined by the Rule), which have been previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission or
available on the MSRB Internet Website. If the document incorporated by reference is a final official
statement, it must be available from the MSRB. The Issuer will clearly identify each such document so
incorporated by reference.

Any Annual Financial Information containing modified operating data or financial information is
required to explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the modification and the impact of the change in the
type of operating data or financial information being provided.

SECTION 4. Reporting of Notice Events.

@) The occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds constitutes a
Notice Event:

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

2. Non-payment related defaults, if material;

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
4, Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
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6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed
or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of
the Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds;

7. Modifications to rights of Bond holders, if material;

8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers;

9. Defeasances;

10. Relea_sel, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if
material;

11. Rating changes;
12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Obligated Person;

Note to subsection (a)(12) of this Section 4: For the purposes of the event described in
subsection (a)(12) of this Section 4, the event is considered to occur when any of the
following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for an
Obligated Person in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Obligated
Person, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body
and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court
or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization,
arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Obligated Person.

13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an
Obligated Person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Obligated Person, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a
definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive
agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if
material; and

14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee, if material.

The Issuer shall, in a timely manner not in excess of ten business days after its occurrence, notify
the Disclosure Dissemination Agent in writing of the occurrence of a Notice Event. Such notice shall
instruct the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (c) and shall
be accompanied by a Certification. Such notice or Certification shall identify the Notice Event that has
occurred (which shall be any of the categories set forth in Section 2(e)(iv) of this Disclosure Agreement),
include the text of the disclosure that the Issuer desires to make, contain the written authorization of the
Issuer for the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to disseminate such information, and identify the date the
Issuer desires for the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to disseminate the information (provided that such
date is not later than the tenth business day after the occurrence of the Notice Event).

(b) The Disclosure Dissemination Agent is under no obligation to notify the Issuer or the

Disclosure Representative of an event that may constitute a Notice Event. In the event the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent so notifies the Disclosure Representative, the Disclosure Representative will within
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two business days of receipt of such notice (but in any event not later than the tenth business day after the
occurrence of the Notice Event, if the Issuer determines that a Notice Event has occurred), instruct the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent that (i) a Notice Event has not occurred and no filing is to be made or (ii)
a Notice Event has occurred and the Disclosure Dissemination Agent is to report the occurrence pursuant
to subsection (c) of this Section 4, together with a Certification. Such Certification shall identify the
Notice Event that has occurred (which shall be any of the categories set forth in Section 2(e)(iv) of this
Disclosure Agreement), include the text of the disclosure that the Issuer desires to make, contain the
written authorization of the Issuer for the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to disseminate such
information, and identify the date the Issuer desires for the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to
disseminate the information (provided that such date is not later than the tenth business day after the
occurrence of the Notice Event).

(© If the Disclosure Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the Issuer as prescribed in
subsection (a) or (b)(ii) of this Section 4 to report the occurrence of a Notice Event, the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent shall promptly file a notice of such occurrence with MSRB in accordance with
Section 2 (e)(iv) hereof. This notice will be filed with a cover sheet completed by the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent in the form set forth in Exhibit C-1.

SECTION 5. CUSIP Numbers.  Whenever providing information to the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent, including but not limited to Annual Reports, documents incorporated by reference
to the Annual Reports, Audited Financial Statements, Notice Event notices, Failure to File Event notices,
Voluntary Event Disclosures and Voluntary Financial Disclosures, the Issuer shall indicate the full name
of the Bonds and the 9-digit CUSIP numbers for the Bonds as to which the provided information relates.

SECTION 6.  Additional Disclosure Obligations. The Issuer acknowledges and understands
that other state and federal laws, including but not limited to the Securities Act of 1933 and Rule 10b-5
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, may apply to the Issuer, and that the duties and
responsibilities of the Disclosure Dissemination Agent under this Disclosure Agreement do not extend to
providing legal advice regarding such laws. The Issuer acknowledges and understands that the duties of
the Disclosure Dissemination Agent relate exclusively to execution of the mechanical tasks of
disseminating information as described in this Disclosure Agreement.

SECTION 7.  Voluntary Filing.

@) The Issuer may instruct the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to file a Voluntary Event
Disclosure with the MSRB from time to time pursuant to a Certification of the Disclosure Representative.
Such Certification shall identify the VVoluntary Event Disclosure (which shall be any of the categories set
forth in Section 2(e)(vi) of this Disclosure Agreement), include the text of the disclosure that the Issuer
desires to make, contain the written authorization of the Issuer for the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to
disseminate such information, and identify the date the Issuer desires for the Disclosure Dissemination
Agent to disseminate the information. If the Disclosure Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the
Issuer as prescribed in this Section 7(a) to file a Voluntary Event Disclosure, the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent shall promptly file such Voluntary Event Disclosure with the MSRB in accordance
with Section 2(e)(vi) hereof. This notice will be filed with a cover sheet completed by the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent in the form set forth in Exhibit C-2.

(b) The Issuer may instruct the Disclosure Dissemination Agent to file a Voluntary Financial
Disclosure with the MSRB from time to time pursuant to a Certification of the Disclosure Representative.
Such Certification shall identify the Voluntary Financial Disclosure (which shall be any of the categories
set forth in Section 2(e)(vii) of this Disclosure Agreement), include the text of the disclosure that the
Issuer desires to make, contain the written authorization of the Issuer for the Disclosure Dissemination
Agent to disseminate such information, and identify the date the Issuer desires for the Disclosure
Dissemination Agent to disseminate the information. If the Disclosure Dissemination Agent has been
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instructed by the Issuer as prescribed in this Section 7(b) to file a Voluntary Financial Disclosure, the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall promptly file such Voluntary Financial Disclosure with the MSRB
in accordance with Section 2(e)(vii) hereof. This notice will be filed with a cover sheet completed by the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent in the form set forth in Exhibit C-3.

(©) The parties hereto acknowledge that the Issuer is not obligated pursuant to the terms of
this Disclosure Agreement to file any Voluntary Event Disclosure pursuant to Section 7(a) hereof or any
Voluntary Financial Disclosure pursuant to Section 7(b) hereof.

(d) Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be deemed to prevent the Issuer from
disseminating any other information through the Disclosure Dissemination Agent using the means of
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or including any other information in any Annual
Report, Audited Financial Statements, Notice Event notice, Failure to File Event notice, Voluntary Event
Disclosure or Voluntary Financial Disclosure, in addition to that required by this Disclosure Agreement.
If the Issuer chooses to include any information in any Annual Report, Audited Financial Statements,
Notice Event notice, Failure to File Event notice, Voluntary Event Disclosure or Voluntary Financial
Disclosure in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Agreement, the Issuer shall
have no obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in any future
Annual Report, Audited Financial Statements, Notice Event notice, Failure to File Event notice,
Voluntary Event Disclosure or Voluntary Financial Disclosure.

SECTION 8. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The obligations of the Issuer and the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent under this Disclosure Agreement shall terminate with respect to the
Bonds upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds, when the Issuer
is no longer an obligated person with respect to the Bonds, or upon delivery by the Disclosure
Representative to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent of an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities
laws to the effect that continuing disclosure is no longer required.

SECTION 9. Disclosure Dissemination Agent. The Issuer has appointed Digital Assurance
Certification, L.L.C. as exclusive Disclosure Dissemination Agent under this Disclosure Agreement. The
Issuer may, upon thirty days written notice to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent and the Trustee,
replace or appoint a successor Disclosure Dissemination Agent. Upon termination of DAC’s services as
Disclosure Dissemination Agent, whether by notice of the Issuer or DAC, the Issuer agrees to appoint a
successor Disclosure Dissemination Agent or, alternately, agrees to assume all responsibilities of
Disclosure Dissemination Agent under this Disclosure Agreement for the benefit of the Holders of the
Bonds. Notwithstanding any replacement or appointment of a successor, the Issuer shall remain liable
until payment in full for any and all sums owed and payable to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent. The
Disclosure Dissemination Agent may resign at any time by providing thirty days’ prior written notice to
the Issuer.

SECTION 10. Remedies in Event of Default. In the event of a failure of the Issuer or the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Holders’
rights to enforce the provisions of this Agreement shall be limited solely to a right, by action in
mandamus or for specific performance, to compel performance of the parties' obligation under this
Disclosure Agreement. Any failure by a party to perform in accordance with this Disclosure Agreement
shall not constitute a default on the Bonds or under any other document relating to the Bonds, and all
rights and remedies shall be limited to those expressly stated herein.
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SECTION 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Disclosure Dissemination Agent.

@) The Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set
forth in this Disclosure Agreement. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent’s obligation to deliver the
information at the times and with the contents described herein shall be limited to the extent the Issuer has
provided such information to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent as required by this Disclosure
Agreement. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall have no duty with respect to the content of any
disclosures or notice made pursuant to the terms hereof. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall have
no duty or obligation to review or verify any Information or any other information, disclosures or notices
provided to it by the Issuer and shall not be deemed to be acting in any fiduciary capacity for the Issuer,
the Holders of the Bonds or any other party. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall have no
responsibility for the Issuer’s failure to report to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent a Notice Event or a
duty to determine the materiality thereof. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall have no duty to
determine, or liability for failing to determine, whether the Issuer has complied with this Disclosure
Agreement. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent may conclusively rely upon Certifications of the Issuer
at all times.

The obligations of the Issuer under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent and defeasance, redemption or payment of the Bonds.

(b) The Disclosure Dissemination Agent may, from time to time, consult with legal counsel
(either in-house or external) of its own choosing in the event of any disagreement or controversy, or
guestion or doubt as to the construction of any of the provisions hereof or its respective duties hereunder,
and shall not incur any liability and shall be fully protected in acting in good faith upon the advice of such
legal counsel. The reasonable fees and expenses of such counsel shall be payable by the Issuer.

(c) All documents, reports, notices, statements, information and other materials provided to
the MSRB under this Agreement shall be provided in an electronic format and accompanied by
identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB.

SECTION 12. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Agreement, the Issuer and the Disclosure Dissemination Agent may amend this Disclosure Agreement
and any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be waived, if such amendment or waiver is
supported by an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities laws acceptable to both the Issuer and the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent to the effect that such amendment or waiver does not materially impair
the interests of Holders of the Bonds and would not, in and of itself, cause the undertakings herein to
violate the Rule if such amendment or waiver had been effective on the date hereof but taking into
account any subsequent change in or official interpretation of the Rule; provided neither the Issuer or the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall be obligated to agree to any amendment modifying their respective
duties or obligations without their consent thereto.

Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, the Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall have the
right to adopt amendments to this Disclosure Agreement necessary to comply with modifications to and
interpretations of the provisions of the Rule as announced by the Securities and Exchange Commission
from time to time by giving not less than 20 days written notice of the intent to do so together with a copy
of the proposed amendment to the Issuer. No such amendment shall become effective if the Issuer shall,
within 10 days following the giving of such notice, send a notice to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent
in writing that it objects to such amendment.

SECTION 13. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the

Issuer, the Trustee of the Bonds, the Disclosure Dissemination Agent, the underwriter, and the Holders
from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.
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SECTION 14. Governing Law. This Disclosure Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Florida (other than with respect to conflicts of laws).

SECTION 15. Counterparts.  This Disclosure Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same
instrument.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]
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The Disclosure Dissemination Agent and the Issuer have caused this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement to be executed, on the date first written above, by their respective officers duly authorized.

DIGITAL ASSURANCE CERTIFICATION, L.L.C., as
Disclosure Dissemination Agent

By:
Name:
Title:

FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
as Issuer

By:
Name: K. G. “Rusty” Smith
Title:  Chairman, County Council
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EXHIBIT A
NAME AND CUSIP NUMBERS OF BONDS

Name of Issuer Florence County, South Carolina
Name of Bond Issue:

Date of Issuance:

Date of Official Statement

CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:

CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
CUSIP Number:
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EXHIBIT B
NOTICE TO MSRB OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Issuer: Florence County, South Carolina

Name of Bond Issue:

Date of Issuance:

Date of Disclosure
Agreement:

CUSIP Number:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Issuer has not provided an Annual Report with respect to
the above-named Bonds as required by the Disclosure Agreement between the Issuer and Digital
Assurance Certification, L.L.C., as Disclosure Dissemination Agent. The Issuer has notified the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent that it anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by

Dated:

Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C., as Disclosure
Dissemination Agent, on behalf of the Issuer

cc: Issuer
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EXHIBIT C-1
EVENT NOTICE COVER SHEET

This cover sheet and accompanying “event notice” will be sent to the MSRB, pursuant to Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5)(i)(C) and (D).

Issuer’s and/or Other Obligated Person’s Name:

Issuer’s Six-Digit CUSIP Number:

or Nine-Digit CUSIP Number(s) of the bonds to which this event notice relates:

Number of pages attached:

Description of Notice Events (Check One):

1. “Principal and interest payment delinquencies;”

2. “Non-Payment related defaults, if material;”

3. “Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;”

4. “Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;”

5. “Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;”

6. “Adverse tax opinions, IRS notices or events affecting the tax status of the security;”

7. “Modifications to rights of securities holders, if material;”

8. “Bond calls, if material;”

9, “Defeasances;”

10.__ “Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if material;”

11._  *“Rating changes;”

12.  “Tender offers;”

13.__ “Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person;”

14._ “Merger, consolidation, or acquisition of the obligated person, if material;” and

15._  “Appointment of a successor or additional trustee, or the change of name of a trustee, if
material.”

Failure to provide annual financial information as required.

| hereby represent that | am authorized by the issuer or its agent to distribute this information publicly:

Signature:
Name: Title:
Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C.
390 N. Orange Avenue
Suite 1750
Orlando, FL 32801
407-515-1100
Date:

C-C-1



EXHIBIT C-2
VOLUNTARY EVENT DISCLOSURE COVER SHEET

This cover sheet and accompanying “voluntary event disclosure” will be sent to the MSRB, pursuant to the
Disclosure Dissemination Agent Agreement dated as of between the Issuer and DAC.

Issuer’s and/or Other Obligated Person’s Name:

Issuer’s Six-Digit CUSIP Number:

or Nine-Digit CUSIP Number(s) of the bonds to which this notice relates:

Number of pages attached:

Description of Voluntary Event Disclosure (Check One):

1 “amendment to continuing disclosure undertaking;”

2 “change in obligated person;”

3 “notice to investors pursuant to bond documents;”

4 “certain communications from the Internal Revenue Service;”
5 “secondary market purchases;”

6. “bid for auction rate or other securities;”

7 “capital or other financing plan;”

8 “litigation/enforcement action;”

9 “change of tender agent, remarketing agent, or other on-going party;”
10._ “derivative or other similar transaction;” and

11.  “other event-based disclosures.”

I hereby represent that | am authorized by the issuer or its agent to distribute this information publicly:

Signature:
Name: Title:
Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C.
390 N. Orange Avenue
Suite 1750
Orlando, FL 32801
407-515-1100
Date:

C-C-2



EXHIBIT C-3
VOLUNTARY FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE COVER SHEET

This cover sheet and accompanying “voluntary financial disclosure” will be sent to the MSRB, pursuant to
the Disclosure Dissemination Agent Agreement dated as of between the Issuer and DAC.

Issuer’s and/or Other Obligated Person’s Name:

Issuer’s Six-Digit CUSIP Number:

or Nine-Digit CUSIP Number(s) of the bonds to which this notice relates:

Number of pages attached:

Description of Voluntary Financial Disclosure (Check One):

1. “quarterly/monthly financial information;”

2. “change in fiscal year/timing of annual disclosure;”

3. “change in accounting standard;”

4. “interim/additional financial information/operating data;”

5. “budget;”

6. “investment/debt/financial policy;”

7. “information provided to rating agency, credit/liquidity provider or other third party;”
8. “consultant reports;” and

9. “other financial/operating data.”

I hereby represent that | am authorized by the issuer or its agent to distribute this information publicly:

Signature:
Name: Title:
Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C.
390 N. Orange Avenue
Suite 1750
Orlando, FL 32801
407-515-1100
Date:

C-C-3



APPENDIX D
OFFICIAL BID FORM

$5,000,000 General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2011
(Bank Qualified Tax-Exempt) of Florence County, South Carolina

Kevin V. Yokim
Finance Director
Florence County
180 N. Irby Street, MSC-H Telephone (843) 665-3013
Florence, South Carolina 29501 Facisimile (843) 665-4515

Subject to the provisions and in accordance with the Official Notice of Sale for the $5,000,000
General Obligation Improvement and Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 (the “Bonds™), of Florence County,
South Carolina (the “County™), the terms of which are hereby made a part of this bid, we make the following
Net Interest Cost (NIC) bid for the Bonds described in said Official Notice of Sale.

The Bonds maturing on or before March 1, 2021, are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. The
Bonds maturing on or after March 1, 2022, are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the
County, on or after March 1, 2021, in whole or in part at any time, at a redemption price equal to 100 percent
of the principal amount therof, plus interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

We will pay $ plus a premium of $ and will accept delivery of the
Bonds in accordance with the Official Notice of Sale. The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of and
the opportunity to examine the Preliminary Official Statement for the Bonds dated October 31, 2011
accompanying the Official Notice of Sale.

WE HEREBY NOTIFY the County that we will purchase bond insurance for the Bonds from
at a premium of $ and will comply with provisions of the Official
Notice of Sale regarding the payment therefor.

The following is for information

only and is not a part of this bid: Company Name
Total Interest to Maturity calculated on
the basis of a 360-day year consisting of Address
twelve
30-day months $
Less Premium $ Authorized Signature
Net Interest Cost $
Effective Net Interest %
Rate Contact Name and Telephone Number
The foregoing proposal accepted this____ day of 2011.

K. G. “Rusty” Smith, Chairman,
County Council

On the reverse side of this Bid Form is a list of the members of our account on whose behalf this bid is
made.



The following is a list of the members of our account on whose behalf this bid is made
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